Mates, Michael

Document 1

From:

Sent:

To:

Subject:
Attachments:

Mike,

Deepak Ahuja (b) (5)

Friday, April 16, 2010 10:18 PM

Mates, Michaei

January and February Financials

Tesla - DOE Compliance Certificate 041610 Final.pdf

Thanks for calling me back late on Friday. | truly appreciate the support that you and the DoE team continue to give us. As
shared with you today, please find attached the January and February financials.

The full quarter financials will be completed by next week. We will send you the unaudited version right away. The PwG
reviewed financials for Q1 will be reflected in the amendment to the S-1 in May.

Deepak Ahuia
(b) (6)




Document 2

CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
JSinamcial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempi from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b}).

FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

(Delivered pursuant to Section 8.1(d) and 8.2(b) of the Loan Arrangement and Reimbursement
Agreement)

Date of this Certificate: April 16, 2010

United States Department of Energy
Attn: Director, Advanced Technology Vehicles Manufacturing Loan Program
Re:  Tesla Motors, Inc.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This Compliance Certificate is delivered to you pursuant to Sections 8.1(d) and 8.2(b)of the Loan
Arrangement and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2010 (the "Arrangement
Agreement™), by and between (i) Tesla Motors, Inc. (the “Borrower”) and (ii) the United States
Department of Energy (“DOE”).

All capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate shall have their respective meanings
specified in the Arrangement Agreement.

On behalf of the Borrower, 1, Deepak Ahuja, HEREBY CERTIFY that I am the duly clected and
qualified Chief Financial Officer of the Borrower, and FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date
hereof:

1. Pursuant to Section 8.1{(d)(i} of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(1) are unaudited consolidated Financial Statements of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries for the months ended as of January 31, 2010 and February 28, 2010, and
such Financial Statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition
of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as at the dates indicated and the results of their
operations and their cash flows for the periods indicated, in each case in conformity with
GAAP applied on a basis consistent with prior years, subject to the absence of notes to
the financial statements and changes resulting from normal audit and year-end
adjustments, except as noted in the following sentence, In addition to the foregoing, the
attached Financial Statements do not comply with GAAP as a result of (i) normal
adjustments that are recorded on a quarterly basis and (ii) the recording of the warrant
issued to the DOE which was recorded in the month ended March 31, 2010 after the
completion of the related valuation work and consultation with the Borrower’s
independent accountants;

2. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(ii) of the Arrangement Agreement, no Default or Event of
Default has occurred other than the deliveries of the Financial Statements for the month
ended January 31, 2010 and for the month ended February 28, 2009 and the related
Compliance Certificates required to be delivered concurrently therewith pursuant to
Section 8.1(d) were delinquent, which delinquencies are hereby being remedied;

Tesla - DOE Compliance Certificate (41610 Final.doc 1
SUp-1C



CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
[financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 US.C. § 552(b)).

3.

Pursuant to Section 8.1(d){iii} of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(i11) are computations in reasonable detail demonstrating that the Borrower is in
compliance with the covenants set forth in Annex 9.1 of the Arrangement Agreement to
the extent such covenants are applicable to the period included within the attached
Financial Statements; and

Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(iv) of the Arrangement Agreement, Exhibit 8. 1(d}{iv) attached
hereto shows the applicable Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of the first day of the
period included within the attached Financial Statements, as of the last day of such period
and the difference between such amounts, together with a summary of the Investment
Amount, Cash Investment Amount, consideration and legal structure of each Permitted
Equity Proceeds Investments made during such period.

Tesla - DOE Compliance Certificate 041610 Final.doc 2
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Compliance Certificate as of the
date first written above.

TESLA MOTORS, INC,
\
7
By:
f= f '
Name: Wk A ,U_(\ﬁ‘
Title: o

[Signature page o Borrower Certificate (Closing)]

Tesla - DOE Comptiance Certificate 041610 Final.doc
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CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Jinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 US.C. § 552(B)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(i}

Financial Statements

Tesla - DOE Compliance Cerfificate 041610 Final.doc
SUp-1C



CONFIDENTIAL - This decument was developed at private expanse and includes trade secrets and commerclal or financial
information, ar both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedam of
Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1{d)(i)

Tesla Motors, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of January 31, 2010 and February 28, 2010
(In thousands)

Assets
Current Assets
sh

)
%]

¢as

Other assets 3,640 3,695

Liabilities, Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders’
Equity (Deficit)
Current Liabilities

I Accolinls payable::

S

2807281

The Company believes in good faith that the unaudited financial statements herein fairly present the financial
results of the Company as of the dates indicated herein.



CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets
and commercial or financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged,
confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. §
552(b})).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(i)

Tesla Motors, Inc

Consolidated Statements of Operations
January and February 2010

{In thousands)

(Unaudited) _ (Unaudited)

Gross profit (loss) 981 1,099

Operating expenses

TOthetineome (§xpanse

Mlnterest 1666-me. net Sf (m'l.e‘rest expense) (14) 15

Pre-Tax (Loss) Income {6,970) (7,520)

Net (loss) Income $ (6,970) § {7,520}

The Company believes in good faith that the unaudited financial statements herein fairly
present the financial results of the Company for the periods indicated herein.



CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or financial information,
or both, that Testa Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of information Act (5
U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.4{d)X) .

Tesla Motors, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
January and February 2010

{in thousands)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

Cash flows from Operating activities

Net Loss 3 (6,970) $ (7,520)

‘Adjdsimen & netioss 0| cash
used in provided by operating activities

‘B (! At

(1,607) 1,371)

{2,260) (4,371)

The Company believes in good faith that the unaudited financial statements herein fairly present the financtal
results of the Company for the periods indicated herein.



CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or financial information, or both, that
Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.8.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1{d)(iii)
Tesla Motors, Inc.

Financial Covenants in relation to ATVM Loan Funding Arrangement

In accordance to Annex 9.1 {(c) (i)

Total current assets as of January 31, 2010 $85,237,000
Total current liabilities as of January 31, 2010 $24,539,000 Covenant

Requirement
Current ratio as of January 31, 2010 347 = 1.40
In accordance to Annex 9.1 {c) {ii)

Covenant

Cash balance as of January 31, 2010 $54,339,000 Requirement
Initial Advance received under the Notes (P) $16,899,224 315,000,000
Initial Advance received under the Notes (8) $4,258,666 3762,826 Interest Expense Annualized

Total Pro Forma Cash Balance $75,496,800 > $15,762,826




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes frade secrets and commercial or financial information, or both, that
Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)}.

Exhibit 8-1(d){iii)
Tesla Motors, Inc.

Financial Covenants in relation to ATVM Loan Funding Arrangement

In accordance to Annex 9.1 (c) (i)

Total current assets as of February 28, 2010 $98, 589,440
Total current liabilities as of February 28, 2010 $27,705,000 Covenant

Requirement
Current ratio as of February 28, 2010 3.56 > 1.40
In accordance to Annex 9.1 (c} (ii)

Covenant
Cash balance as of February 28, 2010 $61,884 697 Reqguirement
$15 000,000

$734,417 interest Expense Annualized
Total Pro Forma Cash Balance 361,884,667 > $15734,417




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes irade secrets and commercial or
JSinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt firom disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1{d)(iv)

Excess Equity Proceeds Amount

Not applicable as of April 16, 2010,

Tesla - DOE Compliance Certificate 041610 Finai.doc
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Document 3

CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Sinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempr from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)}.

FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

(Delivered pursuant to Section 8.1(d) and 8.2(b) of the Loan Arrangement and Retmbursement
Agreement)

Date of this Certificate: April 30, 2010

United States Department of Energy
Attn:  Director, Advanced Technology Vehicles Manufacturing [.oan Program
Re:  Tesla Motors, Inc.

Ladies and Gentlemen;

This Compliance Certificate is delivered to you pursuant to Sections 8.1(d) and 8.2(b)of the Loan
Arrangement and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2010 (the "Arrangement
Agreement"), by and between (1) Tesla Motors, Tnc. (the “Borrower™) and (ii) the United States
Department of Energy (“DOLE™).

All capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate shall have their respective meanings
specified in the Arrangement Agreement.

On behalf of the Borrower, I, Deepak Ahuja, HEREBY CERTIFY that T am the duly elected and
qualified Chief Financial Officer of the Borrower, and FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date
hereof:

1. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(i) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(i) arc unaudited consolidated Financial Statements of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries for the month ended as of March 31, 2010 and such Financial Statements
fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries as at the date indicated and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the period indicated, in conformity with GAAP applied on a basis consistent
with prior years, subject to the absence of notes to the financial statements and changes
resulting from normal audit and year-end adjustments, except as noted in the following
sentence. In addition to the foregoing, the attached Financial Statements do not comply
with GAAP as a result of normal adjustments that are recorded on a quarterly basis;

2. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d}ii) of the Arrangement Agreement, no Default or Event of
Default has occurred,

3. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(iii) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(iii) are computations in reasonable detail demonstrating that the Borrower is in
compliance with the covenants set forth in Annex 9.1 of the Arrangement Agreement to
the extent such covenants are applicable to the period included within the attached
Financial Statements; and




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Jinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
wunder the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

4, Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(iv) of the Arrangement Agreement, Exhibit 8.1(d)(iv) attached
hereto shows the applicable Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of the {irst day of the
period included within the attached Financial Statements, as of the last day of such period
and the difference between such amounts, together with a summary of the Tnvestment
Amount, Cash Investment Amount, consideration and legal structure of each Permitted
Equity Proceeds Investments made during such period.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Compliance Certificate as of the
date first written above,

TESLA MOTORS, INC,
\
7
By:
' -:‘/ ]
Name: Wk Al{i‘ E&Q
Title: o

[Signarure page to Borrower Certificate (Closing)}

Tesla - DOE Compliance Certificate 041610 Final doc
Sup-I1C




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
[financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Aect (5 US.C. § 552(8)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)1)

Financial Statements




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and
commercial or financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and
exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1 (d}{i}

Tesla Motors, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of March 31, 2010

{in thousands)

s ara o

Assels {Unaudited)
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Inventory
.-vd XpE
otai current

Liabilities, Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity
(Deficit)
Current Liabilities

H
Refundabie reservation payments 25,989
Tota ilite i

(260,663)]
{29,519)

279,296),

The Company believes in good faith that the tthaudited financial statements herein fairly present the
financial results of the Company as of the date indicated herein,



CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade
secrets and commercial or financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, inc. considers
privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act

(5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d){i)

Tesla Motors, Inc

Consolidated Statement of Operations
March 2010

{In thousands}

Gross profit (loss) 1,772

Operating expenses

Interest income, net of interest expense 180
Pre-tax {loss) income (14,911)

Net (loss) income $ (15,029)

The Company believes in good faith that the unaudited financial statements herein fairly present
the financial results of the Company for the period indicated herein.



CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes frade secrets and commercial or financial information, or
both, that Tesla Motars, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclostre under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C.
§ 552(b}).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(i)

Tesla Motors, inc.

Consalidated Statement of Cash Flows
March 2010

(in thousands)

Mar=40 52
{Unaudited)
Cash flows from Operating actlvntles
Net Loss ) $ (15,029)

Deferred development compensation

Refundable reservation payments
Net cash used in operating aclivities

Gash flows from Investing activities

Increase (decrease) in restricted cash deposits {2,495)
Net cash used in investing activities (2,749)

gash flows from Financing activities

Non cash activities
Warrants issued o DOE 6,293

The Company believes in good faith that the unaudited financial statements herein fairly
present the financial results of the Company for the period indicated herein.



CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or financial information, or both, that
Tesla Mofors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(iii)
Tesla Motors, Inc.

Financial Covenants in relation to ATVM Loan Funding Arrangement

In accordance to Annex 9.1 (c) (i)

Total current assets as of March 31, 2010 $100,602,392
Total current liabilities as of March 31, 2010 $33,115,498 Covenant

Requirement
Current ratio as of March 31, 2010 3.04 > 1.40
In accordance to Annex 9.1 (¢) (ii)

Covenant
Cash balance as of March 31, 2010 $61,545,573 Requirement
$15,000,000

31,015,171 Interest Expense Annualized
Total Pro Forma Cash Balance $61,545,573 > 316,015,171




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
[financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 US.C. § 552(8)).

Exhibit 8. 1{d)(iv)

Excess Equity Proceeds Amount

Not applicable as of April 30, 2010,



Document 4

Mates, Michael

From: Mike Taylor (b) (6)

Sent: Saturday, May 29, 2010 1:46 PM

To: Mates, Michael

Cc: Deepak Ahuja; Rex Liu; Zachary Kirkhorn; Tom vonReichbauer
Subject: Tesla Motors Financial Statements for the Month Ended April 30, 2010
Attachments: Tesla - DOE Compliance Certificate 052810.pdf

Mike,

Attached please find the financial statements for Tesla Motors, Inc. for the month ended April 30, 2010 and the
accompanying compliance certificate.

Have a great weekend,

Mike



Document 5

Mates, Michael

From: Mike Taylor (b) (6)

Sent: Wednesday, June 30, 2010 2:59 PM

To: Mates, Michael

Cc: Deepak Ahuja; Rex Liu; Zachary Kirkhorn; Tom vonReichbauer
Subject: Tesla Motors Financial Statements for the Month Ended May 31, 2010
Attachments: Tesla - DOE Compliance Certificate 063010.pdf

Mike,

Attached please find the financial statements for Tesla Motors, Inc. for the month ended May 31, 2010 and the
accompanying compliance certificate.

Best,

Mike



Document 6
CONFIDENTIAL - This document vas developed at private expense and inclides irade seerets and commerciad or

Jancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exemplt from disclosure
ynder the Freedom of Information Aet (3 US.C. § 552(b)).

FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATI

{Delivered pursuant to Section 8.1(d) and 8.2(b} of the Loan Arrangement and Retmbursement
Agreement)

Date of this Certificate: June 30, 2010

United States Departiment of Energy
Atin: Director, Advanced Technology Vehicles Manufacturing Loan Program
Re:  Tesla Motors, Inc.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This Compliance Certificate is delivered to you pursuant to Sections 8.1(d} and 8.2(b)of the Loan
Arrangement and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2010 (the "Arrangement
Apreement"), by and between (i) Tesla Motors, Inc: (the “Borrower”} and (ii) the United States
Department of Energy (“DOE”).

All capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate shall have their respective meanings
specified in the Arrangement Agreement.

On behalf of the Botrower, I, Deepak Ahuja, HEREBY CERTIFY that I am the duly elected and
qualified Chief Financial Officer of the Borrower, and FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date
hereot:

1. Pursuant to Section 8.1{d)(1) of the Arrangement Agreement, atiached hereto as Exhibit
8. 1{d)(i) are unaudited consolidated Financial Statements of the Boirower and its
Subsidiaries for the month ended as of May 31, 2010 and such Financial Statemeiits
fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Boirower and its
Subsidiaries as at the date indicated and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the period indicated, in conformity with GAAP applied on a basis consistent
with prior years, subject to the absence of notes to the financial statements and changes
resuiting from normal audit and year-end adjustments, except as noted in the following
senfence. In addition to the foregoing, the attached Financial Statements do not comply
with GAAP as-a result of normal adjustments that are recorded on a quartetly basis;

2. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(ii) of the Axrangement Agrecment, no Default or Event of
Default has oceurred;

3. Pursuant to Section 8.1{d)(iii) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(iid) are computations in reasonable detail demonstrating that the Borrower is in
compliance with the covenants sct forth in Annex 9.1 of the Arrangement Agreement to
the extent such covenants are applicable to the period included within the attached
Financial Statements; and




CONFIDENTIAL - This dociment was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Sinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
wnder the Freedom of nformation Act (5 US.C. § 532(h)).

4,

Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(iv) of the Arrangement Agreement, Exhiibit 8.1(d)(iv) attached
hereto shows the @pplicable Excess Equily Proceeds Amount as of the first day of the
period included within the attached Financial Statements, as of the last day of such period
and the difference between such amounts, together with a summary of the Investnent
Amount, Cash Investment Amount, consideration and legal structure of each Permitted
Equity Proceeds Investments made during such period.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Compliance Certificate as of the
date first written above,

TresLA MOTORS, INC.

A b
By: &ﬂj]/
Name: Deeppi A ?{ IR
Title: (5O

[Signature page to Borrower Certificate (Closing)]




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Jinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motars, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of nformation det (5 US.C. § 352(b)}.

Exhibit 8.1(d}1)

Financial Statements




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was deveioped at private axpense and includes trade secrets and
commaerclal or finaneiai information, or hoth, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and
exemipt from disclostre tmder the Freedom of lnformalion Act {5 U.S.C. § 562(b)).

Exhibit 8.4(d)(i)

Tesla Motors, lnc.
Consolldated Balance Shest
As of May 31, 2010

{In thousands)

Assets (Unaudited)
Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalenls $ 50,813
- IActounts recélvable, net e (70 LT 4
Inventory ) 27,138
" Prepaid expenses and olner current assets 4,282
Tolal current assels 87,429

-:Property and equipment, gross . el ABBOO
. Accumulated deprocialion _ (16,350)
“’Properly and equipment, net .. 29,240
CRestAded cash T e 630
Oiher assels: 14,348
otalassets T 28T 138,548

Lizabilities, Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equilty

{Deflcit)

Current Linbilies

“Accounts payable -
Accrued liabilitles

“Deferred fevenue - i
Capital lease pbiga tion_sﬂ‘ “cgrrenl por

“\Narranty reserve, current poriion
Re{undable reservalion payments

: = Total current liabilities -

. Warranty reseive; less current portion ™ !
Noles payable, !ess curcant portlon

. =~De(erred rev3nue [eSS CUﬂ'en( pOl’ﬂoﬂ R

Dlhar lang term liabiliies

- Gonvenlible prefetred stock warrant liablity <=
Ca pital loase nbllgaiwns. fess current portion

Tolal Ilab!lmes X 413,620
Preferred Stock o o
i “Series A, et of cosls,” 3,048
Serles B, net of cosis 12,899
"Seres C net of éosts 36789
_ Serles D, net of cosls . 44941
I Serles E; nel of osts 7 185,669
Series F, nel of cosis 82,378
""" “Total convertihle profarred stock - 310,225

Slockholders ' equily (deﬂclt)

Addillonal paid In capital S

-, Retained gamings:(deficiy - = i sl el - {260,653)
Net Income {loss) (44,582)

{7 Total stoekhotders” equity {deficit) == 7

The Company believes in good falth that the unaudited financiat statements hecein fairly present the
financial resulis of the Corfmpany as of the date Indicated herein.

Total llabikitles, convertible prelersed stotk anét'- L
stockholders’ equuy (deflclt)

TI294,480)




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and inéludes trade secrets and
commercial or financial infortnation, or bolh, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential
and-exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act {5 U.S.C, § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d){i)

Tesla Motors, Inc

Consofldated Statement of Operations

For the Month and Five Months ended fMay 31, 2010
{In thousands)

Ay =10’

0
{Unaudited)

(Unaudited)

Revenhue

FDevelapentservices .. T L T IR A28 e T 2,650

“Tolal revehues T T L e e T 608 L 37,087

Cost of revenues o N . . .
CANLOfOtive e s e S B e TR R80T ‘_27-?32_2‘.-

Developent dénvices = T 1105 B g

L T Ot Gost ol reveniues o TR A e T T TERTY 50 e 220,094

Gros;proﬂt-_ . - 2‘359 LETET g

Operating expenses e
“Research & development = 1o 4,266 21,801

“Sellng, genorl and sdmiplsteate i LS R T gy g

“Total opéraling expenses LT T ST 0447 48,64

Operating (ioss) Ingore ™ Cnras) i (40,838)

Uintstestindome - v LIRS L T L g g
i OO, ... SO, .. L/
| Otherncorne {exponse) i’ st e L T (218) L (8,38),

Predax lloss) Income T s e ETT (aee) T (a4A37)

Net{logs) liigome = 7" -0 T i e 0T§L T (B,260) 8 (A4,882)

The Company believes in gaod faith that the unaudited financial stalements herein faifly present the financial resulls
of the Cornpany for the period indlcated herein,




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was develapad al privale expense and Includes rade secrels and commerclal or finandial information, or bath,
that Testa Matars, Inc. conslders privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freadom of information Act (5 U.5.C. § 552{b)}.

Exhibit 8.4{d)(1)

Taesla Motors, inc.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Month and Five Months ended May 31, 2010
{in thousands)

Cash flews from Operating activities

Net loss L S S (:F 5
‘Adjustiignts to recencils net loss fo gl cash =0 L A

used in provided by op afahng acllvll!es.
Deépreciation‘and amortization = - g
Change in alr value of pieferred stock warrant llabmly

i LT :E'?I_«_'A : 1'._".{:"78'_3 X ST AT

Gain on extinguishment of conyariible nolesiand Warranls | 440 it L

Stock based compensation . . -

L95§0ﬂabandonment QEfxedassels - L T T e

Inventory wtitedowns . 10

Tnterest o convertible notes : SRR N R L g I e

anges (n operalmg asgels and habillueS' ) -

= o ackounts feceivabile: e P LT L e crrd07d) L R (1,708),
lnvemory 1,253 (4.431)
Prépaid expenses and Glher currentassets | T T LT T gy T L ()
Other assels ) (3 085} (3 078)

LT Accounts payable Ty T A N e T 828 e A267)

Accrued jfabililies 1

- Deferred development comtpensation + DT L T
. Deferred revenue :
“Refundablg reservalion paymants. 70 F T S L S L o
“Other lang term liabliilies

“7 Nel eash tsed Tn operating aclivitiés 07T Tk T L TR “(45,360).
Cash flows from Investing activitles o o o
‘Purchasas of property and edlipmont, excluding capital leases - 77 7 W g30) L (9,484)
Increase (decrease) In restdoled cashdeposits 158 (3.950)

2 Net cash Used I investing agtivilies T T LT ESTTIT (1,788) v (13,434)

Cash flows from Flnancing actlvilies o
Proceeds from noles payable 7 s
Proceeds from lssuance of converuble no s and warranls

Procseds from exercise of stock Gptions - S e LR T s L g T LT TR
Pnncepal paymems oncapﬂai leases and olherdebl o i _(1_9)_ ) s
‘Deferred comien slock and foan facllity Jssuance posts * 7 Tl AT ST {2,226)
‘Net cash pmV|ded by financing activities 3,058 39,980
“+“Increase (decrease) intash and cash equlvalents - T T G 04) T (18,814)

:Gash and cash equivaletifs, beginning of period ™ 7T T S T 60866 1 T 69,627

Cash and cash equivatents, end of perlod - = ot T LB TR0 8RS - 160,813,
Non cash activitles
Warrants Issued io DOE $ 6,203

The Company believes in goad faith thal the unaudited financial statements herein faitly presenl the financlal resulls
of the Company for the period indicated herein,




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed af private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or financial information,
or both, that Tesia Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5

Exhibit 8.1(d)(iii)
Tesla Motors, Inc.

Financia! Covenants in relation to ATVM Loan Funding Arrangement

In accordance to Annex 9.1 (c) (i)

Total current assels as of May 31, 2010 387,429,077
Totat current liabilities as of May 31, 2010 $30,378,838 Covenant

Requirement
Current ratio as of May 31, 2010 2.88 > 1.40
In accordance to Annex 9.1 (c) {ii)

Covenant
Cash balanceas of May 31, 2010 $50,812,789 Requirement
315,000,000

$1.312,738 Interest Expense Annualized
Total Pro Forma Cash Balance $50,812,789 > $16,312,739




CONTIDENTIAL - This doctiment was developed at private.expense and includes trade secrets and comnercial or
Jinaneial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Inforiation det (5 US.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(iv)

Excess Equity Proceeds Amount

Not applicable as of May 31, 2010
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Mates, Michael

From: Mike Taylor (b) (6)

Sent: Saturday, July 31, 2010 3:10 PM

To: Mates, Michael

Cc: Deepak Ahuja; Rex Liu; Zachary Kirkhorn; Tom vonReichbauer
Subject: Tesla Motors Financial Statements for the Month Ended June 30, 2010
Attachments: Tesla - DOE Compliance Certificate 072910.pdf

Mike,

Attached please find the financial statements for Tesla Motars, Inc. for the month ended June 30, 2010 and the
accompanying compliance certificate.

Best,

Mike



Document 8
CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes {rade secrets and commercial oy

JSinanctal information, or borh, that Tesia Motors, Ine. considers privileged, confidential and exempt fram disclostire
under the Freedom of Information der (5 US.C, § 552(h)).

FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

(Delivered pursuant to Section 8.1(d) and 8.2(b) of the Loan Arrangement and Reimbursement
- Agreement)

Date of this Certificate: July 29, 2010

United States Department of Energy
At Director, Advanced Technology Vehicles Manufacturing Loan Program
Re:  Tesla Motors, Inc.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This Compliance Certificate is delivered to you pursuani to Sections 8.1(d) and 8.2(b)of the Loan
Arrangement and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2010 (the "Arrangement
Agreement"), by and between (i) Tesla Motors, Inc. (the “Borrower™) and (ii) the United States
Departinent of Energy (“DOE™).

All capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate shall have their respective meanings
specified in the Arrangement Agreement.

On behalf of the Borrower, I, Deepak Ahuja, HEREBY CERTIFY that T am the duly elected and
qualified Chief Financial Officer of the Borrower, and FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date
hereof:

1. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(i) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(i) are unaudited consolidated Financial Statements of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries for the month ended as of June 30, 2010 and such Financial Statements
fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries as at the date indicated and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the period indicated, in conformity with GAAP applied on a basis consistent
with prior years, subject to the absence of notes to the financial stateinents atd changes
resulting from normal audit and year-end adjustments, except as noted in the following
sentence. In addition to the foregoing, the attached Financial Statements do not comply
with GAAP as a result of normal adjustments that are recorded on a quarterly basis;

2, Pursuant to Section 8.1{d)(ii) of the Arrangement Agreement, no Default or Event of
Default has occurred;

3. Pursuant to Section 8. 1{d)(iii) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d\(jii) are compuiations in reasonable detail demonstrating that the Borrower is in
compliance with the covenants set forth in Annex 9.1 of the Arrangement Agreement to
the extent such covenants are applicable to the period included within the attached
Financial Statements; and




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed af private expense and includes irade secrets and commereial or
Jinancial inforwation, or botly, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
wnder the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552¢b)).

4. Pursuant to Section 8, 1(d){iv) of the Arrangement Agreement, Exhibit 8. 1{d)iv) attached
hereto shows the applicable Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of the first day of the
period included within the attached Financial Statements, as of the last day of such period
and the difference between such amounts, together with a sunmimary of the Investment
Amount, Cash Investment Amount, consideration and legal structure of each Permitted
Equity Proceeds lavestnients made during such period,




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Compliance Certificate as of the
date first written above.

TESLA MOTORS, INC,

Nar
By: = -

Name: Deepak Ahuia

Title: CFO

[Signature page to Borrower Certificate (Closing)]




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was deveéloped af private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Jinancial isforniation, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exenipt fiom disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act {5 U.S.C. § 332(h)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(1)

Finaneia] Statements




CONFIDENTIAL ~ This document was developed al private expense and inciudes lrade secrets and
commercial or financiai informalion, or both, that Testa Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and
exempl from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.8.C. § §52(b)).

Exhibit 8.1{d)(l)

Tesla Motors, lnc,
Consclidated Balarnce Sheet
As of June 30, 2010

{ln thousands}

Assets (Unaudited)
Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalenls . ) $ 47.304
7 zAcCounts retelvable, el T IR R e 6,467 ¢
Inventory ) » 29 518
- Prépaid eXpensds.and other current assels. 7 T el e TR L AR
Total current assets 90,034

“Bropery Shd equipinent, gross
Accumulated depreciation
. “Property and equipment, net’:

{ “Resticted eash
Oihe( assets ] —ee e ES
Tolal assets SRS R T e g T AT 0T

Liabilities, Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Equity
(Deficit)
Current Liabiities ) _ N _ e
b Accounts payable G T e S 25,884
Accrued fiabilities
Daferred tevenua
“Waranly reserve, current portion
Refundable 1eservalion payements
“Telal cl.nrem liabilities

“T:Converiible preferied stock variant liabilily .-
Camkai Iease obligations, less current poriicn
_;*:;Warranly reserve; less ciitrent portion
Notes payable lass_ current portion
- “Deferred revenue, lass currant porlion

Other long term habdlties

“Total liabiiities, S e e e T {382 -
Preferred Slock B ) ) S
FiSerfes A, nelgfoosts’ T LA LT i T e T hdg

Series B, ne! of costs 12,899
L iBerdes G, Net afcogls I LAl R I s T T e N0 789
Series D, net of costs ) _ - 44,941
- Serdfs Egnabof costs T N LTl L S 185 880 |
SeriasF nel of cosls 82,378

Total converiihle profersed stotk = il T T T 810,225

Stockhoiders' equily (defi ci!)

- COMMONBIOGK T T s e R LR T TR
Addilional paid in caplla! 18,905
“"Relainad daroings (defigil) e T T e (260,663)
Net Income (loss)} {68,036)

' Tolal stockholders' equity {defiglty . . 1

Total flabllittes, conyentible prefarred stock and
- 5!0ckh0lders equlty (deﬂcit) il :

The Company belleves in good faith that the unaudited financial statements herein fairly present the
financial results of the Company as of the date indicated herein.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrels and
commercial or financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential
and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act {5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d){i)

Tesia Motars, Inc

Consolidated Staterent of Qperations

For tie Month and Six Months ended Jupe 30, 2010
{In thousands)

(Unaudited) (Unaudited) »
Revenwe .
“Autemotive sales (including zero'emission vehisle-credii sales) ~- 18 . - 10476 7§ . 44,856

 Development services 7 2006 T 4861

U Total revenues T L Bt T e T B R0 e 40,247

Cost of revenues ) “
“AUlOMONVe - T IR LT I L L 800 T 3y 404

Development services T T T T T e e 4,980 ¢

e Total costof revenuies T e T T T TH0,069 T 89,104

‘Gross profit e T T T T g ey 10,413

Operating expenses e
" Research & devdioprient =TT T e a0 T ag 68

Selhng,general and admlnislrauve DI 1 1‘952 _38,792

“Total operalifg expeanses . T e T g gae T T BT,473

Operaling {foss) Income o LT L T L8 724) L (87,360)

Cinterest IRCOME T+ 7 T e e e e e e
Interestoxpenss e R - (694)
Olheringoma (expanse).ci o i L T (6,688) - ((9,960)

Upretaxiossyingome T e T e ar) | (67,808)

“Net ibssyingome T T T T 0 a6 S {68,036)

The: Company believes in good faith that the unaudited financial statemenls herein fairly present the financial resulls
of the Company for the pertiod indicated herein.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed al privale expense and includes trade secrels end commerclal or finenclal information, or both,
that Testa Molors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disctosure under the Freedom of Infermation Act (5 U.8.C. § §52(b)).

Exhibit 8. 1(a)(l}

Tesla Molors, inc.

Consolldated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Manth and Six Months ended June 30, 2016
{in thousands)

Gash flows from Operating activitles
Netloss = _
Adjusiments to réconclie nel Idss to nst casii

used in provided by operaling ; acllwlles
‘Depreciation and amorlizalion 50
Change In falr value of pre{ened slock warranl liabuity
Gain o éxtinguishment of convertibia noles and warranls. *
Slock based compensalion

Toss'an abandonmént of fiKed assets o T IE T

inventory wriledovis, ]
fierest on convenlble nates L g
Changes n operating assels and lIabIhUes

- ‘Accountsseceivable T

Inventory
- Prepald expenses and otfier current:assels
Other assels I
U Accdunts payable e
~ Accrued liabilities
“Daferred development compansation ™.
Deferred Tevenue

Other long term liabilitles
¥ Not ¢ash used In opérating acllviles -

Cash flows from Investing activities

‘Puichases of praperly-and equipment, excluding caplial ledses:: -
Increase (decrease) in restiicted cash depqsi{s|
"Nt cash usedn invesling activillés

Cash flows from Financlng activitles
Piccedds from nioles payable ] Bl
Proceeds: from lssuam;e of oonvemble notes and wafranls )
Pnncipal paymenlts on capnal leases snd oihar debt
Deferred commion stock and 1oan facility-isstiance eosts -

Nel cash provided by financing aclivities

: ,;;':ﬁ;r.egs’é'(qeaaag,e)":ﬁ Zash A cash squivalents”

o) A e S ol 5

Non cash activitles
Watrants issued to DCE

= Refuridablg feservalioi ‘isaym;emsz;. EENER,

(Unaudiled) (Unauuiled)

§ . @as) s (68,036)
RAdT T 6240

X

6115‘

SRy T .70y
ooofarey o (1h224)
T88) T T (B00):
ey (507)
BR8N 5,068
1388 (4473
Y. 11 Rt A N1 [

. L {156)
:=1’,99_e e .
1,720 198

T {2832 i (ABA92)
B AR I T.672),
2.16¢ & 731)
R0 T I _2345"-4“1'9-
gy sso

(24)‘ - " (155)
1,207y {3 593§,
2,342 42,321
SBE08) s 92323
LUA0B13 L T 69627
TS T304 8 AT1,304

$ 6,293

The Company believes In good failh that the unaudited financial staléements herein fairly preseiit lhe financlal results

of the Company for thie periad indicaled hereln.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expensé and includes trade secrets and commercial or financial information,
or both, that Tesfa Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5

Exhibit 8.1(d}iii}
Tesla Motors, inc.

Financial Covenants in relation to ATVM Loan Funding Arrangement

In accordance to Annex 9.1 {c) (i}

Total current assets as of fune 30, 2010 $90,034,000
Total current liabilities as of June 30, 2010 542,388,000 Covenant
Requirement

Current ratio as of June 30, 2010 212 > 1.40
In accordance to Annex 8.1 (¢) (i)

. Covenant
Cash balance as of June 30, 2010 $47,304,000 Requirement

315,000,600

$1.411,836 Interest Expense Annualized
Total Pro Farma Cash Balance $47,304.000 > $716,411,836




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed af private expense and includes trade secrets and conmmercial or
Jinancial information, or-both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt fron disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(h}).

Exhibit 8. 1{d)(iv)

Excess Equity Proceeds Amount

Not applicable as of June 30, 2010
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CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at privale expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Jinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information det (5 US.C. § 552(b)).

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

(Delivered pursuant to Section 8.1(d) and 8.2(b) of the Loan Arrangement and Reimbursement
Agreement)

Date of this Certificate: August 13, 2010

United States Department of Energy
Attn:  Director, Advanced Technology Vehicles Manufacturing Loan Program
Re:  Tesla Motors, Inc.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This Compliance Certificate is delivered to you pursuant to Sections 8.1(d) and 8.2(b)of the Loan
Arrangement and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2010 (the "Arrangement
Agreement™), by and between (i) Tesla Motors, Inc. (the “Borrower™) and (ii) the United States
Department of Energy (“DOE”).

All capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate shall have their respective meanings
specified in the Arrangement Agreement.

On behalf of the Borrower, I, Deepak Ahuja, HEREBY CERTIFY that I am the duly elected and
qualified Chief Financial Officer of the Borrower, and FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date
hereof:

1. Attached hereto as Exhibit 8.1(d)(i) are unaudited consolidated Financial Statements of
the Borrower and its Subsidiaries for the fiscal quarter ended as of June 30, 2010, and
unaudited consolidating Financial Statements of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries for
such quarter (o the extent available), and such Financial Statements fairly present, in all
material respects, the financial condition of the Borrower and its Subsidiaries as at the
dates indicated and the results of their operations and their cash flows for the periods
indicated, in each case in conformity with GAAP applied on a basis consistent with prior
years, subject to the absence of notes to the financial statements and changes resulting
from normal audit and year-end adjustments;

2. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(ii) of the Arrangement Agreement, no Default or Event of
Default has occurred;

3. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d){iii) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(iii) are computations in reasonable detail demonstrating that the Borrower is in
compliance with the covenants set forth in Annex 9.1 of the Arrangement Agreement to
the extent such covenants are applicable to the period included within the attached
Financial Statements; and :

4, Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)}{iv) of the Arrangement Agreement, Exhibit 8.1(d)(iv) attached
hereto shows the applicable Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of the first day of the

1




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed ot private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Sinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information et (5 US.C. § 552(B)).

period included within the attached Financial Statements, as of the last day of such period
and the difference between such amounts, together with a summary of the Investment
Amount, Cash Investment Amount, consideration and legal structure of each Permitted
Equity Proceeds Investments made during such period.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Compliance Certificate as of the
date first written above.

TESLA MOTORS, INC.

|

9

By: e

Title: QFO

[Signature page io Borrower Certificate (Closing)]




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes irade secrets and commercial or
Jfinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Ine, considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 US.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8. 1{d)i}

Financial Statements




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and
commercial or financial Information, or both, thal Tesla Molors, inc. considers privileged, confidential and
exempt from disclosure under the Freadom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.4(d)(l)

Tesla Motors, Inc,

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of June 30, 2010 and December 31, 2009
(In thousands)

) Jun-10 Dec-09
Assets (Unaudited)
Current Assets
Cash and cash equwalents $ 47,304 _§
s Tecei 8,467

Liabilities, Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockholders' Deficit
Current Liabilitles

Aeounts payable:s T b S e 0 2h,834 58 Tl 215,088
Accrued liabilities 8,359 14,532
Deferred revenue o : 8,098 - - 1,533
_Capital lease obligations, current portion_ 2% 290

S Refundable réseryation paygients -5 5 5 : ks L D6, 248 e s 128,048

Total current liabilities 68,634 57,489

=2 Converlible preférred: stock:warant liabil
i 'Capilal lease obligations, tess current portion

< Olheriong tern apllifies
Total llabHitios

Preferred § c!g

The Company belleves in good faith that the unaudited financlal statements hereln fairly present the financial
results of the Campany as of the date Indicated hereln.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was deveioped at private expense and Includes trade secrsts and commercial or financiaf
Information, or both, that Tesla Mofors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of

Information Act (5 U.S.C, § 552(b)).

Exhiblt 8,4(d)(i)

Tesla Motors, inc .
Consolidated Statements of Operations
(In thousands)

Three months ended SIx months ended
June 30, June 30,
_ w0 oo N o s ]
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

EAutomotive s

47980

DéVelopriéni serviges.

s A Total ost ST évenugs ™= 1t 2244 LT RDA BA4 CAET3G,104 KT AT AT 76

Gross profit ' 6,261 2,101 10,413 58

Operating expenses
iResearch & development'

~Selling;‘géneral and administralive

T (38517 = L (10,867)

The Company beliaves in good faith that the unaudited financlal statements herein fairly present the financial resuits of the Company
for the pericds Indicated herein.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commarclal or financial informalfion, or both, that
Tesia Molars, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exqmpl from disclosure under the Fraedom of Information Act (6 U.S.C. § 552(b}).

Exhibit 8.1 {d)(t)
Tesla Motors, Inc.

Consolldated Statements of Cash Flows
{in thousands)

Three months ended Six months ended
June 30, June 30,

Cash flows from Operating actlvities

Change In fair value of preferre

:Galn on extinglitshment of ¢

stock basedo;om;_)e aii
50N ahando

~Offier [ong &rm liabilities HEE RS - ST
Deferred developmentoompensaﬁon - (4 150)
Deferred revenue - 2,078 {1,901)
Refundable reservation payments 267 9,460
shiUsed. (n‘oparatiy ' ={12,166),

Proceeds from exercise of slock options
Pringlpal payments on capital 1 F

Deferred comsmon slock and loan faci ity issuance costs ( _] i . - (5,'5‘13) -
Net cash provided by financing aclivitics 13,693 55,229 42,321 74,762

Non cash activities
Warrants issued to DOE $ 6,293 $ 8,293

The Company believes in gcod falth that the unaudited financial statements herein fairly present the financlal resuits of the Company for the pericds
indicated herein,




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or financial information, or both, that Tesla Mofors, Inc. considers
privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act {5 U.8.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1{d)(D}

Tesla Motors, In&.
Consolidated Statement of Convertible Preferred Stock and Stockhelders' Deficit

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2010
{Unaudited)
{in thousanqs)

Additional Total
Convertible Preferred Stock Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated  Stockholders’
Shares Amount Shares Amount Capital Deficit Deficit
319,225
(29,519)
51819,225 i b;615172 ; B i (280173)

N 151 &
208,817,237 § 318,225 7702126 & 8 % 18906 § (328.689) $ {309.775)

The Company believes in good faith that the unaudited financial statements herein fairly present the financial results of the Company for the peried indicated herein.
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CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed 2t private expense and includes irade secrets and ial or fin inft . ¢r both, tha! Testa Motors, Inc. iders privileged, J and exempt from discicsura under the Freedam of Information Act (SU.S.C. §

Exhibit 8.5(d) (i)

Tesla Motors, Inc.

Consolidating Statement of Cperations
For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2010
{Unaudited}

{in thousands)

Canada

Consclidated Tetal

us UK Germany Monaco Taiwon Australia Denmark Switzerlnnd _ Lepsing Italy Japan : Hong Kong iG Elimination

INCOME STATEMENT
Revenues =
"L AU molirs saies frekiding
erfission vehilele areifit saios):

Tetnl cest of reveruss

Gross profit lloss)

Totel cperatng

Operating thcoms (Loss)

Ottier (income) sxpense
7 Otharincoime and ex|
Pre-Tax income {[oss) 5.8 19 51 (3z7) [N O] [CE)
TEorparaR ncom i i = '

Net income (fa=c) {37} 170) $ 123:} $ _11) 8 891 § 16 _S 235 S _& £ !GBEME!

The Company believes fn good faith thet the unaudiled financial stzt ts herein faifly present tha fnancizl results ef the Company as of the date indicated hersin.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private axpense and inciudes trada secrets and commercial or financial information, or bath, that Tesfa Motors, Inc, cofisiders privieged, dential and exampt from disclosure undér the Freedam of fnformation Act (5 U.S.C. §

Exhibit 8.1(d)(i)

Tesla Moters, Inc,

Consolidating Statement of Operations
For the Three Months Ended June 30, 2010
{Unaudited)

(in thousands)

_Conschidated Tatat

_Germany. haly Javan B Hong Kona €anada € Elimination

Monaco Taiwan Australia Bonmark . _ Swiwzerdand
INCOME STATEMENT

Totnl reventns 28,708 11.873 2366 558 - - -

Ccst of revenues
i Autamolive s2les’

“irtorsompany COGS

Total cost of revemnes 305 10,767 2062 481 - - = - T r 201 128 1732 —{7.803) 22,144
Gross profit (loss) 4621 836 304 77 - - - - 8 - i3 27 458 (R44) 5,261
Opepating expenses
..} Resbateli and davatoprhe

U SeIng, PENtrl and admnietative

Total J
Oﬁila.ﬁil hbos wﬁ-«am* 2 3

Othey (income) expense
£ Intereat Intoma;

_[nterestExperse
‘- OtherTncome and pxpenss'

(Y

Pre-Tax income (loss) 135,62 ]

Net income (los55) $ gs.ﬁa'ﬂ 3 issai § (228) §

1145]_8 1181 3 ) S 3 s 18 S 385 3§ (344) T

The Company belleves in good {alth that the unzudited finandial stalements herein fairly present the financial results of the Company ¢ of the date Indicated herain.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or financial information,
or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exemnpt from disclosure under the Freedom of information Act (5

U.S.C. § 552(b)).
Exhibit 8,1(d)(iii)
Tesla Motors, Inc.

Financial Covenants in relation to ATVM Loan Funding Arrangement

In accordance to Annex 9.1 (¢) (i)

Total current assets as of June 30, 2010 $90,034,000
Total current liabilities as of June 30, 2010 $42,388,000 Covenant

Requirement
Current ratio as of June 30, 2010 212 > 1.40
In accordance to Annex 9.1 {c) (ii)

Covenant
Cash balance as of June 30, 2010 $47,304,000 Requirement
$15,000,000

$1,411,836 Interest Expense Annualized
Total Pro Forma Cash Balance $47,304,000 > $16,411,836




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed af private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Jinancial information, or both, that Teslu Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt firom disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 US.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(iv)

Excess Equity Proceeds Amount

Not applicable as of June 30, 2010,




Document 10

Mates, Michael

From: Mike Taylor Sb) (6)_ ,

Sent: Monday, August 30, 2010 10:41 PM

To: Mates, Michael

Cc: Deepak Ahuja; Rex Liu; Zachary Kirkharn; Tom vonReichbauer; Diarmuid O‘Conneli
Subject: Tesla Motors Financial Statements for the Month Ended July 31, 2010
Attachments: Tesla - DOE Compliance Certificate 083010.pdf

Mike,

Attached please find the finandcial statements for Tesla Motors, Inc. for the month ended July 31, 2010 and the
accompanying compliance certificate.

Best,

Mike



Document 11
CONFIDENTIAL - This documment was developed at private expense and includes irade secrets and commercial or
Jfinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from diselosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 US.C. § 552(b)).
FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

{Delivered pursuant to Section 8.1(d) and 8.2(b) of the Loan Armrangement and Reimbursement
Agreement)

Date of this Certificate: October 28, 2010

United States Depariment of Energy
Attn:  Director, Advanced Technology Vehicles Manufacturing Loan Program
Re:  Tesla Motors, Inc.

{Ladies and Gentlemen:

This Compliance Certificate is delivered to you pursuant to Sections 8.1(d) and 8.2(b)of the Loan
Axrangement and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of Januvary 20, 2010 (the "Arrangement
Agreement"), by and between (i) Tesla Motors, Inc, (the “Borrower™) and (ii) the United States
Department of Energy (“DOE”).

All capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate shall have their respective meanings
specified in the Arrangement Agreement.

On bebalf of the Borrower, I, Deepak Ahuja, HEREBY CERTIFY that I am the duly elected and
qualified Chief Financial Officer of the Borrower, and FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date
“hereof:

1. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(i) of the Arrangement Agreement, aftached herefo as Exhibit
8.1(d)(i) are unaudited consolidated Financial Statements of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries for the month ended as of September 30, 2010 and such Financial
Statements fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Borrower
and its Subsidiaries as at the date indicated and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for the period indicated, in conformity with GAAP applied on a basis
consistent with prior years, subject to the absence of notes to the financial statements and
changes resulting from normal audit and year-end adjusiments, except as noted in the
following sentence. In addition to the foregoing, the attached Financial Statements do not
comply with GAAP as a result of normal adjustments that are recorded on a quarterly
basis;

2, Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(ii} of the Arrangement Agreement, no Default or Event of
Defaulf has occurred;

3. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(iii) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(iii) are computations in reasonable defail demonstrating that the Borrower is in
compliance with the covenants set forth in Annex 9.1 of the Arrangement Agreement to
the extent such covenants are applicabie to the period included within the attached
Financial Statements; and




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and inciudes trade secrets and conmercial or
- financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Aet (5 US.C. § 552(B)).

4. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(iv) of the Arrangement Agreement, Exhibit 8.1(d){(iv) attached
hereto shows the applicable Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of the fivst day of the
period included within the attached Financial Statements, as of the last day of such period
and the difference between such amounts, together with a summary of the Investment
Amount, Cash Investment Amount, consideration and legal structure of each Permitted
Equity Proceeds Investments made during such period. :




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Compliance Certificate as of the
date first written above,

TESLA MOTORS, INC.
r
B : A\ /\ﬂ/
y =T

Name: Deepak Ahuia

Title: CFO

[Signature page to Borrower Certificate (Closing)]




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed ot privaie expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Simancial information, or-both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Aet (5 US.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)()

Financial Statements




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at privale expense and includes frade secrels and
commercial cr financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. censlders privileged, confidential and
axsmpt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(0)).

Exhibit 8.1(d))

Fesla Motors, inc,
Consolldated Balance Sheet

As of September 30, 2010
(In thousands)
Assets
Current Assels
Cash and cash equivalents $ 96,563
CEBUntSTecelvabl 8,0624
39,508
e Qihet g SRR 5374
“Tolal currenl assols 164,670
Property and squlpment not 42,896
£ash= 45,622
20,100

e

Liakllitles and Steckholders’ Equily
Currem ablH!les

s Ay

aivalion payrients.: i SR 07860
Total current Jiabilities 68,995

Gommgn stock wasrant Jiability .~ . 0 T

JhT ‘ it 5,058
Total llabllitles . 141,365

Stockholders' equily
o

260,604).
(100,970

e TART AR

The Company belleves In geod feith that the unaudited tinancial slatements herein falily present
the financial results of the Company as of the date indlcated hereln.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and
commercial or financial information, or beth, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential
and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act {5 U.8.C. § 552{b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)())

Tesla Motors, Inc

Consolidated Statements of Operatlons

For the Month and Nine Months ended September 30, 2610
(In thousands)

(Unaudited) {Unaudited)
Hevenua

ez

Aquméj VE s

EE A

E0ther incame {expan:

The Company believes in good faith that the unaudited financial statements hereln faltly present the financlat resulls
of the Company for the petiod indicated herein.




CONFIDENT!AL - This document was developed at privale expense and includes Irade secrels and commercial or financiat Information, or
both, that Tesla Motars, [n¢. conslders privileged, tonfidenttat and exemp! from disclosure under {he Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. §
652(b)}).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(l)

Tesla Motors, Ing.

Consolidated Stalement of Cash Fiows

For the Month and Eight Months ended Seplember 39, 2010
(In thousands)

Cash flows Irom Operating activitles

" Refundable re reservatk:r)i paymants

{EETNGY Gash Usea I operaling a¢
Cash flows Investing actvities

“{58,197) 187,697)
5,820 (89,962)
e 77:679)

Non cash aclivilies

Wazrants issued to DOE $ 6,293
Convgrslon of prelerced slock ‘3_'___—-'31972?
Net exercise of preferred slock warrants = &6z
tssuance of common stock warranls 1,7G0

The Company belleves i goed falth that the unaudited financlal statements hareln fairly present Lhe financial
resulis of ihe Company for the pericd Indicated heteln.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or financial information, or
both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C.

§ 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(ii)

Tesla Motors, inc.

Financial Covenants in relation to ATVM Loan Funding Arrangement
In accordance to Annex 9.1 (c¢) {i)

Total current assets as of September 30, 2010 $154,670,000

Total current liabilities as of September 30, 2010 $41,126,000

Current ratio as of September 30, 2010 3.76 >

In accordance to Annex 9.1 (c) (ii)

Cash balance as of September 30, 2010 $96,563,000

Covenant
Requirement
1.40

Covenant
Requirement
$15,000,000
31,642,327 Interest Expense Annualized

Total éash balance $96,563,000 >

$16,642,327




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed ar private expense and includes irade secrets and commercial or
Jinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
undey the Freedom of Information Act (5§ U.S.C. § 552(5)).

Exhibit 8. 1{d)(iv)

Excess Fquitv Proceeds Amount

L. Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of first day of $ 134 MM
petiod included within Financial Statements attached

hereto as Exhibit 8.1(d)i):

2, Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of last day of $ 134 MM
period included within Financial Statements attached
hereto as Exhibit 8.1(d){(i):

3. Difference between Lines 1 and 2: $ 0 MM

Permitted Equity Proceeds Investments (to be included for each transaction):

Describe legal structure of transaction: N/A

Consideration: $0 MM

Investment Amount; $ O MM
Cash Investment Amount: $0MM




Document 12

Mates, Michael

From: Deepak Ahuja (b) (6)

Sent: Monday, November 15, 2010 9:35 PM

To: Mates, Michae!

Cc: Tom vonReichbauer; Mike Taylor; Zachary Kirkhorn
Subject: DOE Reporting for Q3

Attachments: Quarterly Progress Report Q3 2010 {1011 15).pdf; Exhibit A - Tesla Motors Status Report Q3
. 2010 (101115).pdf; Exhibit B - Tesla Motors AUP report Q3 2010.zip; Quarterly Compliance
Certificate Q3 2010 (101115).zip

Mike,
Attached for our Q3 reporting to the DOE are: (1) Quarterly Progress Report, and {2) Quarterly Compliance Certificate.

The Quarterly Progress Report has Exhibit A) which includes our updated Business Plan, and Exhibit B) as our jatest AUP
report for Jan-May 2010 expenses (which we had submitted to you previously).

Please let me know whenever you want to have a follow-up conversation regarding the business plan. Thanks,

Deepalk Ahuia
(b) (6)

From: Zachary Kirkhorn

Sent: Monday, November 15, 2010 5:12 PM
Tao: Deepak Ahuja

Cc: Mike Taylor; Tom vonReichbauer
Subject: RE: DOE Reporting for Q3

Deepak — try this. P've left the documents separate, and only zipped the AUP report and Compliance Certificate as
they're the largest.

-Zach
(b) (6)

Zach Kirkhorn | Operations Finance | S
3500 Deer Creek Rd., Palo Alto, CA 94304 | tel (P) (6)

From: Zachary Kirkhorn

Sent: Monday, November 15, 2010 5:01 PM
To: Deepak Ahuja

Cc: Mike Taylor; Tom vonReichbauer
Subject: RE: DOE Reporting for Q3

Deepak —~

Attached are the two documents for our Q3 submission to the DOE: {1} Quarterly Progress Report, and (2) Quarterly
Compliance Certificate.

Thanks,
Zach
(b) (6)

Zach Kirkhorn | OperationsFinance | _.o.o.ooo oo 00000 .o o
3500 Deer Creek Rd., Palo Alto, CA 94304 | tef(b) (6)




From: Deepak Ahuja

Sent: Sunday, November 14, 2010 7:47 PM
To: Zachary Kirkhom

Cc: Mike Taylor; Tom vonRelchbauer
Subject: RE: DOE Reporting for Q3

Zach,
Looks OK to me. Thanks for pulling this together.

Just want to confirm that we have already shared this AUP report with the DoE.
We will finalize the revised business plan tomorrow and can submit the entire package.

Deepak Ahuja
(b) (6)

From: Zachary Kirkhorn
Sent: Friday, November 12, 2010 3:19 PM
To: Deepak Ahuja

Cc: Mike Taylor; Tom vonReichbauer
Subject: DOE Repotting for Q3

Deepak —

Attached is the draft of the submission for the Q3 quarterly reporting. There are two documents (1) Q3 Compliance
Certificate and (2) Q3 Progress Report. When you and Tom have aligned on the business plan, we'll slot that in as
Exhibit A for the Q3 Progress Report.

The Q3 Progress Report contains both the business plan and progress report, which will be Exhibit A and the AUP results
for the most recent audit (Jan — May 2010 expenses) as Exhibit B.

Please iet me know if you have any questions. Wanted to get this draft in front of you in cause you wanted to make any
changes.

Thanks,
Zach
(b) (6)

Zach Kirkhorn | Operations Finance |
3500 Deer Creek Rd., Palo Alto, CA 94304 1 tet (P) (6)
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Mates, Michael

From: Zachary Kirkhorn [(b) (6) -

Sent: Monday, November 29, 2010 6:30 PM

To!: Mates, Michael

Cc: Deepak Ahuja; Mike Taylor; Rex Liu; Tom vonReichbauer
Subject: Tesla Motors Financial Statements for October 2010
Attachments: Tesla - DOE Compliance Certificate 112910.pdf

Mike,

Attached please find the Tesla Motors financial statements for the month of October 2010 and the accompanying
compliance certificate,

Thanks,
Zach -

Zach Kirkharn | Operations Finance | (b) (6) b) (6
3500 Deer Creek Rd,, Palo Alto, CA 94304 | tef (P) (6)



Document 14

CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Acr (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

(Delivered pursuant to Section 8.1(d) and 8.2(b) of the Loan Arrangement and Reimbursement
Agreement)

Date of this Certificate: December 23, 2010

United States Department of Energy
Atin: Director, Advanced Technology Vehicles Manufacturing Loan Program
Re:  Tesla Motors, Inc,

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This Compliance Certificate is delivered to you pursuant to Sections 8.1(d) and 8.2(bof the Loan
Arrangement and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2010 (the " Asrangement
Agreement™), by and between (i) Tesla Motors, Inc. (the “Borrower”) and (ii) the United States
Department of Energy (“DOE”). '

All capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate shall have their respective meanings
specified in the Arrangement Agreement.

On behalf of the Borrower, 1, Deepak Ahuja, HEREBY CERTIFY that T am the duly elected and
qualified Chief Financial Officer of the Borrower, and FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date
hereof:

1. Pursuant to Section 8, 1(d)() of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(1) are unaudited consolidated Financial Statements of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries for the month ended as of November 30, 2010 and such Financial Statements
fairty present, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Borrower and its

- Subsidiaries as at the date indicated and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the period indicated, in conformity with GAAP applied on a basis consistent
with prior years, subject to the absence of notes fo the financial statements and changes
resulting from normal audit and year-end adjustments, except as noted in the following
sentence. In addition to the foregoing, the attached Financial Statements do not comply
with GAAP as a result of normal adjustments that are recorded on a quarterly basis;

2. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(i1} of the Arrangement Agreement, no Defauli or Event of
Default has occutred;

3. Pursuant to Section 8. 1(d)(iii) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(iii) are computations in reasonable detail demonstrating that the Borrower is in
compliance with the covenants set forth in Annex 9.1 of the Arrangement Agreement to
the extent such covenants are applicable to the period included within the attached
Financial Statements; and




CONTFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commiercial or
Sfinancial information, or boih, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 352(b)).

4, Pursuant to Section 8.1(d){iv) of the Arrangement Agreement, Exhibit 8. 1{d)(iv) attached
hereto shows the applicable Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of the first day of the
period included within the attached Financial Statements, as of the last day of such period

“and the difference between such amounis, together with a summary of the Investment
Amount, Cash Investment Amount, consideration and legal structure of each Permitted
Equity Proceeds Investments made during such period.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undexsigned has executed this Compliance Certificate as of the
date first written abave.

TESLA MOTORS, INC.

o
By:

1

Name: Deepak Ahuja

Title: CFQO

[Signature page to Borrower Ceriificate (Closing)]




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and inchides trade secrets and commercial or
Jinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
uider the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(3)

Financial Statemenis




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed &1 piivate expense and Includes trade secrels and
commerctal or financial informallon, or bolh, thal Tesla Motots, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and
exampl from disclosure under the Freedom of informalion Act (5 U.S.G, § 552{(h)).

Exhlbit 8. 1{a)i)

Tesla Motars, Inc.
Consoltdaled Balance Sheet

As of November 30, 2010
{In thousangs}

- Nov.10
Assels {Unaudited)

Currenl Assets —

"""" Invenlog
HiBTeRalg eypensed and olhoralien; Assalsi
Tolal current assets

Property and equh l.
SRl v

Olher assets
g

- Llabliilles and Stockholders' Equity (Deficl)
Cunent Liabulrl!es

&® _iszlexi??izéﬁu” et
Capllal lease ob qygqs. current portton
IRl EEEVAGH PaY N = g
Total current iiabililies 78,351
EGommanSiseRWaiARtlEb = D 3;@15"5

Capliat lease obligalions, Iess current

{EEongHi qeRe T = ] EU
Delerred réeyenus, Iess cur!eni ponlon 2, 739
FEOITeHonp e s B e EEes Ny L]
Tolal liabllittes 157,813

Stockholders* equll)lgllcﬂ)

SR T

EEommon slock =

_Additional al pald in capial
2y VY BT Bl [

QTalﬁié_ﬁh@lﬂgliﬁ

ol iablies And.

The Company believes in good faith thal the unaudited financlal slatements herein laitly present
the linanclal resulls of tho Company as of the date Indlcated herain.




CONFIDENT!AL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrels and
commercial or financial information, or both, that Tesla Molars, Inc. considers privileged, confidential
and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhlbit 8.1(d)(l)

Tesla Motors, Inc
Consoclldated Statements of Operatlons
For the Month and Elaeven Months ended November 30, 2010

{In thousands)
- Nov-10-. = YTD 2019
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
Revenue

FRUISTOI R EaTEs®

S e 0I078 e 0171834

Cost of ravenues ~ ——
@1@6&2 (R et e o e ——

PR s e L v s T L Tk

(B prolltE L

Operaling oxpenses

(SRR oAy
i

HOperang:
HinierpRfema s

Interest oxpanse

oo ey

e R

)

If

E;—rea. Eey Y2 erd

The Company belleves [ good failh that ihe unauditad financial slalements hereln lalrly present the financial results
of the Gompany for the perlod indicated herein,




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed al private expense and Includes irade sacrels and commercial or financlal Informalier, of
both, thal Testa Molors, nc. considers piivileged, confidential and exempt from disclosura under the Freedom of Inlormation Acl {5 U.S.C. §
652(b)).

Extlblt 8.5(d)()

Tesla Molors, Ine,

Consolidaled Sfatement of Cash Flows

Far the Month and Eloveh Months ended November 30, 2010
{in thausands)

Cash flows from Operallng actliviiles
" Nelloss

G e

used in pmv}ded by aperallng activilies:
Depieciauon A amoniaalion= s e
Chango ink falr value ot pielaned slock

Rﬁ»

D

SR

xher !oqg lorm | I(abmhes

Bl Eap s ale A AR R

led tevenue

R mefﬂﬁﬂ.%'ﬁ@fmaﬁﬁ’ pasieiew S A

Neat cash used in aperaling activilies

Cash flows from Invesilng acilvliles R ) o
RURRages Gl 7Iopeny and equIpre e poan CAPAL S ass S e e o E
Increase {dectease) In reslricled cash deposils

e S

Cash flows lmm Flnanclng aotivitles

Proceads !mm lssuance of convenlible notes and. warrants

0 T S T e R e e

Proceeds from lssuance of of common slock

SIBITE s L § (N A B = awi.ﬁe:&@‘%
Pmceeds fram 1PO and privale acement 2:!8 842

m@p&ﬁ@anmm@f@“%}mﬂéﬁ 5
lssugnce cosls R
e aash i '“ummcj

Nan cash aclivilles

Warrants issuad to DOE $ 6,299
Conversioh of prefetred stoek 319,225
Nel exercise ol prelerred slock warrants 8,962
Isstrance of common slock wariants u—=1“%0“

The Company beileves [ngood falih that ihe unaudited financial stalements herefn talrly present the financtal
tosulls of the Company for the peried indicated herein.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was daveloped at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or financial information,
or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc, considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5
U.S.C. § 552(b)). '

Exhibit 8.1(d){jii)

Tesla Motors, Inc.

Financizal Covenants in relation to ATVM Loan Funding Arrangement
In accordance to Annex 9.1 (c} (i)

Total current assets as of November 30, 2010 $251,689,000

Total current liabilities as of November 30, 20° $46,985,000 Covenant
’ Requirement
Current ratio as of November 30, 2010 536 > 1.40

In accordance to Annex 9.1 (¢) {ii}
Covenant
Cash hzlance as of November 30, 2010 $104,558,000 Requirement
. $15,000,000
$1,778,002 Interest Expense Annualized
Total Cash Balance $104,558,000 = $16,779,002




CONFIDENTIAL - This docwwent was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
financial infornation, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)). _

Exhibit 8.1(d){(iv)

Excess Equity Proceeds Amount

1. Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of first day of $ 134 MM
period included within Financial Statements attached

hereto as Exhibit 8.1(d)(i);

2. Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of last day of $ 164 MM
period included within Financial Statements attached

hereto as Exhibit 8,1(d)(i):
3. Difference between Lines 1 and 2: $30 MM

Permitted Equity Proceeds Investments (to be included for each transaction):

Describe legal structure of transaction: N/A

Consideration; $O0MM

Investment Amount: $0MM

Cash Investment Amount: $ 0 MM




Document 15

Mates, Michael

From: Zachary Kirkhorn [(b) 6) _

Sent: Wednesday, January 26, 2011 6:12 PM

To: Mates, Michael

Cc: Deepak Ahuja; Mike Taylor; Rex Liu; Tom vonReichbauer
Subject: Tesla Motors Financial Statements for December 2010
Attachments: Tesla - DOE Compliance Certificate 012611v2.pdf

Mike,

Attached please find the Tesla Motors financial statements for the month of December 2010 and the accompanying
compliance certificate.

Thanks,
Zach
(b) (6)

Zach Kirkhorn | Operations Finance |
3500 Deer Creek Rd., Palo Alto, CA 94304 | tel (D) (6)



Document 16

CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and tncludes irade secrets and commercial or
Jinanclal information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 US.C. § 552(B)),

FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

(Delivered pursuant to Section 8.1(d) and 8.2(b} of the Loan Arrangement and Reimbursement
Agreement)

Date of this Certificate: January 26, 2011

United States Department of Energy
Attn:  Director, Advanced Technology Vehicles Manufacturing Loan Program
Re:  Tesla Motors, Inc.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This Compliance Certificate is delivered to you pursuant to Sections 8.1(d) and 8.2(b)of the Loan
Arrangement and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2010 (the "Arrangement
Apgreement"), by and between (i) Tesla Motors, Ing, (the “Borrower™) and (ii) the United States
Department of Energy (“DOE”).

All capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate shall have their respective meanings
specified in the Arrangement Agreement.

On behalf of the Borrowet, I, Deepak Ahuja, HEREBY CERTIRY that I am the duly elected and
gualified Chief Financial Officer of the Borrower, and FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date
hereof?

1. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(i) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(i) are unaudited consolidated Financial Statements of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries for the month ended as of December 31, 2010 and such Financial Statements
fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries as at the date indicated and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the period indicated, in conformity with GAAP applied on a basis consistent
with prior years, subject to the absence of notes to the financial statements and changes
resulting from normal audit and year-end adjustments, except as noted in the following
sentence. In addition to the foregoing, the attached Financial Statements do not comply
with GAAP as a resulf of normal adjustments that are recorded on a quarterly basis;

2. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(ii) of the Arrangement Agreement, no Default or Event of
Default has occurred;

3. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)iii) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d){jii) are computations in reasonable detail demonstrating that the Borrower is in
compliance with the covenants set forth in Annex 9.1 of the Arrangement Agreement to
the extent such covenants are applicable to the period included within the attached
Financial Statements; and




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes frade secrets and commercial or
JSinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Ine. considers privileged, confidential and exempt firom disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 US.C. § 352(b)). i

4, Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(iv} of the Arrangement Agreement, Exhibitf 8.1(d)(iv) attached
" hereto shows the applicable Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of the first day of the !
period included within the attached Financial Statements, as of the last day of such period
and the difference between such amounts, together with a summary of the Investment
Amount, Cash Investment Amount, consideration and legal structure of cach Permitted
Equity Proceeds Investments made during such period.




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executed this Compliance Certificate as of the
date first written above,

TESLA MOTORS, INC,

By:

- {

Name: Deepak Ahuja

Title: CFO

[Signature page 1o Borrower Cerfificate (Closing)]




CONFIDENTIAL -~ THs document was developed at private expense and tncludes trade secrets and commercial or
Jinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (3 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(i

Financial Statements




=

CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed al private expense and Includes irade secrets and
commerclal or financial informalion, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and
exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act {5 U.S.C. § 652(b)).

Exhiblt 8.4(d)()

Tesla Motors, Inc.
Consolldated Balance Sheot
As of Decombor 31, 2010

{In thousands)

Assots {Unaudited)
CumAsse(s _ o .
?"qg@fmﬁﬁ SR
Reslricted cash 73,597
ﬁ[‘n’fg%nlofy 45 183
ald:e 25538

Total curre n! assets

Pre rly and equi men!v net

Olher assels

Liabllities and Stockholders' Equity (Dedlcit)
Gurfenl L!eblhlies o

Totalllabllltles e Y

Skockholdefs equl A (deﬁoﬂ)

Addll!ona! ald In capilal ~
(ARl

The Company believes In good faith that the unaudited financial statements herein fairly present
the financial results of the Company as of the date Indicaled herein,




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and
cornmercial or financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential
and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of information Act (6 U.S.C. § 5562(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(i)

Tesla Motors, Inc

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Month and Twelve Months ended December 31, 2010
{In thousands)

3 " iDeca0 - L YTD2010

{Unaudiled) (Unaudited)

Revenua

. w = e Lo

festincome sz
rest expense
teriicome (expe

The Company believes In good faith that the unaudited financial statements hereln faltly present the financial results
of the Company for the period indicated herein.




CONFIDENTIAL - This decument was developed at private expense and includes trade secrels and commercial or financial information, or
both, that Tesla Motars, Inc. considers privileged, confidentlal and exempt from disclosure under the Freedem of Information Act (5 U.S.C. §
852(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)()

Tesla Motors, Inc.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Month and Twelve Months ended December 31, 2010
{in thousands)

TYID 20107

Cash flows frem Operating activities
Nelloss e, . M oy

SLems

b : T ~> TETaE 5 ‘.1 -‘.
Chan es m ope ratmg assels and Ifabi!ItIes-
(gz 911)
m COTADIAEse s as fﬁ‘zﬁ‘&%’%’ﬁ@

8,308)

@3‘

=2iDeleiTe
Deferred revenue

B R s R et ivaliot payioents

Net cash used in operating activilies

cash nows Irom Inveallngv actlvlﬂes ]
increase gdecrease) in res!rlcted cash deBoslm
(BN eaInnvesting!

Issuance cosls

N 51?63 ﬁmﬁ GO BEUVIES 7

Non cash activities
Warranls issued to DOE

Coaversion of praferred stock A
Net exerclse of preferred stock warrants 6,982
Issuanca of common stock warrants 15700

The Campany believes in good faith that the unaudited finznclal stalemenls herein faidy present tha financial
resulis of the Company for the penod Indicated hereln,




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or financial fnfonnation,
or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5

U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1{d)(iii)

Tesla Motors, Inc.

Financial Covenants in relation to ATVM Loan Funding Arrangement
In accordance to Annex 8.1 (¢} {i}

Total current assets as of December 31, 2010 $235,836,000

Total current fiabilities as of December 31, 201! $54,420,000 Covenant
Reguirement
Current ratio as of December 31, 2010 433 > 1.40

In accordance to Annex 9.1 (¢} (ii)
Covenant
Cash balance as of December 31, 2010 $99,558,000 Requirement
$15,000,000
$2,006,319 Interest Expense Annualized
Tetal Cash Balance $98,558,000 > $17,006,319




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed af private expense and ineludes irade secrets and commercial or
Jinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information det (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d){iv}
Excess Equity Proceeds Amount

1. Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of fiist day of $ 164 MM
period included within Financial Statements attached
hereto as Exhibit 8. 1(d)(i):

2. Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of last day of $ 164 MM
period included within Financial Statements attached
hereto as Exhibit 8.1(d)(i):

|

|

3. Difference between Lines 1 and 2 $ oMM ' i
Permitted Equity Proceeds Investments (to be included for each transaction): ‘
Describe legal structure of transaction: N/A ‘

Consideration; ' $oMM ‘

Investment Amount; $ 0 MM
Cash Investment Amount; $0MM




Document 17

Mates, Michael

From: Zachary Kirkhorn l(b) (6)

Sent: Friday, February 18, 2011 5:20 PM

To: Mates, Michael

Cc: Deepak Ahuja; Mike Taylor; Rex Liu; Tom vonReichbauer

Subject: Tesla Motors Financial Statements for Q4 2010

Attachments: Tesla - DOE Quarterly Compliance Certificate Q4 2010 (110218).pdf
Mike,

Attached please find the Tesla Motors financial statements for Q4 2010 and the accompanying compliance certificate.

Thanks,
Zach

2ach Kirkhorn | Operations Finance |(b) (6)“ o
3500 Deer Creek Rd., Palo Alto, CA 94304 i tel (B) (6)



Document 18

CONFIDENTIAL - This document seas developed at private expense and includes trade seerets and commercial or
Jinaicial information, or both, that Tesla Meotors, hie. considers privileged, confidential and exempt fran disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (> US.C. § 532(b)).

FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

(Delivered pursuant to Section 8.1(d) and 8.2(b) of the Loan Arrangement and Reimbursement
Agrecement)

Date of this Certificate; March 1, 2011

United States Department of Energy
Attn:  Director, Advanced Technology Vebicles Manufactuying Loan Program
Re:  Tesla Motors, Inc.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This Compliance Certificate is delivered to you pursnant to Sections 8. 1{d) and 8.2(b)of the Loan
Arrangement and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of Jannary 20,.2010 (the "Arrangement
Agregment”), by and between (i) Tesla Motors, Inc. (the “Borrower™) and (ii) the United States
Department of Encrgy (“DOE").

All capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate shall have their respective meanings
specified in the Arrangement Agreement.

On behalf of the Borrower, 1, Deepak Ahuja, HEREBY CERTIFY that I am.the duly elected and
qualified Chief Financial Officer of the Borrower, and FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of tlie date
hereof:

1, Pursnant to Section 8. 1{d)(i) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)() are unaudited consolidated Financial Statements of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries for the month ended as of January 31, 2011 and such Financial Statements
fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries as at the date indicated and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the period indicated, in conformity with GAAP applied on a basis consistent
with prior years, subject to the absence of uotes to the financial statements and-changes
resulting from normal audit and year-end adjustnents, exceplt as noted in the following
sentence. In addition to the forcgoing, the attached Financial Statements do not comply
with GAAP as a result of normal adjustments that are recorded on a quarterly basis;

2. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(ii) of the Arrangement Agrecment, no Default or Event of
Default has occurred;

w

Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(iii) of the Arrangement Agreement, atlached hereta as Exhibit
8. 1(ch(dii) are computations in reasonable detail démonstrating that the Borrower is in
compliance with the covenants set forth in Annex 9.1 of the Arrangement Agreement to
the extent such covenants are applicable to the period included within the attached
Financial Statements; and




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and ineludes trade secrets and conmercial ar
Jinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Ine. considers privileged, confidential apd exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (3 US.C. § 552{b}),

4, Pursoant to Section 8. L{cd){(iv) of the Arrangement Agreement, Exhibit 8. 1(d}(iv) attached
hereto shows the applicable Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of the first day of the
period included within the attached Financial Statements, as of the last day of such period
and the difference between such amounts, together with g sununary of the Investment
Amount, Cash Investment Amount, consideration and legal structure of each Permitted
Equity Proceeds Investments made during such period.

i
i
|
|
!




IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the undersigned has executed this Compliance Certificate as of the
date first written above,

TESLA MOTORS, INC.

By: ___ ”

Name: Deepak Ahuia

Title: CFO

[Signatire page to Borrower Cettificate (Closing)]




CONFIDENTIAL - This dovtnent wus developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and conunercial or
financial informarion, or botls, that Tesla Motors, Ine. cansiders privileged, confidential and exeinpt from disclasure
under the Freedom of lnformation Act {5 U.S.C. § 552(h)}

Exhibit 8.1(d)(3)

Financial Statements




GONFIDENTIAL - This document was daveloped al privale expense and Includes frade sedrels and
commercial or financial information, or both, that Testa Motors, (ne. considers privileged, conlidential and
exempt from disclosure under the Fresdom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit B.1{d)(i)

Tesla Molors, Inc.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2011

(in thousands)

Assets {Unaudited)
Current Assets

al liabl!l!iaé o ’ 174,607

Slockholdels equliy (dehcil)

ckholders equity (de

5Tt Habilities And.S10ekit

The Company believes in good faith that the unaudiled financial stalements herein faldy present
the tinancial resuits of the Compeny as of the dale indicated herein,




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade sécrets and
commercial or financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential
and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(i)

Tesla Motors, Inc

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Monlh and One Month ended January 31, 2011
{In thousands) -

(Unaudited) {Unaudited)

Revenwe ...

Cost of revenues
ve

The Company beligves in good faith that the unaudiled financial statements herein fairly present the financial resufis
of the Company for the period indicated herein.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and inclucdés trade secrels and commerctal or financial inigrmalion, or

toth, that Tesla Molors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of information Act (5 1).8.C. §
552(b)).

Exhiblt 8,1(c)l})

Tesia Motors, Inc.

Consolidated Staiemen! of Cash Flows

For the Month and One Month ended Jansiary 31, 2011
{in thousands)

) (Unatidited)
Cash flows from Operating aclivilies

“used in provlded by operating aclivities:
‘Dapreciatio

‘Sng)e
(5,054)
SER)

Net cash used in opera ing aclivilies {29,126) (28,126)

Cash flows from invesiing activities

‘Prchasés. ok proper y-’qn& equipiiia)

MNon cash activities

The Company beliavas i goed {aith 1hat the unaudiled financial statements herein fairdy present the financial
resulls.of the Company for the pedod indicaled herein.




‘CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes frade secrets and commérdial or financial information,
or both, that Tesla Motors, [nc. conslders privileged. confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act {5
U.S.C §552(b)).

Exhibit 8,1(d)(iif)

Tesla Motors, Inc.

Financial Covenants in relation to ATVH Loan Funding Arrangement

In accordance to Annex 8,1 (c) (i)

Total current assets as of January 31, 2011 $209,344,000
Total eurrent liabilities as of January 31, 2011 $47,173,000 Covenant
Requirement

Current ratio as of January 31, 2011 444 > 1.40
In accotdance to Annex 3.1 {¢) (i} _ _

_ _ Covenant
Cash balance as of January- 31, 2011 $66,652,000 Requirement

$15,000,000

$2,005,230 Interest Expense Anhualized
Total Pro Forma Cash Balahce $66.652,000 > §17.005,230




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secreis and conpnercial or
Jinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
wunder the Freedom of Information At (5 US.C, § 352(h)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(iv)

Excess Equity Proceeds Amount

1. Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of first day of $ 164 MM
period included within Financial Statements attached
hereto as Exhibit 8. Hd){i):

2, Excess Bquity Proceeds Amount as of last day of $ 164 MM
period included within Financial Statements attached
hereto as Exhibit 8. 1{c{i):

3. Diffcrence betiwveen Lines 1 and 2: 30 MM

Permitted Equily Proceeds Investiments (1o be included for each transaclion):

Describe legal structure of transaction: N/A

Consideration: $0MM

Investment Amount: $0 MM

Cash Investment Amount: $0MM




Document 19

CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets aud commercial or
Ninancial information, or both, that Tesla Movors, Ine. considers priviléged, confidential amd exenynt frow disclosure
unddér the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C, § 532(b)}.

FORM OT COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

(Delivered pursuant to Section 8. 1(d) and 8.2(b} of the Loan Arrangement and Reimbursement
Agreement)

Date of this Certificate: March |, 2011

United States Departinent of Energy
Altn: Director, Advanced Technology Vehicles Manufacturing Loan Program
Re:  Tesla Motors, Inc.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This Compliance Certificate is delivered to you pursuant to Sections 8.1(d) and 8.2(b)of the Loan
Arrangenient and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2010 (the "Arrangement
Agreement”), by and between 4) Tesla Motors, Inc. (the “Borrower™) and (ii) the United States
Department of Energy (“DOE™).

All capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate shall have their respective meanings
speeified in the Arrangement Agreement.

On behalf of the Borrower, 1, Deepak Ahuja, HEREBY CERTIFY that 1 am the duly elected and
gualified Chief Financial Officer of the Borrower, and FURTHER CERTIFY that, ds of (he date
hereof:

1, Pursuant to Section 8. L{d)(i) of the Arrangement Agreement, atlached hereto as Exhibit
8. 1(&)(3) are unaudited consolidated Financial Statements of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries for the month ended as of January 31, 2011 and such Financial Statements
fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries as at the date indicated and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the period indicated, in conformity with GAAP applied on a basis consistent
with prior years, subject to the absence of notes fo the financial statements and changes
resulting from normal audit and year-end adjustments, except as noted in the following
sentence. In addition to the foregoing, the atiached Financial Statements do not comply
with GAAP as a result of normal adjustiments that are recorded on a quarterly basis;

2. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(ii) of the Arrangement Agreement, no Default or Event of
Defanlt has oceurred;

3. Pursuant to Section 8.1(cd)(iii) of the Arrangement Agreement, atlached hereto as Exhibit
8.1{d)(iii) are computations in reasonable detail demonstraling that the Borrower is in
complance with the covenants set forth in Annex 9.1 of the Arrangement Agreement to
the extent such covenants are applicable to the period inclnded within the attached
Financial Statements; and




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense wid incliedes frade secrets and commercial or
Jinanctal information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, cotfidential and exempi from diselosure
nnder the Freedom of Information Act (3-U.8.C. § 352(1)}.

4. Pursiant to Section 8. 1(d)(iv) of the Anangement Agreement, Exhibit 8. 1(d)(iv) attached
hercto shows the applicable Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of the first day of the
period included within the attached Financial Statements, as of the last day of such period
and the difference between such amounts, together with a summary of the Investment
Amount, Cash Investment Amount, consideration and legal structure of each Permitted
Equity Proceeds Investments niade during such period.




IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the undersigned has executed this Compliance Certificate as of the
date first written above.

TESLA MoTORS, INC.

Name: Deepak Ahuia

By:

Title: CFO

{Signatire page to Borrower-C'erfUh-me (Closing)]




CONFIDENTIAL - This documens was developed af private expense and inclitdes trade secrets and conmmercial or
financial information, or both, that Tesla Moters, nc. considers privileged, confiddential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom af Inforination Act (5 US.C. §552(h}).

Exhibit 8. L{(d)(1)

Financial Statements




GONFIDENTIAL - This decumen! was developed at private expense and includes trade secrels and
commercial or financial information, of both, that Tesla Molars, inc. considers privileged, confidentiat and
exempt from disclosuée under the Fraadom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit B.1(d)1)

Fesla Motors, lno.
Consolidated Balance Sheet
As of January 31, 2011

(In housands)

Assels
Cuirent Assels

pald edpenses and oiharcinent assets:
Total current assels

W iliftes
" Total !iablmles

Stockholders equity (delicit}

The Company beliaves in good faith {thal the unaudilad financial slatements herein faldy present
the financial results of the Company as ol the dale indicated herein.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secréts and
commercial or financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, conlfidential
and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Intormation Act {5 U.S.C. § 552(b}).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(i)

Tesla Motors, Inc

Consolidated Stalements of Operalions

For the Monlh and One Month ended January 31, 2014
{In thousands})

Reianue
UG

ol rovenuss

Gost of revenues
| Adisiolve:

Operaling expenses
g evelapment

The Company believes in good faith thal the unaudited financial statemanits herein falrly present the financial results
of the Company-lor the period indicated herein.




CONFIDENTIAL - This docunent was developed al privale expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or financial information, or
bolh, that Testa Molors, Inc. considers privileged, conlidantial and exempt {rom disclosure under Ihie Freedom of Informalion Acl (6 U.S.C. §
552(h)).

Exbibit B.1{a)(1)

Teslta Motors, inc.

Cotisolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the Month and One Month ended January 31, 2011
{in thousands)

(naudfed) (Un‘auled)
Cash ilows from Operaling activilies
Net loss $ {14,817} 3 (14,917)

il\Véh{Uiy. e .
“Prapaid expentsas anidiSiHer cujient Assets

Accounls payable
 fabllilies:

Mot cash activities

The Company believes in good faith thal the unaudilgd financial stalemenls herein failly present the financial
results. of the Company for the petiod indicaled herein,




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or financial information,
or both, that Tesla Motors, Ing. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of Information Act (5
U.S.C. § 552(b}).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(iii)

Tesla Motors, Inc.

Financial Covenants in relation to ATVM Loan Funding Arrangement

In accordance to Annex 8.1 (c) (i)

Total current zssets as of January 31, 2011 $209,344,000
Total current liabilities as of January 31, 2011 $47,173,000 Covenant

Requirement
Current ratio as.cf Jartuary 31, 2011 444 > 1.40
In accordance to Annex 9.1 (¢) {ii}

Caovenant
Cash balance as of January 31, 2011 $68,652,C00 Requirement
$15,000,600

$2,005,230 Interest Expense Annualized
Total Pro Forma Cash Baiance $66,652,000 > $17.605,230




CONFIDENTIAL - This docrunent was developed af private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Sinancial inforimation, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempi from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 {1.5.C. § 5352({b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)(iv)

Excess Equity Proceeds Amount

1. Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of first day of $ 164 MM
period included within Financial Statements attached
hereto as Exhibit 8.1 (d)i):

2, Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of last day of $ 164 MM
period included within Financial Statements attached
hereto as BExhibit 8. 1{d)(3):

3. Difference between Lines 1 and 2: $OMM

Permitted Equity Proceeds Investments (to be included for each transaction):

Describe legal structure of transaction: N/A

Consideration: $ 0 MM

Tnvestment Amount: SoMM

Cash Tnvestment Amount: $0 MM




Document 20

CONFIDENTIAL - This docuntent was developed at private expense and incliudes trade secrets and commercial or
Sinancial information, or bath, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

(Delivered pursnant to Section 8. 1(d) and 8.2(b) of the Loan Arrangement and Reimbursement
Agreement)

Date of this Certificate; March 30, 2011

United States Department of Energy
Attn:  Director, Advanced Technology Vehicles Manufacturing Loan Program
Re: Tesla Motors, Inc.

Tadies and Gentlemen:

This Compliance Certificate is delivered to yon pursuant to Seclions 8.1(dj and 8.2(b)of the Loan
Arrangement and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2010 (the "Arranpement
Agreement"), by and between (i) Tesla Motors, Inc. (the “Borrower™) and (i) the United States
Department of Energy (“DOE™).

All capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate shall have their respective meanings
specified in the Arrangement Agreement.

On behalf of the Borrower, 1, Deepak Ahuja, HEREBY CERTIFY that 1 am the duly elected and
qualified Chief Financial Officer of the Borrower, and FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date
hereof:

1. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(3} of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(i) are unaudited consolidated Financial Statements of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries for the month ended as of February 28, 2011 and such Financial Statements
fairly present, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries as at the date indicated and the results of their operations and their cash
flows for the period indicated, in conformity with GAAP applied on a basis consistent
with prior years, subject to the absence of notes to the financial statements and changes
sesulting from normal audit and year-end adjustments, except as noted in the following
sentence. In addition to the foregoing, the attached Financial Statements do not comply
with GAAP as a result of normal adjustments that are recorded on a quarterly basis;

2. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(i) of the Arrangement Agreement, no Default or Event of
Defanlt has occurred;

3. Pursuant to Section 8. 1{d)(iii) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(d)(iii) are computations in reasonable detail demonstrating that the Borrower is in
compliance with the covenants set forth in Annex 9.1 of the Arrangement Agreement to
the extent such covenants are applicable to the period included within the attached
Financial Statements; and




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Sinancial iuformation, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inec. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 352(b)).

4. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(iv) of the Arrangement Agreement, Exhibit 8. 1{d)(iv) attached
hereto shows the applicable Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of the first day of the
period included within the attached Financial Statements, as of the last day of such periad
and the difference belween such amounts, together with a summary of the Investiment
Amount, Cash Investment Amount, consideration and legal structure of each Permitted
Equity Proceeds Investments made during such period.




IN WITNESS WHEREOFY, the undersigned has executed this Compliance Cestificate as of the
date first written above.

TESLA MOTORS, INC.

By:

Name: Deepak Ahuija

Title;: CFO

{Signature page to Borrower Certificate (Closing))




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes frade secrets and commercial or
finaneial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc, considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(d)()

Financial Statements




CONFIBENTIAL - This document was developed at privale expense and includes trade secrots and
commercial or financial informalicn, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and
exempl from disclosura uader the Freedom of Information Act (5 U.S.C. § 552(b)).

Exhiblt 8.1(d){1)

Tesla Motors, Inc,

Censolidated Balance Sheet

As of February 28, 2011 - - -
{In thousands)

Assels {Unaudited)
Current Assals

fopravomttama

Inventary N
S e R iy e o]
epaitierponssTand ol
Total current assets

a0 e s )
O e A e =45 ?Eﬁ‘%m?i% S
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Bl GeRe G SEIVAIBT REe s S
Taral current liabilities 83,641
G O R e e e
Gapital iease ) 483
Flonaemidsbi -t niamEsae T = 8715
_ venue, les 2953
Eheriong et SR e R iy
Tolal liabilitles 193,338

Stockholders'oquily Geflcl)
FaGominon e SR R R
Additional pald in capital
oR o a1 = 15 > L=

[eelariy; w] TR A

624,805
580
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[t S

e Total SqekBldarstedtiy

BN R L L S RSB U e 8 e

The Company believes in good falih that the unaudited finanelal stalements hereln fairly present
the financial results of the Gompany as of lhe dale indicated herein.




CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and
commeracial or financial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential
and exempt from disclosure under the Freedom of information Act {5 U.5.C. § 552(b)}.

Exhibit 8.3(d){l)

Tesla Molors, Inc

Consolidated Statements of Operations

For the Month and two Monlhs ended February 28, 2011
{in thousands)

Tent SERACES SEs Ty

B A AT T Ry R et A AN P e i
e s

S
o A

S s s s s s ks S e s
D g t{\g_‘. R ot e
G WiBbeie b BT e e e e

Operatlng expenses

el el e

S e P 7 2 DLy ey s e
DO AMIDEVAINE o S s T BV

ToRgaa oSS

Snlemsie AL

Tt I

Interest expanse

pein ORI e e

o

The Gompany believas in goad failh tha! the unaudited tinancial statements herain falrly present the financlal resulls
of the Company for \he period indicated herein.
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Exhibit 8.1(d)(1)

Tesla Motors, Inc.

Consolidated Stalement of Cash Flows

For the Month and (wo Months ended February 28, 2011
{ln thousands)

Cash flows from Qperating activities
Net loss

Adjisimans g cntlene oSS o Telas ey

used in provided hy operating aclivitis:

‘Depratialion and anbrAlion:

perating assets an

S i
Joventory 5,532_“8?
G ERpBIS kgl

SR
{495)

1,105

—Tiread e D A.i% Qdﬁ:-ﬂ — .
Other long lerm Habilities

Delnetevenuo e, e
Refundable reservation payment
Net cash used In operating activilles (9,825) (38,854)

Cash flows from lnvesling activitles

ipreasss ok pionsily and ealp et exelUan CapIarjeasess e i (G ARY) S
increase (decrease) in resliicted ¢ 15,405
e ST Wﬂévllgﬁ\::jv 7 ot =R, e

Cash flows from Financin acllgigesw_

FroteadE roTole Ayl e e S e T R R IR S S R BRRES
Proceeds from [ssuance of commeon stack e ) . 2,172 - 2,672
rRChal PO CApTAIenSs SRt o ler de B S S P R S e R G T R S Y]

Net cash provided by financing aclivities

S R LR R TR S
RS g AN eI Dl PR s e
R RS S RS

Non cash aclivilies

S

The Company believes in good failh thal the unatidiled financlal statements hereln fairly present the financial
restlts of the Carnpany for the period indicated herein,
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Exhibit 8.1(d)(iif)

Tesla Motors, Inc.

Financial Covenants in relation to ATV Loan Funding Arrangemen?
In accordance to Annex 9.1 {¢) (i)

Total current assets as of February 28, 2011 $210,617,000

Total current liabilities as of February 28, 2011 $47,037,00C Covenant
Requirement
Current ratio as of February 28, 2011 448 > 1.40

In accordance to Annex 9.1 {c} (ii)
Covenant
Cash balance as of February 28, 2011 $83,480,000 Requirement
$15,000,000
$2,884,774 Interest Expense Annuaiized
Total Pro Forma Cash Balance $83,480,000 > $17,864,774
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Exhibit 8.1(d)(iv)

Hxcess Eguity Proceeds Amount

1. Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of first day of $ 164 MM
peried included within Financial Statements attached
hereto as Exhibit 8.1(d}(i):

2, Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of last day of $ 164 MM
period included within Financial Statements attached
hereto as Exhibit 8. 1(d)():

3. Difference belween Lines | and 2: $ 0 MM
Permitted Equity Proceeds Investments (to be included for each transaction):
Describe legal structure of transaction: N/A
Consideration: $ 0 MM

Investment Amount; $0MM

Cash Investment Amount; $O0MM
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FORM OF COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE

(Delivered putsuant to Section 8.1(d)} and 8.2(b) of the Loan Arrangement and Reimbursement
Agreement)

Date of this Certificate: March 30, 2011

United States Department of Energy
Attn:  Director, Advanced Technology Vehicles Manufacturing Loan Program
Re:  Tesla Moftors, Ing.

Ladies and Gentlemen:

This Compliance Certificate is delivered to you pursuant to Sections 8.1(d) and 8.2(b)of the Loan
Arrangement and Reimbursement A greement, dated as of January 20, 2010 (the "Arrangement
Agreement”), by and between (i) Tesla Motors, Inc. (the “Borrower™) and (ii) the United States
Department of Energy (“DOE™).

All capitalized terms used in this Compliance Certificate shall have their respective meanings
specified in the Arrangement Agreement.

On behalf of the Borrower, 1, Deepak Ahuja, HEREBY CERTIFY that L am the duly elected and
qualified Chief Financial Officer of the Borrower, and FURTHER CERTIFY that, as of the date

hereof:
1. Pursuant to Section 8,1(c) of the Arrangement Agreement, the borrower hereby supplies:
o DExhibit 8.1(c)(1): Audited consolidated Financial Statements for 2010

o Exhibit 8,1(c)(ii): Unaudited Consolidating Financial Statements for 2010

o Exhibit 8.1(c)(iv): Audit Report from PwC

o Exhibit 8.1(c)(v): Management Representation Letter -

o Exhibit 8.1(c)(vi}: No Default Letier from PwC

2. Pursvant to Section 8.1(d)(i) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
8.1(c)(ii) are unaudited consolidated Financial Statements of the Borrower and its
Subsidiaries for the Fiscal Year ended as of December 31, 2010 and such Financial
Statements faitly present, in all material respects, the financial condition of the Borrower
and its Subsidiaries as at the date indicated and the results of their operations and their
cash flows for the period indicated, in conformity with GAAP applied on a basis
consistent with prior years, subject to the absence of notes to the financial statements and
changes resulting from normal audit and year-end adjustments, except as noted in the
following sentence. In addition to the foregoing, the attached Financial Statements do not
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comply with GAAP as a result of normal adjustments that are recorded on a quarterly
basis;

3. Pursuant to Section 8.1(d)(ii) of the Arrangement Agreement, no Default or Event of
Default has occurred,

4, Pursuant to Section 8. 1{d)(iii) of the Arrangement Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit
- 8.1(d)(iii) are computations in reasonable detail demonstrating that the Borrower is in
compliance with the covenants set forth in Annex 9.1 of the Arrangement Agreement to
the extent such covenants are applicable to the period included within the attached
Financial Statements; and

5. Pursuant to Section 8. 1{d)(iv) of the Arrangement Agreement, Exhibit 8.1(d)iv) attached
hereto shows the applicable Excess Equity Proceeds Amount as of the first day of the
period included within the attached Financial Statements, as of the last day of such period
and the difference between such amounts, together with a summary of the Investment
Amount, Cash Investment Amourt, consideration and legal structure of each Permitted
Equity Proceeds Investments made during such period.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the undersigned has executed this Compliance Certificate as of the
date first written above,

TESLA MOTORS, INC.

By:

Name: Deepak Ahuja

Title: CFO
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EXHIBITS

Exhibit 8, 1(c)(1) Audited consolidated Financial Statements for 2010
Exhibit 8. 1{c)(ii) Unaudited Consolidating Financial Statements for 2010
Exhibit 8.1(c)(iv)  Audit Report from PwC e —
Exhibit 8.1(c){(v) Management Representation Letter

Exhibit 8.1(c)(vi) No Default Letter from PwC

Exhibit 8.1(d)(iii)  Financial Covenants

Exhibit 8. 1(d)(iv) Excess Equity Proceeds Amount
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Exhibit 8.1(c){1)

Audited consolidated Financial Statements for 2010
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tesla Motors, inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related conselidated statements
of operations, of convertible preferred stock and stockholders’ equity (deficit) and of cash flows present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of Tesla Motors, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31,
2010 and December 31, 2009, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the three
years in the period ended December 31, 2010 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstaternent. An
audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and
evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.

/s/ PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP I

San Jose, California
March 2, 2011




Tesla Motors, Inc.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Assets
Current assets
Cash and cash equivabEIS ...t s e e e
Restricted cash..............
Accounts receivabie.....
Inventory....
Prepaid e‘(penses "and other current assets..

Totat current assels.
Operating lease vehicles, nct
Property, plant and cqmpmenl ne{
Restricted cask...
Other assets..

Totai assets .
Liabilities, Conver tlblL P| et‘cl v ed Stm:k .md Slackhnlden 5 Equlty (De!'cn)

Current liabilities
Accounts payable....
Accrued liabilities...
Defermred dcvclopmeut compensauon
- Deferred revenve . .
Capital lease obhgﬂt:uns current porimn
Reservation payments ... .

‘Total cutrent liﬂbﬂitias
Common stock warrand Hability ..........
Convertible preferred stock warrant liability.
Capital lease obligations, less current portion ...
Deferred revenue, less current pﬂrtion

Long-term debt... (RPN
Other long-term ]t'lb]]IE!ES
Totat liabilities...

Commitments and conhngenmes (Note 14)

Convertible preferred stock; $0.001 par value; 221,903,982 shares anthorized
Series A convertible preferred stock; O and 7,213,000 shares issued and outstanding as of

December 3§, 2010 and 2009, respectively (Liquidation value: $3,556) .... . .
Series B convertible preferred stock; ¢ and 17,459,456 shares issued and outstandmg asof
Becember 31,2010 and 2009, respect;vc!y (Liquidation value: $12,520)... e
Series C convertible preferred stuck 0 and 35,242,290 shareg {ssued and outstandmg asof
December 31, 2010 and 2009, rc*;peciwciy (qumda[iun value: $40,000)..., -
Sories D convertible preferred stock; 0 and 18,440,449 shares issned and outstmiémg asof
December 31,2010 and 2009, respectively (Liquidation value: $45,000) ...
Series E convertible preferred stock; 0 and 102,776,779 shares issued and outstandmg as nf
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively (qumdatmn value: $258,175).... .
Series F convertible preferred stock 0 and 27,785,263 shargs isswed and ouista.udmg asof
December 31, 2010 and 2009, respechvely (qumdallon vafue: $82, 500)
Total ccmvertlblc preferred stock ... .

Stockholders® equity (deficit)

Common stock; $0.001 par value; 2,000,000,800 and 106,666,667 shares authorized as of
December 31 2010 and 2009, vespectively; 94,908,370 and 7,284,2G0 shares issued and
outstanding as of December 3! 2010 and 2009, respectwely et st e

Additionat paid-in capital.... receneern

Accumulated deficit .. .

Total stockholders eqmty (deﬁcst)

Pecember 31, December 31,
2010 2009

£ 99,558 $ 69,627
73,597 —
................. 6,710 3,488
45,182 23,222

10,839 4,222
235886 100,559

7,963 e
................................... 114,636 23,535
4,867 3,580

22,730 2,750

3 386,082, 3 130424
b1 28,931 b 15,086
20,943 14,532

— 156

-4,635 1,377 -

279 290

30.755 26,048

85,565 57,489

6,088 —

e 1,734

496 800

2,783 1,240

71,828

12,274 3159
179,034 64,722

— 3,549

— 12,899

— 39,789

— 44,941

- 13566

— 82,378

— 319235

95 7

621,935 7,124
(4149823 {260.654)
207.048 (233,523)

Total liabilities, convertible prcferred stuck and stockholders equ:ty (dcﬁc;t) hY 386,082 b 130,424

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Tesla Motors, Inc.

" Consolidated Statements of Operations
(in thousands, except share and per share dafa)

Revenues

ATIOMONVE SALES Lottt et s s

Development SEIVICES ...ccvevi i iieer et cete e s s e e e s s e e enens
TOL FEVENUES Lvocverscee it ee st rn et abse s s sbar s eerens

Cost of revenues

AOMOIVE SAIES cuverericr e e s

Development SEIVICES ... et e eee e sneninn
Total cOSt OF TEVEIIES ..ovviiiee it res e e sarsn e st
Gross profit (10ss)...cocenns O TR

Operaling expenses

Research and development (net of development compensation of

$23,249 for the year ended December 31, 2009) (Note 2} .cvvvernnnne

Selling, general and adiministrative.......ccoevirr e e
Total operating EXPENSES civvveicorrerererreresiesiessseresiessssinansarsraes

1055 Fom operations ... -

THEETESE INCOMIE .1t veee e errr i s e et s e ne v e are s sreesn ot ssabe s s encns
IRLEIEST BXPEIISE -ooveririiris et ot et sms e s e e e
Other EXPense, NIEE ..ot eetvcrsimrerreseresenessssrresessssresenassrens
Loss before income taxes.................

Provision for INCOME 1AXES ..o eceeieeee e e eeraeesearesreresessese e reeseenna o

NEE JOSS 1ot et b e bt e e e s et s
Net loss per share of common stock, basic and diluted ........c........
Weighted average shares used in computing net loss per share of

common stock, basic and diltted......ccoo i

Year Ended December 31,

2010 2009 2008
......... $ 97,078 0§ 111,943 0§ 14742
......... 19,666 — —
......... 116,744 111,943 14,742
......... 79,982, 102,408 15,883
......... 6.031 — —
......... 86,013 102,408 15,883
......... - 30,731 9,535 1,141} -
92,996 19,282 53,714

......... 84.573 42,150 23,649
......... 177,569 61,432 77.363
e {146,838) (51,897) (78,504)
......... 258 159 529
......... (992) (2,531) (3,747
......... (6,583) (1,445) (963}
(154,155) (55,714) (82,685)

173 26 97

......... 5 (154328 3. (55,7400 3 (82.782)
......... § (304 § (7.9 §_ (1246)
v 50,718,302 7,021,963 6,646,387

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,




Tesla Motors, Inc,

Consolidated Statements of Convertibie Preferred Stock and Stockholders’ Equity (Deficit)
(in thousands, except share and per share data)

Balance as of December 31,
2007 .. .
Issuance uf comman stocE\
upon exercise of stock

options, net of repurchases .......
Issuance of common stock to
consuléant .. .

Stock based cmnpcusatson

Net loss ..

Balance as of December 31,
2008 ..
Essuzmce oi Senes E
convertible preferred stock in
My 2009 (inclusive of
conversion of note payable} at
$2.5¢ per share, net of

issuance cost of $556 .. iren
Issuance of Series F

convertible preferred stock i
August 2009 a1 $2.97 per

sharg, act of issuance cost of
$122., .
Issuance Gf cmnmon stock
upon exercise of stock

options, et of repurchases .......
Stock-based cmnpeusation -
Net loss ...

Batanee as of December 31,
2089 .
Issu-mce uf commion sloLk in
Tuly 2010 initial public

offering at $17.00 per share,
net of issuance costs of
$17,497 .. o
Issuance of common stnck in
July 2010 coneurrent private
placement at $17.00 per shaee...
issuance of common stock in
November 2010 private
placement at $21.15 per share,
net of issuance costs of $42........
Conversion of preferred stock
into shares of common stock.....
Issuance of common stock
upon net exercise of warranis....
Issuance of commen stock
npon exercise ol stock

options, net of repurchases........
Tax benefits from employee
equity awards ... prenenaranne
Stock-hased compensaiion ........
Nef foss ..

Balancc as of Decembel 31,
2010 ..

Total
Additional Stockholders!
Convertihile Preforred Stock Common Stock Paid-In Accumulated Equity
Shares Amount Shares Amonnt Capital Deficit {Deficit)

78,355,195 $ 101,178 6,325,229 $ 6 3 4,230 $(122,132) $ (117,846)
-— — 615,202 1 455 — 456

— — 10,000 ¢ 21 — 2]

— — — — 437 — 437
= — — — — — (82,782} (82,782)
78,355,195 104,178 7,010,431 7 5,193 {204,9414) {199,714)
102,776,779 135,669 — — - — —
27,785,263 82,378 — —_ -— — —
— — 273,169 0 497 —_ 497

— — — -— 1,434 — 1,434
— —— — - e — (55.740) (55,740)
208,917,237 319,225 7,284,200 7 7,124 (260,654) (253,523)
— — 11,880,600 12 184,461 — 184,473

— — | 294117 3 49,997 — 56,000

— — 1,418,573 1 29957 — 29,958
208917,237)  (319.225) | 70,226,844 70 319,155 7 31923
— — 445,047 1 8,602 — 8.663

— — 711,930 1 1,349 — 1,350

— — o — 74 —— 74

— — — 21,156 — 21,156
—— — e o — (154.328) (154,328
— b — 94 370 3 95 $.621.935 3 (414.982) $_207.048

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements,




Tesla lotors, Inc.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,

2010 26009 2603

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss .. e SUTOPUPN.
Adjuslments to reconc;lc ncl loss lo net cash uscd in opcsatmg acuvmes

(154328) 3 (35,7400 %3 (82,782)

Depremat!on and amortization .. IS UP PR 10,623 6,940 4,157
Change in fnér value of warrant lmb:lmes ........................ 5,022 1,128 2,800
Gain on extinguishment of convertible notes and warrants.. — {1,468) (1,245)
Stock-based COMPERSALON . .....c..ivurinieiens vt eese i ennses s 21,156 1,434 437
Excess tax benefits ffom stock-based compensation. {(74) — —
Loss on abandonment of fixed assels ........cceeennen. 8 385 —
[nventory write-downs... 951 1,353 4,297
Interest on convertible notes beeteenteebene et b enea et e saasenmae s bt e e — 2,686 3,602
Changes in operaling assets and habt[lties
Accounts receivable. .. {3,222) (168) (3,261}
fnventory ... (20,115} (7,925) (18,839
Prepaid cwpenses and mher current assets (4,977} {2,042} 750
Operating lease assets.. (8,398) — —_
Other assets co.oooeeennne. (463) (443) i2
Accounts payabie 212) 02 3.815
Accrued liabilities... 13,343 3,387 2,633
Deferred developuwnt wmpcnsallon {156) (10,017) 10,873
Defeqred revenue, e 4,801 (1,436) 4,073
Reservalion paymcnts ....... 4,707 (21,971) 10,684
Other long-terms liabilities..... 3.515 2,192 £192
MNet cash used i operating ACHVIHES ..o ecs s et (127817} {80,825) (52412
Cash ftows from Investing activitics
Paymenis refated to acquisition of Fremornl manuefacturing f'acility and refated
assetS..rnen (65,210) — —
Purchases of property 'md cqulpmcnt c'{cludmg capltal lcascs (40,203) (11,834) (16,630)
Transfer of restricted cash o our dedicated Department of Energy accoun! . (100,000) — —
Withdravwals out of our dedicated Depariment of Energy account . 26,403 — —
Tnncrease in other resteicted Cash .o nce i, (1287} (2.360) (960
et cash used in INVESHNE ACKIVITIES . cau.erearesrvirsssssvrsmrssmime o sseissrtsssssmsesasevemss (180,297} {i4.244) (11,590}
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in initial public offering .... 188,842 — —
Proceeds from issuance of conumen stock in Toyota private placement.. 50,000 - —
Proceeds from issuance of common stock in Panasonic private placemesl.........cooovceveeen. 30,000 — —
Proceeds from issuance of Series F convertible preferred stock, net of issuance
costs of $122... — 82,378 —
Proceads from i lssumlce uf Serlcs E conv prcfetrcd stock, net of issuancc
costs of §356... — 49,444 -
Principal payments on capltal leases and other debt (315) (322} (191)
Proceeds fiom long-term debt and other long-term Tiabilities ... 71,828 — 1,000
Proceeds from issuance of convertible notes and warrants. - 25,468 54,782
Preceeds from exercise of sfock options ... . 1,350 497 471
Excess tax benefits from stock-based compcnsatlon 4 — —
Common stock and loan facility issuance coats... T ) {2.046) —
Net cash provided by financing activitjcs ..... 338.045 155,419 56,068
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalen 29,931 60,350 (7,934)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ............... 69,627 9,271 17.211
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period......coorioniicr s 99558 3 69627 & 9,277
Supplemental Disclosures . . R
Interest paid. ... . $ 1,138 3 70 3 41
Income taxes p‘ud 9 [71 —
Supplemental mmcash investing ‘md fn'mcmg nctlvmes
Conversion of preferred stock to common stock ... . 319,225 — —
Issuance of common stock upon net exercise of wammts. 6,962 e —
Issttance of converkible preferred stock warrant ........ 6,294 — —
Issuance of common stock warraat . 1,701 —_— —
Conversion of notes payable to Senes E couvertlblc preferred stuck.. — 86,225 —
Exchange of convertible notes payable ... . . — 19,073 16,751
Bxchauge of accrued interest for Colwertlblc notes payable — 1,791 1,328
Property and equipment acquired under capitat lease... — 183 322

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




Tesla Motors, Inc.

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Overview of the Company

Tesla Motors, Inc. (Tesla, we, us or our) was incorporated in the state of Delaware on July 1,
2003. We design, develop, manufacture and sell high-performance fully electric vehicles and advanced
electric vehicle powertrain components.

Since inception, we have incurred significant losses and have used approximately $330.6 million
of cash in operations through December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2010, we had approximately
$99.6 million in cash and cash equivalents. We are currently selling the Tesla Roadster automaobile and
are developing tie Model S sedan. To the extent we do not meet our planned sales volumes or future
product releases or our existing cash and cash equivalents balances are insufficient to fund our future
activities, we will need to raise additional funds. We cannot be certain that additional financing, if and
when needed, will be available at terms satisfactory to us, or at all. These consolidated financial
statements do not include any adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability and
classification of assets or the amounts and classification of liabilities that may result from the outcome of
this uncertainty. - : ‘ ' S : o

In January 2010, we entered into a loan agreement with the United States Federal Financing Bank
and United States Department of Energy (DOE), pursuant to the Advanced Technology Vehicles
Manufacturing Loan Program (ATVM), authorizing the commitment from the DOE to arrange loans for
up to $465.0 million. See Note 8 for additional details.

In May 2010, we effected a 1-for-3 reverse stock split of our outstanding common stock, and a
proportional adjustment to the existing conversion ratios for each series of preferred stock was made at
the time of the effectiveness of the reverse stock split. Accordingly, all share and per share amounts for
all periods presented in these consolidated financial statements and notes thereto, have been adjusted
retroactively, where applicable, to reflect this reverse stock split and adjustment of the preferred stock
conversion ratio.

Initial Public Offering and Toyota Concurrent Private Placement

On June 28, 2010, our registration statement on Form S-1 relating to our initial public offering
(IPO) was declared effective by the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and our 1PO closed an
July 2, 2010, at which time we received cash proceeds of $188.8 million from this transaction, net of
underwriting discounts and commissions. Additionally, we incurred offering costs of $4.4 million related
to the TPO (see Note 9).

Concurrent with the closing of our TPO in Tuly 2010, we closed a private placement transaction
for the sale of our common stock to Toyota Motor Corporation (Toyota) pursuant to which we received
proceeds of $50.0 million from Toyota (see Note 9).

As a result of the IPO, our convertible preferred stock was automatically converted into common
stoclc and our outstanding warrants, excluding the DOE warrant, were net exercised.




Unadjusted Exror in 2009

In June 2010, we identified an error related to the understatement in stock-based compensation
expense subsequent to the issuance of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2009.

In the fourth quarter of 2009, we granted certain stock options for which a portion of the grant
was immediately vested. We erroneously accounted for the expense on a straight-line basis over the term
of the award, while expense recognition should always be at least commensurate with the number of
awards vesting during the period. As a result, selling, general and administrative expenses and net loss
for the vear ended December 31, 2009 were understated by $2.7 million. The error did not have an effect
on the valuation of the stock options. As stock-based compensation expense is & non-cash item, there was
no impact on net cash used in operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2009,

To correct this error, we recorded additional stock-based compensation of $2.4 million in the
three months ended June 30, 2010, We considered the impact of the error on reported operating expenses
and trends in operating results and determined that the impact of the error was not material to previously
repotted financial information as well as those related to the year ended December 31, 2010,

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Tesla and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant inter-company transactions and baiances have been eliminated in
consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilitics at the date of
the financial statements, and reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The carrying values of our cash and cash equivalents, and deposits approximate their fair value
due to their short-term nature. As a basis for determining the fair value of certain of our assets and
liabilities, we established a three-tier fair value hierarchy which prioritizes the inputs used in measuring
tair value as follows: (Level l) observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets; (Level II) inputs
other than the quoted prjces in active markets that are observable either directly or indirectly; and (Level
HI) unobservable inputs in which there is little or no market data which requires us to develop our own
assumptions. This hierarchy requires us to use observable market data, when available, and to minimize
the use of unobservable inputs when determining fair value, Qur financial agsets that are measured at fair
value on a recurring basis consist only of cash equivalents and current restricted cash. Our liabilities that
are measured at fair value on a recurring basis consist of our comunon stock warrant liability, and
previously, our convertible preferred stock warrant fiability,

All of our cash equivalents and current restricted cash, which are comprised primarily of money
market funds, are classified within Level 1 ofthe fair value hierarchy because they are valued using

F
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quoted market prices or market prices for similar securities. We do not have any Level Il instruments, or
instruments valued based on other observable inputs. Our commeon stock warrant liability, and previously
our convertible preferred stock warrant liability, is classified within Level III of the fair value hierarchy.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, the fair value hierarchy for our financial assets and financial

Decomber 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Fair Value Levell Level IT Level HI Fair Yalue Level T Level 11 Level 11
Meoney market fimds ... § 145708 § 145708 3 — 3 — 5 64430 364420 3 — 3 —
Common stock
warrant liabibity.............. 6,088 — — 6,088 e — . — —
Convertible preferred
stock warrant
lability ..o — — — — 1,734 — — 1.734

The changes in the fair valve of the common stock ard convertible preferred stock warrant
liabilities were as follows (in thousands):

. 2010 2609
Fair vahie, beginning of period....oco oo § 1,734 § 2,074
TSSUAMCES uiiii v vrmiisiri s rrre e sre e er s e bebe s raae 2 arat e e rane e ranne 6,294 —
Settlements and extinguishiments..........ccoceeve e, (6,962) (1,468)
Change in fair valle....ocociiie o cerrnee 5,022 1,128
Fair value, end 0f period ..., b 6,088 § 1,734

The valuation of the common stock and convertible preferred stock warrants is discussed in Notes
6 and 7.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revennes from sales of the Tesla Roadster, inchuding vehicle options and
accessories, vehicle service and sales of zero emission vehicle (ZEV) credits, and sales of electric vehicle
powertrain components. We recognize revenue when: (i) persuasive evidence of an arrangement exists;
(ii) delivery has occurred and there are no uncertainties regarding customer acceptance; (iii) fees are fixed
or determinable; and (iv) collection is reasonably assured.

Auntomotive Sales

Automotive sales consisted of the following for the periods presented (in thousands):

2010 2009 2008
Vehicle, options and related sales.......coe. $ 75459 F 111,555 § 14,742

Powertrain component and related sales....... 21,619 388 —
‘ § 97078 $ 111943 § 14,742

Automotive sales consist primarily of revenue earned from the sales of the Tesla Roadster,
vehicle service, and vehicle options, accessories and destination charges as well as sales of ZEV credits.
Autemotive sales also consist of revenue earned from the sales of electric vehicle powertrain components,
such as battery packs and battery chargers, to other automotive manufacturers. Sales or other amounts
collected in advance of meeting all of the revenue recognition criteria are not recognized in the
consolidated statements of operations and are instead recorded as deferred revenue on the consolidated




balance sheets. Prior to February 2010, we did not provide direct financing for the purchase of the Tesla -

Roadster although a third-party lender has provided financing arrangements to our customers in the
United States. Under these arrangements, we have been paid in full by the customer at the time of
purchase.

In regards to the sale of Tesla Roadsters, revenue is generally recognized upon delivery of the
vehicle. Concurrent with a purchase order for a Roadster that is manufactured to specification, customers
must remit a reservation payment (see Note 5). For vehicles purchased directly from our showrocoms, no
deposit is required. Approximately three months prior to production of a Tesla Roadster manufactured to
specificatjon, the reservation payment becomes nonrefundable when the customer enters into a purchase
agreement. In a limited number of circumstances, we may deliver a vehicle to a customer without all of
the options ordered by the customer if the options do not limit the functionality of the vehicle. This may
happen, for example, in an instance where the customer orders an additional hard top which is not ready
at the time the vehicle is delivered. In such cases, we will continue to defer the related revenue based on
the undelivered item’s fair value, as evidenced by the contractual price of the option in stand-alone
transactions.

While sales of vehicle options and accessories may take place separately from a vehicle sale, they
are often part of one vehicle sales agreement resulting in multiple element arrangements. We are able to
establish the fair value for each of the deliverables within the multiple element arrangements because we
sell each of the vehicles, vehicle accessories and options separately, outside of any multiple element
arrangements. As each of these items has stand alone value to the customer, revenue from sales of
vehicle accessories and options arc recognized when those specific items are delivered to the customer.
We record revenue for destination charges billed to our customers. Revenue from destination charges
totaled $1.0 million, $1.9 million and $0.1 miilion for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008, respectively. The related costs are recorded in cost of automotive sales.

In February 2010, we began offering a leasing program to qualified customers in the United
States for the Tesla Roadster. Through our wholly owned subsidiary, Tesla Motors Leasing, Inc.,
qualifying customers are permifted to lease the Tesla Roadster for 36 months, after which time they have
the option of either returning the vehicle to us or purchasing it for a pre-determined residual value. We
account for these leasing transactions as operating leases and accordingly, we recognize leasing revenues
on a straight-line basis over the term of the individual leases and record cost of sales equal to the
depreciation of the leased vehicles. As of December 31, 2010, we had deferred revenues of $1.1 million
of down payments which will be recognized over the term of the individual leases. Lease revenues are
recorded in automotive sales and for the year ended December 31, 2010, we recognized $0.8 million.

Zero Fmission Veliicle Credit Sales

California and certain other states have laws in place requiring vehicle manufacturers to ensure
that a pertion of the vehicles delivered for sale in that state during each model year are zero emission
vehicles. These laws provide that a manufacturer of zero emission vehicles may earn credits, referred to
as ZEV credits, and may sell excess credits to other manufacturers who apply such credits to comply with
these regulatory requirements. As a manufacturer solely of zero emission vehicles, we have earned ZEV
credits on vehicles sold in such states, and we expect to continue to earn these credits in the future, Since
our only commercial vehicle is electric, we do not receive any benefit from the generation of ZEV credits,
and accordingly lack to sell them to other vehicle manufacturers. In order to facilitate the sale of these
credits, we enter into contractual agreements with third parties requiring them to purchase our ZEV
credits at pre-determined prices. We recognize revenue on the sale of these credits at the time legal title
to the credits is transferred to the purchasing party by the governmenta! agency issuing the credits.
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Revenue from the sale of ZEV credits totaled $2.8 miltion, $8.2 million and $3.5 million for the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively.

Extended Service and Battery Replacement Plans

We provide customers with the opportunity to purchase an extended warranty for the period after

the end of our initial New Vehicle Limited Warranty to extend coverage for an additional three years or
36,000 miles, whichever comes first. We refer to this program as our Extended Service Plan. Amounts
collected on these sales are initially recorded in deferred revenues on the consolidated balance sheets and
recognized in automotive sales over the extended warranty period. Through December 31, 2010, we have
deferred $1.2 million related to the Extended Service Plan and have not yet recognized any related
revenues.

Additionally, within three months of purchasing a vehicle, we provide customers with a one-time
option to replace the baltery packs in their vehicles at any time after the expiration of the New Vehicle
Limited Warranty but before the tenth anniversary of the purchase date of their vehicles. We refer to this
program as our Battery Replacement Plan. Amounts collected on these sales are initially recorded in
deferred revenues on the consoiidated balance sheets and recognized in aufomotive sales as we fulfill our
obligation to replace the battery packs. Through December 31, 2010, we have deferred $0.9 million
related to the Battery Replacement Plan and have not yet recognized any related revenues.

Development Services Revenue

Revenue from development services arrangements consist of revenue earned from the
development of electric vehicle powertrain components for other automobile manufacturers, including the
desige and development of battery packs and chargers to meet a customer’s specifications. Beginning in’
the quarter ended March 31, 2010, we started entering into such contracts with the expectation that our
development services would constitute a viable revenue-generating activity. Revenue is recognized as the
performance requirements of each development arrangement are met and collection is reasonably assured.
Where development arrangements include substantive at-risk milestones, revenue is recognized based
upon the achievement of the contractually-defined milestones. Amounts collected in advance of meeting
all of' the revenue recognition criteria are not recognized in the consolidated statement of operations and
are instead recorded as deferred revenue on the consolidated balance sheets. Costs of development
services are expensed as incurred. Costs of development services incurred in periods prior to the
finalization of an agreement are recorded as research and development expenses; once an agreement is
finalized, these costs are recorded in cost of revenues.

Prior to 2010, compensation from the Smart fortwo development arrangement with Daimler AG
(Daimler) (see Note 13), was recorded as an offset to research and development expenses. This early
arrangement was motivated primarily by the opportunity to engage Daimler and at the same time, jointly
progress our own research and development activities with the associated development compensation.
All amounts received under the Smart fortwo agreement were recognized as an offset to research and
development expenses, as we were performing development activities on behalf of Daimler, were being
compensated for the cost of these activities and could not practicably separate the efforts or costs related
to these activities from our own research and development.

Freestanding Stock Warrants

We accounted for freestanding warrants to purchase shares of our convertible preferred stock as
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets at fair value upon issuance. The convertible preferred stock
warrarnts were recorded as a liability because the underlying shares of convertible preferred stock were
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contingently redeemable which therefore, may have obligated us to transfer assets at some point in the
future {see Note 7). The warrants were subject to re-measurement to fair value at cach balance sheet date
and any change in fair value was recognized in other expense, net, on the consolidated statements of
operations. For our Series C and other Series E convertible preferred stock warrants, excluding the DOE
warrant, we adjusted the liability for changes in fair value through the completion of our 1PO on July 2,
2010. At that time, the convertible preferred stock warrants were net exercised and the related liability
was reclassified to additional paid-in capital. For the Series E convertible preferred stock warrants issued
to the DOE (see Note 8), we adjust the liability for changes in fair value until the earlier of vesting or
expiration of the warrants. Upon the completion of our [PO, the DOE warrant convetted into a warrant to
purchase our common stock and the related liability will continue to be adjusted for changes in fair value
until the earlier of vesting or expiration of the warrants. If the warrants are exercised, the warrant liability
will be reclassified to common stock or additional paid-in capital, as applicable.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with an original or remaining maturity of three months or less at the
date of purchase are considered to be cash equivalents. We currently deposit excess cash primarily in
money market funds.

Restricted Cash and Deposits

‘We maintain certain cash amounts restricted as to withdrawal or use. We maintained total
restricted cash of approximately $78.5 million and $3.6 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively. As of December 31, 2010, current restricted cash was comprised primarily of $73.6 miilion
of net proceeds from the IPO and the concurrent Toyota private placement that we were required to set
aside to fund a separate, dedicated account as required under our DOE loan facility (see Note 8) partially
offset by authorized transfers out of the dedicated account into our cash and cash equivalents during the
year. Noncurrent restricted cash was comprised primarily of security held by a vendor as part of the
vendor’s standard credit policies, security deposits related to lease agreements and equipment financing,
and certain refundable reservation payments segregated in accordance with state consumer protection
regulations.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acconnts

Accounts receivable primarily include amounts related to sales of powertrain components and the
performance of powertrain development services. In circumstances where we are aware of a specific
customer’s inability to meet its financial obligations to us, we provide an allowance against amounts
receivable to reduce the net recognized receivable to the amount we reasonably believes will be collected.
As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, we determined that no allowance for doubtful accounts was required.
We typically do not carry accounts receivable related to our vehicle and related sales as customer
payments are due prior to vehicle delivery.

Caoncentration of Risk -

Financial instruments that potentially subject us to a concentration of credit risk consist of cash,
cash equivalents and accounts receivable. Our cash and cash equivalents are primarily invested in money
market funds with high credit quality financial institutions in the United States. At times, these deposits
and securities may be in excess of insured limits. To date, we have not experienced any losses on our
deposits of cash and cash equivalents. During the year ended December 31, 2010, our accounts
receivable were derived primarily from sales of powertrain components and the performance of
powertrain development services to Daimler and to Toyota (see Note 13). Accounts receivable balances
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from Daimler and Toyota represented 51% and 42% as of December 31, 2010, and 82% and 0% as of
December 31, 2009 of total accounts receivable, respectively. We perform credit evaluations of our
customers’ financial condition and, generally, require no collateral.

A number of components that meet our manufacturing requirements are available only from

single source suppliers. TFor example, Lotus is the only manufacturer for certain components, such asthe

chassis of our Tesla Roadster. Tn other instances, although there may be multiple suppliers available,
many of the components used in our vehicles are purchased by us from a single source. If these single
source suppliers fail to satisfy our requirements on a timely basis at competitive prices, we could suffer
-manufacturing delays, a possible loss of revenues, or incur higher cost of sales, any of which could
adversely affect our operating results,

Inventories and Inventory Valuation

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or market. Cost is computed using standard cost, which
approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis. We record inventory write-downs based on reviews
for excess and obsclescence determined primarily by future demand forecasts. We also adjust the
cairying value of our inventories when we believe that the net realizable value is less than the carrying
value. These write-downs are measured as the difference between the cost of the inventory, including
estimated costs to complete, and estimated selling prices, Once inventory is written down, a new, lower-
cost basis for that inventory is established, and subsequent changes in facts and circumstances do not
result in the restoration or increase in that newly established cost basis.

Adverse Purchase Commitments

To the extent future inventory purchases under non-cancellable purchase orders are for excess or
obsolete parts ar the related inventory is deemed to be in excess of its net realizable value, we record a
provision for adverse purchase commitments. Charges aré recorded as a component of cost of sales. We
did not record significant charges during the year ended December 31, 2010. During the year ended
December 31, 2009, we recorded charges of $0.4 million to cost of sales. During the year ended
December 31, 2008, we recorded charges of $1.0 million to research and development expenses and $0.4
million to cost of sales.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are recognized at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation

is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the related assets as follows:

Computer equipment and SORWALE.............oco i 3 years
Office furniture and equipment ... e 3 to 7 years
Tooling ... OO ORI 3 to § years

Leasehold improvements are amoitized on a straight-line basis over the shorter of their estimated
useful lives or the term of the related lease. Upon retirement or sale, the cost and related accumuiated
depreciation are removed from the balance sheet and the resulting gain or loss is reflected in operations,
Maintenance and repair expenditures are expensed as incurred, while major improvements that increase
functionality of the asset are capitalized and depreciated ratably to expense over the identified useful life.
Land is not depreciated.

In October 2010, we completed the purchase of owr Fremont, California facility and certain
manufacturing assets and spare parts located thereon. As these assets are not yet ready for their intended
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use, they are classified within construction in progress and the depreciation has not yet commenced (see
Note 4).

Operating Lease Vehicles

Vehicles that are leased as part of our leasing program, are classified as operating lease vehicles. .

Operating lease vehicles are recorded at cost less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method over the term of operating leases of three years. The total cost of operating
lease vehicles recorded in the consolidated balance sheet as of December 31, 2010 was $8.4 million.
Accumulated depreciation related to leased vehicles was $0.4 million as of December 31, 2010,

Intangible Assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortized over their estimated useful lives. As of
December 31, 2010, intangible assets are comprised of emission credits (see Note 4).

Long-lived Assets

We evaluate our long-tived assets, including intangible assets, for indicators of possible
impairment when events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be
recoverable, Impairment exists if the carrying amounts of such assets exceed the estimates of future net
undiscounted cash flows expected to be generated by such assets. Should impairment exist, the '
impairment loss would be measured based on the excess catrying value of the asset over the asset’s
estimated fair value. As of December 31, 2010, we have not recorded any impairment losses on our long-
lived assets,

Regearch and Development Costs

Research and development costs are expensed as incurred. Research and development expenses
consist primarily of payroll, benefits and stock-based compensation of those employees engaged in
research, design and development activities, costs related to design tools, license expenses related to
intellectual property, supplies and services, depreciation and other occupancy costs. Also included in
research and development are development services costs incurred, if any, prior to the finalization of
agreements with our development services custoners as reaching a final agreement and revenue
recognition is not assured. Development services costs incurred after the finalization of an agreement are
recorded in cost of revenues,

Advertising and Promotion Costs

Advertising and sales promotion costs are expensed as incurred. During the years ended
December 31,2010, 2009 ahd 2008, advertising, promotion and related marketing expenses were $3.1
million, $1.7 million and $0.7 million, respectively.

Income Faxes

Income taxes are computed using the asset and liability method, under which deferred tax assets
and liabilities are determined based on the difference between the financial statement and tax bases of
assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates in effect for the year in which the differences are expected to
affect taxable income. Valuation allowances are established when necessary to reduce deferred tax assets
to the amount expected to be realized.
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We record liabilities related to uncertain tax positions when, despite our belief that our tax return
positions are supportable, we believe that it is more likely than not that those positions may not be fully
sustained upon review by tax authorities. Accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax
benefits are classified as income tax expense.

Stock-based Compensation

We recognize compensation expense for cosls related fo all share-based payments, including
stock optious The fair value of share-based payment awards are estimated on the grant date using an
optlon pricing model. Stock-based compensation expense is recognized on a straight-line basis over the
service period, net of estimated forfeitures.

We have elected to use the “with and without” approach in determining the order in which tax
attributes are utilized. As a result, we will only recognize a tax benefit from stock-based awards in
additional paid-in capital if an incremental tax benefit is realized after all other tax attributes currently
available to us have been utilized. In addition, we have elecled to account for the indirect effects of
stock-based awards on other tax attributes, such as the research tax credit, through our statement of
operations.

We account for equity instruments issued to non-smployees based on the fair value of the awards.
The fair value of the awards granted to non-employees is re-measured as the awards vest and the resulting
change in fair value, if any, is recognized in the consolidated statements of operations during the period
the related services are rendered,

For performance-based awards, stock-based compensation expense is recognized over the
expected performance achievement period of individual performance milestones when the achievement of
each individual performance milestone becomes probable.

Foreign Currency Remeasurement and Transactions

For each of our foreign subsidiaries, the functional currency is the U.S. Dollar. For these foreign
subsidiaries, monetary assets and liabilities denominated in non-U.S. currencies are re-measured to U.S.
Dollars using current exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in non-U.S. currencies are maintained at historical 1.8, Dollar exchange rates.
Revenues and expenses are re-measured at average U.S. Dollar monthly rates,

Foreign currency transaction gains and losses are a result of the effect of exchange rate changes
on transactions denominated in currencies other than the functional currency. Transaction gains and
losses are recognized in other expense, net in the consolidated statements of operations and have not been
significant for any periods presented

Comprehenswe Loss

Comprehensive loss includes all changes in equity (net assets) during a period from non-owner
sources. Through December 31, 2010, there are no components of comprehensive loss which are not
included in net loss; therefore, a separate statement of comprehensive loss has not been presented. We do
not have any foreign currency translation adjustments as a component of other comprehensive loss
through December 31, 2010, as the functional currency of'all our foreign subsidiaries is the U.S. Dollar,
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Warranties

We began recording warranty reserves with the commencement of Tesla Roadster sales in 2008.
Tnitially, Tesla Roadsters were sold with a warranty of four years or 50,000 miles. More recently, Tesla
Roadsters have been sold with a warranty of three years or 36,000 miles. Accrued warranty activity
consisted of the following for the pericds presented (in thousands):

2010 2009
Accrued warranty—beginning of period .....oocevveeee. $ 3757 § 858
Warranty costs incurred ..o ooinvcnnice e (2,231) (1,508)
Provision for Wartanty ... vnniserecesenrs s eeien. 3.891 4,407
Accrued warranty—end of period .......ccocovriieiienann 3 5417 % 3,957

We provide a warranty on all vehicle and production powertrain component sales, and we accrue
warranty reserves at the time a vehicle is delivered to a customer. Warranty reserves include
management’s best estimate of the projected costs to repair or to replace any items under warranty, based
on actual warranty experience as it becomes avatiable and other known factors that may impact our
evaluation of historical data. We review our reserves at least quarterly fo ensure that our accruals are
adequate in meeting expected future warranty obligations, and we will adjust our estimates as needed.
Warranty expense is recorded as a component of cost of revenues in the consolidated statements of
operations. The portion of the warranty provision which is expected to be incurred within 12 months . .
from the balance sheet date is classified as current, while the remaining amount is classified as long-term
liabilities.

Environmental Liabilities

We are subject to federal and state laws and regulations for the protection of the environment,
including those related to the discharge of hazardous materials and remediation of contaminated sites. In
October 2010, we completed the purchase of our Fremont, California manufacturing facility from New
United Motor Manufacturing, Inc. (NUMMI}. NUMMI has previously identified environmental
conditions at the Fremont site which affect soil and groundwater. As the owner of the Fremont site, we
may be responsible for the entire investigation and remediation of any environmental contamination at the
Fremont site, whether it occurred before or after the date we purchased the property. Upon the
completion of the purchase in Octaber 2010, we recorded the estimated fair value of the environmental
liabilities that we assumed to be $5.3 million. The fair value of these liabilities was determined based on
an expected value analysis of the related potential costs to investigate, remediate and manage various
environmental conditions that were identified as part of NUMMLI’s facility decommissioning activities as
well as our own diligence efforts. Estimated potential costs are not discounted to present value as the
timing of payments cannot be reasonably estimated.

Our basic net loss per share of common stock is calculated by dividing the net loss by the
weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period. The weighted-average
number of shares of common stock used to calcuiate our basic net loss per share of common stock
excludes those shares subject to repurchase related to stock options that were exercised prior to vesting as
these shares are not deemed to be issued for accounting purposes until they vest. The diluted net loss per
share of common stock is computed by dividing the net loss using the weighted-average number of
common shares, excluding common stock subject to repurchase, and, if dilutive, potential common shares
outstanding during the period. Potential common shares consist of common stock subject to repurchase
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and stock options to purchase common stock and watrants to purchase convertible preferred stock (using
the treasury stock method) and the conversion of our convertible preferred stock and convertible notes
payable (using the if-converted method).

The following table presents the potential common shares outstanding that were excluded from
the computation of diluted net loss per share of common stock for the penods presented because including
them would have been antidilutive: : C o :

2010 2009 2008
Convertible preferred Stock ..o — 70,226,844 26,706,184
Stock options to purchase common stock ..., 13,804,788 11,640,700 2,929,090
Common stock subject (o repurchase ..o cvveenvnnnn, 2,669 46421 92,449
Common stock warrant.........oc.oooo e eecveen, 3,090,111 — _
Convertible preferred stock warrants........cocooivieeane, — 516,506 1,830,352
Convertible notes payable.......ccoovreeiiniconncciiiineen, — — 13,575,287

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In October 2009, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued an accounting
standard update which requires companies to allocate revenue in multiple-element arrangements based on
an element’s estimated selling price if vendor-specific or other third-party evidence of value is not
available. The guidance is effective beginning January 1, 2011 with early application permitted. We do
not expect the adoption of the guidance to have a material impact on our consolidated financial
statements.

In January 2010, the FASB issued updated guidance related to fair value measurements and
disclosures which requires a reporting entity to disclose separately the amounts of signif cant transfers in
and oul of Level T and Level 11 fair value measurements amd to describe the reasons for the transfers. In
addition, in the reconciliation of fair value measurements using Level I inputs, a reporting entity will be
required to disclose information about purchases, sales, issuances and settlements on a gross rather than
on a net basis. The updated guidance will also require fair value disclosures for each elass of assets and
liabilities and disclosures about the valuation techniques and inputs used to measure fair value for both
recurring and non-recurring Leve! IT and Level 1T fair value measurements. The updated guidance is
effective for interim or annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2009, except for the
disclosures regarding the reconciliation of Level I fair value measurements, which are effective for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2010 and for interim periods within those fiscal years. The
adoption of this updated guidance did not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.

In Aprit 2010, the FASB issued an accounting standard update which provides guidance on the
criteria to be followed in recognizing revenue under the milestone method. The milestone method of
recognition allows a vendor who is involved with the provision of deliverables to recognize the full
amount of a milestone payment upon achievement, if, at the inception of the revenue arrangement, the’
milestone is determined to be substantive as defined in the standard. The guidance is effective on a
prospective basis for milestones achieved in fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years,
beginning on or after June 15, 2010. Early adoption is permitted. We do not expect the adoption of the
guidance fo have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements.
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3. Balance Sheet Components

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, our inventory consisted of the following uomponents (in
thousands):
December 31,

o 2006 2009
Inventory '

RaW MALETIAL L1 viires s iees e st st eeess b e e et e e et ereeer aneeias S 15936 % 10,001
WORK B PIOCEES .. sriarc v scesrmesse s cean s eesrne e s s seasosseesssenesosnsnscsensansns 4,538 3,403
Finished So0as i ittt vt bt e d it ie 20,125 7,038
BBIVICE 1 tutvitssreecviet e vt e eeeseee s cen st e st eembeabteresraes sraevasaneeeasesenssentanseeansrsasintenean 4,583 2,780

& 45,182 § 23,227

We write down inventory as a result of excess and obsolete inventories and when we believe that
the net realizable value of inventories is less than the carrying value. During the years ended December
31, 2010 and 2009, we recorded write-downs of $1.0 million and $1.4 million, respectively, in cost of
automotive sales. During the year ended December 31, 2008, we recorded write-downs of $3.7 million in
research and development expenses and $0.6 million in cost of automotive sales.

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, our property, plant and equipment consisted of the following
components (in thousands):

. December 31, -

2010 2009
Property, Plant and Equipment, net
Computer equipment and softWare .........ccoiii e h 8,864 $ 5,376
Office furniture, machinery and eGuiPMEnt ... oeecocvereciresccer e i 12,551 7,935
OO 1. et erseceeer et eeeie ettt a e et b b e st se b imtesnerarsresmbeseemstnratretesaranares 15,913 15,010
Leasgehold 51"1provements 13,993 5,325
Land... 26,391 ——
Constru0t1on in progress .................................................................................. 38.917 2,619

136,629 36,265
Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortization ....c..covcvveereieneie e, (21.993) (12,730}

$§ 114636 b 23,535

As of December 31, 2010, fand of $26.4 million, as well as construction in progress of $30.3
million related to building, site improvements, manufacturing assets and spare parts, were purchased as
part of our facility in Fremont, California {see Note 4). Capitalized interest on construction in progress is
included in property, plant and equipment. During the year ended December 31,2010, we cap;tahzed
$0.8 million of interest expense to construction in progress.

Depreciation and amortization expense during the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and
2008, was $10.0 million, $6.9 million and $4.2 million, respectively. Total property and equipment assets
under capital lease at December 31, 2010 and 2009, were $0.4 million and $0.6 million, respectively.
Accumulated depreciation related to assets under capital lease as of these dates were $0.2 million and
$0.1 milfion, respectively.
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As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, our other assets consisted of the following (in thousands):

December 31,

2010 2009
Other Assefs
Loan facility is50a0e COSES, NET vttt st iee e 5 7,053 3 709
Cormmon stock ISSUANCE COBES vore v ivmrrrrrirererevesiessessnersinssssnerersessarersesesesiasses = 33T
EiSSIon 8IS vuomiriisiiss s ssssstssse e em st ssare e eeeeestss st e ssrsnaan s e 14,508 —
OHRETS ..ot ar e et s ar s ar e s e shae s e n e am et sh rer anpean e e e et eene e b e enre 1n 1,169 704

$ 22,730 % 2,150

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, our accrued liabilities consisted of the following {in
thousands):
December 31,

2010 2009
Accrued Liabilities
Payroll and related COSIS ..t i e e $ 6,516 § 2,192
Acerued PUICHASES ..o i e e e 10,030 9,920
Taxes PAYADIE ..o e 2,674 452
ACCTUBA WBITAITY ......ooieireeei et rtese et messesae s s eeeeasttnsesaeesenaentrbesrmsnnnstssrnanee 1,725 1,445
Adverse purchase commMItMEts ......ccccoviiiiriinie e e — 523

$ 20945 & 14,532

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, our other long-term liabilities consisted of the following (ih
thousands):
December 31,

2010 2009
Other Long-Term Liabilities
Accrued warranty, long-term ..o e PRSP RIPUOURUR. 1,692 8 2,312
Deferred rant HADIHTY oot srass s ss e sressessees e ems 2,919 1,147
Environmental HabilitIES .o ovueesiiiriirieeeitecieviets s ceressmsetessrs o seesssbasrnssmsessssassnee 5,300 —
L0131 OO SO U T USROSV U ORI YOO 363 —

h 12274 § 3459

4, Purchase of Fremont Facility and Assets
Fremont Facility

In May 2010, we entered into an agreement to purchase an existing automobile production
facility located in Fremont, California from New United Motor Manufactiring, Inc. (NUMMI), which is a
joint venture between Toyota, and Motors Liquidation Company, the owner of selected assets of General
Motors. In October 2010, we completed the purchase and received title to the facility and land. The total
cash paid was $42.0 million. The purchase totals 210 acres, or approximately 55% of the land at the site,
and includes all of the manufacturing facilities located thereon. In Qctober 2010, we and NUMMI
amended the facility purchase agreement to include the transfer to us of certain operating permits, or
emission credits, for additional consideration of $6.5 million. We completed the transfer of these permits
in October 2010. We intend to use the facility and manufacturing assets for the production of our planned
Model S vehicle and to build our future vehicles.

NUMMI has previously identified environmental conditions at the Fremont site which affect soil
and groundwater, and is currently undertaking efforts to address these conditions. Although we have
been advised by NUMMI that it has documented and managed the enyironmental issues, we cannot
determine with certainty the total potential costs to remediate pre-existing contamination. Based on
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managenient’s best estilnate, we estimated the fair value of the environmental liabilities that we assumed
ta be $5.3 million, The fair value of these Habilities was determined based on an expected value analysis
of the related potential costs to investigate, remediate and manage various environmental conditions that
wete identified as part of NUMMDYI’s facility decommissioning activities as well as our own diligence
efforts. As NUMMI continues with its decommissioning activities and we continue with our planned
construction and operating activities, it is reasonably possible that our estimate of environmental
liabilities may change materially. We have reached an agreement with NUMMI in-terms of how we and
NUMMI will take responsibility for any costs related to governmentally-required remediation activities
for contamination that existed prior to the completion of the facility and land purchase for any known or
unknown environmental conditions (see Note 14).

The purchase consideration for the Fremont facitity consisted of cash paid of $48.5 million and
liabilities assumed of $5.3 million for an aggregate purchase price of $53.8 million. The aggregate
purchase price of $53.8 million was allocated to land, building, site improvements and emission credits
based on their relative fair values as the total estimated fair values of these assets were greater than the
totat purchase price. The following table summarizes the allocation of the purchase price to the tangible
and intangible assets purchased as of the date of purchase (in thousands):

Building and site IMProvements ... ...cccuvimesrresreeinnisresernsomsesrmisrmsesesraees $ 13,556
IV O OO OOV OTUSOR 25,736
EISSIOT CTEAIES (oo eve ittt te s e et eeiriae s et s rmae e te s erreabe et s sbssesenebsnrssratassssanes 14,508

% 53.800

Building and site improvements are classified within construction in progress and together with
land, are recorded in property, plant and equipment, net, on the consolidated balance sheet. The estimated
fair value of land was determined using the market approach. Although the marlet approach compares
the subject asset purchase to similar transactions which would otherwise classify these inputs within
Level 11 of the fair value hierarchy, adjusiments we made to comparable sales both qualitatively and
quantitatively caused us to classify these inputs within Level 111 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value
of the building and site improvements were estimated using the cost approach and therefore, the inputs
are classified within Level Il of the fair value hierarchy. Incremental due diligence costs of $0.7 million
related to the purchase of the land have been capitalized to land.

Emission credits are classified as intangible assets and are recorded in other noncurrent assets on
the consolidated balance sheet. The estimated fair value of emission credits was determined using market
data related to traded emission credits and as such, these inputs are classitied within Level I of the fair
value hierarchy. The utility of the emission credits are related to the operation of the purchased facility
and therefore, wilt be amortized over the same useful life. Asthe facility is not yet ready for its intended
use, we have not yet commenced the depreciation of the facility or the amortization the emission credits.
We currently estimate that building and building improvements, as well as the emission credits, will have
an estimated useful life of 25 years.

Manufacturing Assets

In August 2010, we entered into a separate purchase agreement with NUMMI for the purchase of
certain manufacturing equipment and spare parts located at the Fremont facility, This purchase
agreement was subsequently amended 1o include additional manufacturing equipment and spare parts. In
October 2010, we completed this purchase concurrent with the completion of the facility purchase. The
aggregate purchase price for these assets was $16.7 million reflecting the estimated fair value of these
assets. As these manufacturing assets and spare parts are not vet ready for their intended use, they are
classified within construction in progress and recorded in property, plant and equipment, net, on the
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consolidated balance sheet. We have not yet commenced the depreciation of these assets. We currently
estimate that manufacturing and related assets will have an estimated useful life of 15 years.

5. Reservation Payments

Reservation payments consist of reservation and membership payments that allow potential
customers to hold a reservation for the future purchase of a Tesla Roadster or Model S, These amounts
are recorded as current liabilities until the vehicle is delivered. For our 2010 model year Tesla Roadsters
manufactured to specification, our current purchase agreement requires the payment of an initial
nonrefundable deposit which varies based on the country of purchase. For the Model S, we require an
initial refundable reservation payment of at least $5,000. For vehicles purchased directly from our
showrooms, no deposit is required. Prior to the three months ended June 30, 2010, our reservation policy
was (0 accept refundable reservation payments from all customers who wished to purchase a Tesla
Roadster and require full payment of the purchase price of the vehicle at the time the customer selected
their vehicle specifications. During the three months ended JTune 30, 2010, we changed our poficy to
require nonrefundable deposits for Tesla Roadsters manufactured to specification at the time a customer
enters into a purchase agreement. However, we also occasionally accept refundable reservation payments
for the Tesla Roadster if a customer is interested in purchasing a vehicle but not yet prepared to select the
vehicle specifications. For customers who have placed a refundable reservation payment with us, the
reservation payment becomes a nonrefundable deposit once the customer has selected the vehicle
specifications and enters into a purchase agreement. We now require full payment of the purchase price
of the vehicle only upon delivery of the vehicle to the customer. Amounts received by us as reservation™
paymeents are generally not restricted as to their use by us. Upon delivery of the vehicle, the related
reservation payments are applied against the custoimer’s total purchase price for the vehicle and
recognized in automotive sales as part of the respective vehicle sale,

As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, reservation payments in the amount of $30.8 million and
$26.0 million, respectively, were recorded as current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets. As of
December 31, 2010, we held reservation payments for undelivered Tesla Roadsters in an aggregate
amount of $2.5 million and reservation payments for Model S sedans in an aggregate amount of $28.3
nillion. As of December 31, 2009, we held reservation payments for undelivered Tesla Roadsters in an
aggregate amount of $8.2 million and reservation payments for Model S sedans in an aggregate amount of
$17.9 million. In order to convert the reservation payments into revenue, we will need to sell vehicles to
these customers, All reservation payments for the Model S are fully refundable untii such time thata
customer enters into a purchase agreemend,

6 Convertlble Prefen ed Stock

On June 28, 2010, our registration statement on Form S-1 for our IPO was declared effective by

the SEC and on July 2, 2010, we closed our IPO. As a result of the PO, our convertible preferred stock

was automatically converted into common stock.
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The following table summarizes information related to our convertible preferred stock prior to -
conversion into common stocl

Share Price Issued and Liguidation
Purr ¥aloe at issuance Authorized Qutstanding Prefercnee Proceeds, Net
{In thousands except share and per share amounts)

Serfes A i ¥ 0001 5 049 7,213,000 7,213,006 § 3,556 0§ 3,549
Series B.... 0.001 074 17459456 17459456 12920 12,899
Series C.... 0.00) 1.14 . 35,893,172 35,242,290 40,000 39,789
Series D ... 0.001 2,44 18,440,449 18,440,449 45,000 44,941,
SerfesE.... 0.001 2.51 112,897,905 102,776,779 258,175 135,66%
Series F ... 0.001 297 30,000.000 27.783.263 82.500 82378
Total. i 221,903 982 208917237 5442151 § 319225

*  Net of $3.9 million conversion of Series A convertible preferred stock to common stock,

Each of our Series A, B, D, E and F convertible preferred stock converted on a 1:0.33 basis into
common stock while the Series C convertible preferved stock converted on a 1:0.35 basis.

Dividends

No dividends on the convertible preferred stock have been declared by the Board of Directors
from inception through their conversion into common stock.

7. Convertible Preferred Stock Warrants

In March 2006, we issued warrants to purchase 650,882 shares of Series C convertible preferred
stock in conjunction with the conversion of previously issued convertible notes payable into Series C
convertible preferred stock. The warrants had an exercise price of $1.14 per share and expired on the
earlier of March 30, 2011 or an initial public offering. As a result of our IPO which closed on July 2,
2010, these warrants were net exercised for 184,359 shares of common stock. The fair value of these
warranis as of July 2, 2010 in the amount of $3.6 million was recorded in equity on the consolidated -
balance sheet. Through the net exercise of the Series C convertible preferced stock warrants in July 2010,
we recognized a charge from the change in the fair value of these warrants during 2010 in the amount of
$2.6 million through other expense, net, on the consolidated statement of operations.

As of December 31, 2009, the fair value of warrants to purchase shares of the Series C
convertible preferred stock in the amount of $1.0 million was included within the convertible preferred
stock warrant liability on the consolidated balance sheet. During the years ended December 31, 2009 and
2008, we recognized charges from the change in the fair value of these warrants in the amounts of $0.7
million and $0.1 million, respectively, through other expense, net, on the consolidated statements of
operations.

In February 2008, we issued warrants with our February 2008 convertible notes payable. The
warrants allowed for the purchase of shares of either Series T convertible preferred stock at a price of
$2.44 per share, which amounted to warrants to purchase 8,246,914 shares of Series D convertible
preferred stock, or the securities issuable in a subsequent round of financing at the per share price of such
securities.

On December 24, 2008, warrants to purchase 3,439,305 of the shares of Series D convertible
preferred stock were extinguished as a result of the election of certain holders of the February 2008
convertible notes to exchange their notes and warrants for December 2008 convertible notes. On the date
of the exchange, we recognized a gain in the amount of $1.3 million through other expense, net, in
connection with the extinguishment of these warrants.
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During the year ended December 31, 2009, warrants to purchase an additional 3,967,152 shares
of Series D convertible preferred stock were extinguished as a result of the election of certain remaining
holders of the February 2008 convertible notes as part of an exchange of their notes and warrants for
December 2008 convertible notes. On the date of the exchange, we recognized a gain in the amount of

$1.5 miilion through other expense, net, in connection with the extinguishment of these warrants,

In May 2009, we completed our Series E financing in which $50.0 million of proceeds was
received for the purchase of 19,901,290 shares of Series E convertible preferred stock at a price of $2.51
per share. In connection with this financing, the remaining holders of the February 2008 notes and
warrants converfed their notes into shares of Series E convertible preferred stock and converted their
watrants into warrants to purchase 866,091 shares of Series E convertible preferred stock.

As a result of our TPO which closed on July 2, 2010, these warrants which exclude the DOE
warrant (see Note 8), were net exercised for 160,688 shares of common stock. The fair value of these
warrants as of July 2, 2010 in the amount of $3.4 million was recorded in equity on the consolidated
balance sheet. Through the net exercise of the Series E convertible preferred stock warrants in July 2010,
we recognized a charge from the change in the fair value of these warrants during 2010 in the amount of
$2.7 million through other expense, net, on the consolidated statement of operations.

As of December 31, 2009, excluding the DOE warrant, the fair value of warrants to purchase
866,091 shares of the Series E convertible preferred stock in the amount of $0.7 million was included -
within the convertible preferred stock warrant liability on the consolidated balance sheet. During the year
ended December 31, 2009, we recognized charges from the change in the fair value of these Series E
warrants in the amounts of $0.4 million through other expense, net, on the consolidated statement of
operations.

8. Department of Energy Loan Facility

On January 20, 2010, we entered into a loan facility with the Federal Financing Bank (FFB), and
the DOE, pursuant to the ATVM Incentive Program (the DOE Loan Facility). Under the DOE Loan
Facility, the FFB has made available to us two multi-draw term loan facilities in an aggregate principal
amount of up to $465.0 million. Up to an aggregate principal amount of $101.2 million will be made
available under the first term loan facility to finance up to 80% of the costs eligible for funding for the
powertrain engineering and the build out of a facility to design and manufacturc lithium-ion battery packs,
electric motors and electric components (the Powertrain Facility). Up to an aggregate principal amount of
$363.9 million will be made available under the second term loan facility to finance up to 80% of the
costs eligible for funding for the development of, and to build out the manufacturing facility for, our
Model S sedan (the Model S Facility). Under the DOE Loan Facility, we are responsible for the
remaining 20% of the costs eligible for fonding under the ATVM Program for the projects as well as any
cost overruns for each project. The costs paid by us to date for the Powertrain Facility and the Model S
Facility will be applied towards cur obligation to contribute 20% of the ¢ligible project costs, and the
DOE’s funding of future eligible costs will be adjusted to take this into account. Our obligations for the
development of, and the build-out of our manufacturing facility for, the Model S is budgeted to be an
aggregate of $33 million or approximately 8.5% of the ongoing budgeted cost, plus any cost overruns for
the projects. We have paid for the full 20% of the budgeted costs related to our Powertrain Facility and
therefore expect to receive 100% reimbursement from the DOE Loan Facility for ongoing budgeted costs,
but will continue to be responsible for cost overruns. On the closing date, we paid a facility fee to the
DOE in the amount of $0.5 million. From February through December 2010, we received loans under the
DOFE Loan Facility for an aggrepate of $71.8 million at interest rates ranging from 1.7% to0 3.4%. Asof
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December 31, 2010, $393.2 million remained available under the DOE Loan Facility for future draw
downs.

Our ability to draw down funds under the DOE Loan Facility is conditioned upon several draw
conditions. We are currently in compliance with these draw conditions. For the Powertrain Facility, the
draw conditions include our achievement of progress milestones relating to the development of the
powertrain manufacturing facility and the successfol development of commercial arrangements with third
parties for the supply of powertrain components. For the Model S Facility, the draw conditions include
out achievement of progress milestones relating to the design and development of the Model S and the
planned Model S manufacturing facility. Certain advances will be subject to additional conditions to
draw-down related to the site on which the applicable project is located. Additionally, the DOE Loan
Facility provides for the ability to update milestones should a reasonable need arise.

Advances under the DOE Loan Facility accrue interest at a per annum rate determined by the
Secretary of the Treasury as of the date of the advance and will be based on the Treasury yield curve and
the scheduled principal installments for such advance. Interest on advances under the DOE Loan Facility
is payable quarterly in arrears. Advances under the Powertrain Facility are repayable in 28 equal
quarterly installments commencing on December 15, 2012 (or for advances made after such date, in 26
equal quarterly installments commencing on June 15, 2013). All cutstanding amounts under the
Powertrain Facility will be due and payable on the maturity date of September 15, 2019. Advances under
the Model S Facility are repayable in 40 equal quarterly installments commencing on December 15, 2012
{or for advances made after such date, in 38 equal quarterly instalfments commencing on June 15, 2013).
All outstanding amounts under the Model S Facility will be due and payable on the maturity date of
September 15, 2022, Advances under the loan facilities may be voluntarily prepaid at any time at a price
determined based on interest rates at the time of prepayment for loans made from the Secretary of the
Treasury to FFB for obligations with an identical payment schedule to the advance being prepaid, which
could result in the advance being prepaid at a discount, at par or at a premium. The loan facilities are
subject to mandatory prepayment with net cash proceeds received from certain dispositions, loss events
with respect to property and other extraordinary receipts. All obligations under the DOE Loan Facility
are secured by substantially all of our property.

Under the DOE Loan Facility, we have committed to pay all costs and expenses incurred to
complete the projects being financed in excess of amounts funded under the loan facility, We will be
required to maintain, at all times, available cash and cash equivalents of at least 105% of the amounts
required to fund this excess over our financing commitment, after taking into account current cash flows
and cash on hand, and reasonable projections of future generation of net cash from operations, losses and
expenditures. Loans may be requested under the facilities until January 22, 2013, and we have committed
to complete the projects being financed prior to such date. .

The DOE Loan Faeility documents contain customary covenants that include, among others, a
requirement that the projects be conducted in accordance with the business plan for such project,
compliance with all requirements of the ATYM Program, and limitations on our and our subsidiaries’
ability to incur indebtedness, incur liens, make investments or loans, enter into mergers or acquisitions,
dispose of assets, pay dividends or make distributions on capital stock, pay indebtedness, pay
management, advisory or similar fees to affiliates, enter into certain affiliate transactions, enter into new
lines of business, and enter into certain restrictive agreements, in each case subject to customary
exceptions. The DOE Loan Facility documents also contain customary financial covenants requiring us
to maintain a minimum ratio of current assets to current liabilities, and (i) through December 15, 2012, a
minimum cash balance, and (ii) after December 15, 2012, a maximum leverage ratio, a minimum interest
coverage ratio, a minimum fixed charge coverage ratio, a limit on capital expenditures and, after
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March 31, 2014, a maximum ratio of total liabilities to shareholder equity. We are currently in
compliance with these financial covenants.

The DOE Loan Facility documents also contain customary events of default, subject in some
cases to customary cure periods for certain defaults. In addition, events of default include a failure of
Elon Musk, our Chief Executive Officer, Product Architect and Chairman, and certain of his affiliates, at
any time prior to one year after we complete the project relating to the Model S Facility, to own at least
65% of capital stock held by Mr, Musk and such affiliates as of the date of the DOE Loan Facility.

Under the DOE Loan Facility, we ate required to fund a debt service reserve account on or before
December 31, 2012, in an amount equal to all principal and interest that will come due on the advances on
the next two payment dates. Once we have deposited such two payments, we will not be required to
further fund such debt service reserve account. We have also agreed that, in connection with the sale of
our comimon stock in an initial public offering, at least 75% of the net offering proceeds will be received
by us and, in connection with the sale of our stoclk tn any other follow-on equity offering, at least 50% of
the net offering proceeds will be received by us, Offering proceeds may not be used to pay bonuses or
ather compensation to officers, directors, employees or consultants in excess of the amounts contemplated
by our business plan approved by the DOE.

In addition to our obligation to fund a portion of the project costs as described above, we have
agreed to set aside 50% of the net proceeds from our initial public offering and any subsequent offerings
of stock oceurring before the completion of the projects, up to an aggregate of $100 million, to funda -
separate, dedicated account under our DOE Loan Facility, This dedicated account can be used by us to
fund any cost overruns for our powertrain and Mode} S manufacturing facility projects and will also be
used as a mechanism to defer advances under the DOE Loan Facility. This will not affect our ability to
draw down the full amount of the DOE loans, but will require us to use the dedicated account to fund
certain project costs up front, which costs may then be reimbursed by loans under the DOE Loan Facility
once the dedicated account is depleted, or as part of the final advance for the applicable project. We wili
be required to deposit a portion of these reimbursements into the dedicated account, in an amount equal to
up to 30% of the remaining project costs for the applicable project, and these amounts may similarly be
used by us to fund project costs and cost overruns and will similarly be eligible for reimbursement by the
draw-down of additional loans under the DOE Ioan Facility once used in full, or as part of the final
advance for the applicable project. Upon the completion of our IPO and concurrent Toyota private
placement in July 2010, we set aside $100.0 million to fund the dedicated account. Through December
31, 2010, we transferred $26.4 million from the dedicated account to our operating cash accounts in
accordance with the provisions of the DOE Loan Facility. As of December 31, 2010, $73.6 million
remained in the dedicated account. As we expect to transfer the remainder of this balance within one
year, we have classified such cash as current resiricted cash on the consolidated balance sheet.

DOE Warrant

In conpection with the closing of the DOE Loan Facility, we have also issued a warrant to the
DOE to purchase up to 9,255,035 shares of our Series E convertible preferred stock at an exercise price of
$2.51 per share. Upon the completion of our IPO which occurred on July 2, 2010, this preferred stock
warrant became a warrant to purchase up to 3,090,111 shares of common stock at an exercise price of
$7.54 per share. Beginning on December 15, 2018 and until December 14, 2022, the shares subject to
purchase under the warrant will vest and become exercisabic in quarterly amounts depending on the
average outstanding balance of the loan during the prior quarter. The warrant may be exercised until
December 15, 2023. If we prepay the DOE Loan Facility in part or in full, the total amount of shares
exercisable under the warrant will be reduced.
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Since the number of shares ultimately issuable under the warrants will vary depending on the
average outstanding balance of the loan during the contractual vesting period, and decisions to prepay
would be influenced by our future stock price as well as the interest rates on our loans in relation to
market interest rates, we measured the fair value of the warrant using a Monte Carlo simulation approach.,
The Monte Catlo approach simulates and captures the optimal decisions to be made between prepaying
the DOE loan and the cancellation of the DOE warrant. For the purposes of the simulation, the optimal
decision represents the scenario with the lowest economic cost to us. The total warrant value would then
be calculated as the average warrant payotf across all simulated paths discounted fo our valuation date.
The prepayment feature which allows us to prepay the DOE Loan Facility and consequently, affect the
number of shares ultimately issuable under the DOE warrant, was determined to represent an embedded
derivative. This embedded derivative is inherently valued and accounted for as part of the warrant
liability on our consolidated balance sheets. Changes to the fair value of the embedded derivative are
reflected as part of the warrant liability re-measurement to fair value at each balance sheet reporting date.

The warrant is recorded at its estimated fair value with changes in its fair value reflected in other
expense, 1tet, until its expiration or vesting. The fair value of the warrant at issuance was $6.3 million,
and along with the DOE Loan Facility fee of $0.5 milljon and other debt issuance costs of $0.9 million,
represents a cost of closing the loan facility and is being amortized to interest expense over the expected
term of the DOE Loan Facility of approximately 13 years. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we
amortized $0.6 million to interest expense.

Prior to completion of our IPO, the fair value of the DOE warrant was included within the
convertible preferred stock warrant liability on the consolidated balance sheet. Upon the completion of
our IPO on July 2, 2010, this warrant was reclassified on our consolidated balance sheet from convertible
preferred stock warrant liability to common stock warrant lability. The DOE warrant will continue to be
recorded at its estimated fair value with changes in the fair value reflected in other expense, net, as the
number of common stock ultimately issuable under the warrant is variable until ifs expiration or vesting,
As of December 31, 2010, the fair value of the DOE warrant was $6.1 million. During the year ended
December 31, 2010, we recognized income from the change in the fair value of the DOE warrant in the
amount of $0.2 million through other expense, net, on the consolidated statement of operations.

9. Common Stock

As of December 31, 2009, we were authorized to issue 313,006,077 shares of capital stock with a
par value of $0.001 per share. The authorized shares consisted of 100,000,000 shares of common stock
and 213,006,077 shares of convertible preferred stock. In January 2010, we increased the number of
authorized shares of our common stock from 100,000,000 to 106,666,667 shares and the number of
authorized shares of our authorized preferred stock from 213,006,077 to 221,903,982 shares.

On June 28, 2010, our registration statement on Form S-1 for our IPO was declared effective by
the SEC. - As a result; the number of authorized shares of our common stock increased from 106,666,667
to 2,000,000,000 shares.

Initial Public Offering and Toyota Concurrent Private Placement

On June 28, 2010, our registration statement on Form S-1 for our IPO was declared effective by
the SEC. The IPO closed on July 2, 2010, at which time we sold 11,880,600 shares of our common stock
and received cash proceeds of $188.8 million from this transaction, net of underwriting discounts and
commissions. Additionally, we incurred offering costs of $4.4 million related to the IPO. An additional
3,414,400 shares of common stock were sold by existing stockholders from which we did not receive any
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proceeds. Costs associated with the sale of common stock by existing stockholders were notincurred by
us.

Concurrent with the closing of our TPO, we sold 2,941,176 shares of our common stock to Toyota
at a price per share equal to the IPO price, in a private placement transaction pursuant to which we
received proceeds of $50.0 million.

The net proceeds from our TPO as wel! as the Toyota private placement, have been recorded in
stockholders’ equity. Offering costs of $4.4 million have been reclassified from other noncurrent assets
and offset against additional paid-in capital in stockholders’ equity.

Panasonic Private Placement

In November 2010, we entered into a common stock purchase agreement with an entity affiliated
with Panasonic Corporation (Panasonic) pursuant to which we issued and sold an aggregate of 1,418,573
shares of our common stock at a price of $21.15 per share, which was the average of the trading highs and
fows of our common stock from October 25 to October 29, 2010, Upon completion of the private
placement transaction on Noventber 2, we received aggregate proceeds of $30.0 million. Concurrently
with the sale and issuance of the shares to Panasonic, we amended our investors’ rights agreement as of
November 2, 2010 to grant Panasonic registration rights on a pari passu basis with certain other holders of
registration rights with respect to the shares of common stock purchased in the private placement.

Early Exercise of Employee Options

Stock options granted under our stock option plan on or prior to October 29, 2008 provide
employee option holders the right to exercise unvested options in exchange for shares of restricted
common stock, Unvested shares, in the amounts of 2,669 and 46,421 as of December 31, 2010 and 2009,
respectively, were subject to a repurchase right held by us at the original issuance price in the event the
optionees’ employment is terminated either voluntarily or involuntarily. For exercises of employee
options, this repurchase right generally lapses as to 1/4th of the shares subject to the option on the first
anniversary of the vesting start date and as to 148th of the shares monthly thereafter. Due to the
administrative burden and cost, we abandoned the practice of granting options with a right to early
exercise. To date, we have always exercised our right to repurchase unvested restricted shares upon the
termination of an employee.

These repurchase terms are considered to be a forfeiture provision and do not result in variable
accounting. The restricted shares issued upon early exercise of stock options are legally issued and
outstanding, However, these restricted shares are only deemed outstanding for basic earnings per share
computation purposes upon the respective repurchase rights lapsing. We treat cash received from
employees for the exercise of unvested options as a refundable deposit shown as a liability in our
consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, these amounts are not significant,

Stockholder Seitlement

During the three months ended March 31, 2010, three of our stockholders who are affiliated with
one of our Board members asserted a claim regarding the conversion of such stockholders’ convertible
promissory notes into shares of our Series E convertibie preferred stock at the time of our Series B
preferred stock finaneing in May 2009. In May 2010, we entered into a settlement agreement with these
stockholders and pursuant to the terms of the setftlement agreement, we issued warrants to such
stockholders which, upon the closing of our IPO in July 2010, were automatically net exercised for an
aggregate of 100,000 shares of our common stock. During the three months ended June 30, 2010, the fair
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value of these warrants in the amount of $1.7 million was recorded in equity on the consolidated balance
sheet based on a Black-Scholes valuation. In conjunction with the settlement of our liability to issue such
warrants, we recognized a charge of $1.1 million during the year ended December 31, 2010, through other
expense, net, on the consolidated statement of operations.

10. Equity Incentive Plans

~In Tuly 2003, we adopted the 2003 Equity Incentive Plan. Concurrent with the effectiveness of
our registration statement on Form S-1 on June 28, 2010 (see Note 9), we adopted the 2010 Equity
Incentive Plan (the Plan) and all remaining common shares reserved for future grant or issuance under the
2003 Equity Incentive Plan were added to the 2010 Equity Incentive Plan. The Plan provides for the
granting of stock options and stock purchase rights to employees, directors and consultants of Tesla.
Options granted under the Plan may be either locentive options or nonqualified stock options. Incentive
stock options may be granted only to our employees including officers and directors. Nonqualified stock
options and stock purchase rights may be granted to our employees and consultants. As of December 31,
2010, there were 9,407,975 shares of common stock reserved for issuance under the Plan.

The following table summarizes option activity under the Plan:

Qutstanding Options

Weighted

Shares R ‘ Average

Available for Number of Exercise

Grant Options Price
Batance, December 31, 2007 ..ot eeeeeereeser e eesessesetseesoseaesseseans 741,359 4279,646 & 1.23
Repurchased restricted StOCK oo vvveiveer et veerrraes 125,082 o 0.67
Granted Lo e e e e s e e ae e (1,445,756) 1,445,756 2.70
EXEECISEM crevviviieeriie s ertcen e s st s ae ettt vae st s e sbeansreta e seanteraseeenteates — (733,604) 0.37
CANCERIEM .o et ererere s e e s et s s e ansae st a e aen 2,129374 (2,129,374) 1.64
Balance, December 31, 2008 .ot et s e 1,550,059 2,862,424 1.88
Additional options reserved ..o 8,366,666 — —
Repurchased restricted SEOCK oo 4,836 — 0.90
GIANEEA avvceevticeerrremraeses e stnseerrcsenesasserensresessresrssarasones sassessrensrasesesnnorsennrcs (10,275,974 10,275,974 5.98
EXEECISEA cuvrritiveicerreerter s sie s e e e st snmb et s rmesae b e easensr et e s b esenrentesbaabees — {195,264} 1.19
Canceled ... s e e e e e s 1,369,100 {1.369.100) 2.70
Balatice, December 31,2009 . iiiieeeiiesie e scmessss s et e nssssae s na 1,014,687 11,574,034 5.44
Additional options 1888IVed ...ovirvre i e e 11,269,286 — —_—

Repurchased restricted StOck ..o 9,170 — 0.90
GIAIIEL .ot e ettt e e esreree st ebesba st esnesaneneans sres e P . (3,328,705) 3,328,705 7 - 17.96
Exereised .o — (721,080) 1.84
CanCeled oot e e e e e e s e st s 443,537 (443.537) 6.61
Balance, December 31, 2010 i iiiiecineinresiiisnrrresssessre sesssassanssansnee 9,407,975 13,738,122 8.62

In addition to stock options issued from the Plan, as of December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, were
66,666 stock options that we had previously granted to non-employees outside of the Plan. These non-
employee options outstanding had a weighted average exercise price of $1.80 as of each year end.
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Additional information regarding all stock options outstanding and exercisable as of December

31, 2010 is summarized below:
Options Outstanding

Options Exercisable

Weighted “Weighted
Average Average
Weighted Remaining Weighted  Remaining
- Average . Centractual .. ... ... ...... Average . .Contractual .
Exercise Life (in Exercise Life (in
Range of Exercise Piice Number Price years) Number Price years)
B3 - $2 10 517,493 % 1.31 463,216 % 123
$2.70 - $2.70.... 1,568,473 2.70 772,129 2.70
$2.94 - $6.15.... 549,642 4.99 180,599 4.80
$6.63 - $6.63.... 7,943,740 6.63 2,050,354 6.63
$9.96 - $13.23...... 627,112 11.24 18,245 .10
FHLT - $14.17. 1,090,915 07 14,987 14.17
320,24 - 32024 e 216,614 20.24 3,084 20.24
$20072 - $20.72. e 564,752 20.72 4,446 20,72
$24.98 - $24.98. e 455,580 2498 369 24.98
$30.55 - $30.55 i 270,467 30.55 1.250 30.55
13,804,788 T 859 6,06 3.506.279% 5.05 519

Additional information regarding all stock options outstanding and cxcrcisable as of
December 31, 2009 is summarized below:

Oyptions Outstanding Options Exercisable

Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Weiglited Remaining YWeighted Remaining
Average Contractual Average Contractual
Exercise Life (in Exercise Life {in
Range of Exercise Price Number Price yeurs} Number Price years)
$O15 - 86630 11,640,700 § 5.42 6.16 2,184200 % 372 5.22

The aggregate intrinsic value represents the total pretax intrinsic value (i.e., the difference
between our comumon stock price and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money
options) that would have been received by the option holders had ali option holders exercised their
options. The aggregate intrinsic value of options outstanding as of December 31, 2010 and 2009 was
$250.1 million and $13.8 million, respectively, The intrinsic value of options exercisable was
$75.7 million and $6.1 million, and the intrinsic value of options vested and expected to vest was
$203.0 miltion and $12.3 million as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The total intrinsic
value of options exercised was $10.0 million and $0.6 million for the years ended December 31,2010 and
2009, respectively.

Fair Value Adoption

We adopted the fair value method on January 1, 2006 in recognizing stock-based compensation
expense. Under the fair value method, we estimated the fair value of each option award on the grant date
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model and the weighted average assumptions noted in the
following table.

2010 2009 2008
Risk-free interest rate ..o noaceon, 2.0% 2.2% 22%
Expected term (In ¥ears) ... necrrsisincnsesnsesaens 53 4.6 4.6
Expected volatility ..o, % 64% 53%
Dividend yield oo, 0% 0% 0%
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The weighted-average grant-date fair value for option awards granted during the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, was $10.99, $3.00 and $0.68 per share, respectively.

The fair value of the shares of common stock underlying the stock options has historically been
determined by the Board of Directors as there was no public market for our common stock. The Board of
Directors has determined fair value of the common stock at the time of each grant of options by
considering a number of objective and subjective factors including valuation of comparable companies,

- sales of convertible preferred stock to unrelated third parties, operating and financial performance, the
lack of liquidity of capital stock, and trends in the broader astomobile industry. We have not granted
stock options with an exercise price that is less than the fair value of the uaderlying common stock as
determined at the time of grant by our Board of Directors, with input from management. The fair market
value of the underlying common stock was determined by the Board of Directors until the completion of
our TPO when our common stock was listed on an established stock exchange.

Information regarding our stock option grants during 2008, 2009 and the six months prior to the
completion of our IPO, including the grant date; the number of stock options issued with each grant; and
the exercise price, which equals the grant date fair value of the underlying common stock for each grant
of stock options, is summarized as follows:

Exeycise
Price and
Fair Value
Number of  per Share of
Options Common

Grant Date Granted Stock
JUNE 4, 2008 ...t s st sr s e ne e b e 762,137  § 2.70
JULY B, 2008 ...ttt et v s s s s s bbb e et 278,308 2,70
Seprember 3, 2008 L et 200,155 2,70
October 29, 2008 ...t sre s e st s 205,156 2,70
IMAECH 2, 2000 11 e e rresee i rar e eeerriss vt s st avas et asres s ers e s b e s ss e reeaantan ey e esaras sreenrens 214,813 2.70
APLIL 13, 2000, e et e eg b et rn e s 1,005,837 2.70
ADFE 22, 2000 11 cvurn e rre reree e s nvaibs s sver s s et s aman e an pe e cr e et ararasa e e 105,184 2.70
AUEUST A, 2009 ... e e er e et an e sae e s e e 323,063 2.94
October 21,2009 ottt et st se s s raans sena e anere e eb et st s reab et b e nin sans 590,638 6.15
December 4, 209 .. .o ieere et vsree e e sttt er e b e st e nes b e st abr s 7,977.444 6.63
December 16, 2009 ..ot et e e ts e e e et s b s enantpe g nme e 58,995 6.63
IMAECH 3, 20T0 it erce s e st st it s bbb ene st s sbe e e as b enesmee 402,660 0.96
APTIE 28, 2010 i eriinnr e ses e ety e s e b e s ea g aren T pe e Rrn s aena s 256,320 13.23
June 12, 2010 i it smiiens evsrareeentenner b et e srnser e nenas P 1,135,710 14847

Included in our December 4, 2009 stock option grants were 6,711,972 stock options granted to
our Chief Executive Officer in two separate grants. In recognition of his and our company’s

achicvements and to create incentives for future success, our Board of Directors approved an option grant

to our Chief Executive Officer representing 4% of our fully-diluted share base prior to such grant as of
December 4, 2009, or 3,355,986 stock options, with 1/4th of the shares vesting immediately, and 1/36th
of the remaining shares scheduled to vest each month over three years, assuming continued employment
through each vesting date. In addition, to create incentives for the attainment of clear performance
abjectives around a key element of our current business plan— the successful launch and
commercialization of the Madel S—the Board of Directors approved an additional option grant to our
Chief Executive Officer totaling an additional 4% of our fully-diluted shates prior to such grant as of
December 4, 2009, or 3,355,986 stock options, with a vesting schedule based entirely on the attainment of
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performance objectives as follows, assuming Mr. Musk’s continued employment and service to us
through each vesting dafe:

e 1/4th of the shares subject to the option are scheduled to vest upon the successful completion
of the Model S Engineering Prototype;

e 1/4th of the shares subject to the option are scheduled to vest upon the successful completion
of the Model S Validation Prototype;

e 1/4th of the shares subject to the option are scheduled to vest upon the completion of the first
Model S Production Vehicle; and

e  1/4th of the shares subject to the option are scheduled to vest upon the completion of the
10,000th Model S Production Vehicle.

If he does not meet one or more of the above milestones prior to the fourth anniversary of the date
of the grant, he will forfeit his right to the unvested portion of the grant.

Due to the significant number of stock options granted to our Chief Executive Officer, we valued
these December 2009 grants by using the following grant-specific Black-Scholes assumptions: risk-free
interest rate of 1.7%, expected term of 4.1 years, expected volatility of 70% and dividend yield of 0%%.
Stock-based compensation expense related to Mr. Musk’s grants was $9.2 million for the year ended
December 31, 2010.

Included in our June 2010 and September 2010 stock option grants were 666,300 and 20,000,
respectively, of stock options granted to various members of our senior management with a vesting
schedule based entirely on the attainment of the same performance objectives as those outlined for Mr.
Musk above, As of December 31, 2010, the first performance milestone was achieved and the remaining
performance milestones were considered probable of achievement. For the vear ended December 31,
2010, we recognized $8.9 million of stock-based compensation expense related to the attainment of
performance objectives.

. The following table summarizes the consolidated stock-based compensation expense by line item
in the consolidated statements of operations (in thousands):

2010 2009 2008
Cost 0f 88168 ..vvvvenr e, 3 243§ 61 § 26
Research and development .......cccovievieenne C 4,139 - 376 125
Selling, general and administrative............... 16,774 997 286
TOtAL e § 2115 § 1434 § 437

We realized no income tax benefit from stock option exercises in each of the periods presented
due to recurring losses and valuation allowances. As required, we present excess tax benefits from the
exercise of stock options, if any, as financing cash flows rather than operating cash flows.

As of December 31, 2010, we had $34.6 million of total unrecognized compensation expense, net
of estimated forfeitures, that will be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.6 years.
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Employee Stock Purchase Plan

Concurrent with the effectiveness of our registration statetnent on Form S-1 on June 28, 2010 (see
Note 9), we established the 2010 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the ESPP) which is intended to qualify
under Section 423 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, Under the ESPP, employees are eligible to

purchase common stock through payroll deductions of up to 15% of their eligible compensation, subject

to any plan limitations. The purchase price of the shares on each purchase date is equal to 85% of the
lower of the fair market value of our common stock on the first and last trading days of each six-month
offering period. Through December 31, 2010, no shares have yet been issued under the ESPP. A total of
1,666,666 shares of common stock have been reserved for issuance under the ESPP as of December 31,
2010.

11. Income Taxes

No provision for U.S. income taxes has been made due to cumulative losses since the
commencement of operations.

A provision for income taxes of $0.2 million, $26,000 and $0.1 million, has been recognized for
the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, respectively, related primarily to our subsidiaries
located outside of the United States. Our net loss before provision for income taxes for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, is as follows (in thousands):

2010 2009 2008
DORESHC e e B 154,734 8 56,983 % 82,963
Tnternational,, ..ot sasseens (579 (1.269%) {(278)
Loss before inCome tAXES......uvvrveevreeeersrsssnses $__ 154155 & 55714 3 82685

The components of the provision for income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009
and 2008, are as follows (in thousands):

2010 2009 2008
Current:
Federal .o mvivireescceeiinrmesscsstinssresnerns 9 — $ — % -
SEALE ot vvririrer e rierar s erna v s s 9 4 1
FOrSiBilae et creecenre s e sr e vanae e 177 {53 181
TOtal CUITEHE v eireeseierire e ceansnsirarmi s i86 (49) 182
Fodetal .ot resn e — — —
SHAS vvi e e et e — — —
FOLCIETL tvvvvrereeeeraasssnsercerassnsnss rsssesasanrenes (13) 75 (85)
Total deferred ... cveinierenierecniienn R ¢ 1))} 5 R €5
Tatal provision for income taxes ......uciernns £ 173 $ 26 3 97
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Deferred tax assets (liabilities) as of December 31, 2010 and 2009, consist of the following (in
thousands):
December 31,

20106 2009
Deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carry-forwards ..o 9 140,642 % 96,022
Research and development credits. ... .o cevinnioreorvmimneseeeesceeesirnseenee. 713,344 0 - 8826
DETRITE TEVEITUE 1.uiveireees i vrees st eeesscrrassse st ss s em s st enss s ssssens - 160 123
Inventory and Warranty IESEIVES . ...u i reresrersrasrrsrersasesrassssesseatsieres .- 2,609 2,024
Depreciation and amortization. ... oerennse s e e 1,125 —
ACCrUals and Others .oyt g s 2.940 1,382
Total deferred 1K ASSEES . ovvvi i et rr e et cre e s s e st reneaaan 160,820 108,377
Valuation alIOWANCE ..o e e s e rsrsi srsress e serssass e eee e nrasasees (160,803) (108.271)
Deferred tax liabilities:
Undistributed earnings of foreign subsidiaries........ccoeeeceniirrvernrecne. — (65)
Depreciation and amortization. ... e s s sanae s - (29
INet deferred taX ASSES .o i veriare st sr e e sere s rara e es s eresres sy e enssens $ 17 & 12

Reconciliation of statutory federal income taxes to our effective taxes for the years ended
December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, is as follows:

2610 2009 2008
Tax at statutory federal rate vvvivsiivcriene (52413) § (18,943 % {28,113)
State tax—net of federal benefit .....ooveenriieens {5,842) {2,825) (4,252)
Nondeductible eXpenses ....oevivenrenien 3,310 514 211
Foreign income rate differential......ccocorvennns 254 (72) 2
TS, 185 credis.mnriimrnnre e ererevcseconseeressearias (4,406) . (2,498) 3,761
Prior petiod adjustment, 736 4,809 5,789
Change in valuation allowance ..o 52,534 19,041 30,223
Provision for inCome (axes oo, $ 173 § 26 % 97

Management believes that based on the available information, it is more likely than not that the
deferred tax assets will not be realized, such that a full valuation allowance is required against all U.S.
deferred tax assets, '

As of Decernber 31, 2010, we had approximately $369 million of federal and $278 million of
California operating loss carry-forwards available to offset fiture taxable income which expire in varying
_amounts begianing in 2024 for federal and 2019 for state if unused. Additionally, we have research and
development tax credits of approximately $8.0 million and $8.1 million for federal and state income tax. .
purposes, respectively. If not utilized, the federal carry-forwards will expire in various amounts
beginning in 2019, However, the state credits can be carried forward indefinitely.

Federal and state laws impose substantial restrictions onthe utilization of net operating loss and
tax credit canry-forwards in the event of an “ownership change,” as defined in Section 382 of the Internal
Revenue Code. Prior to our IPO, we performed a study and had determined that no significant limitation
will be placed on the utilization of our net operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards. We do not believe
that our IPO would constitute an ownership change resulting in limitations on our ability to use our net
operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards; however, we have not yet performed a study subsequent to
our IPO to determine whether such limitations exist,
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Uncertain Tax Positions

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted new accounting guidance related to the recognition,
- measurement and presentation of uncertain tax positions. As a result, we recorded net unrecognized tax
benefits of $11.5 million with an offset to the deferred tax assets with a full valuation allowance,

The aggregate changes in the balance of our gross unrecoghized tax benefits during the years
ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008, arc as follows (in thousands):

JANUATY 1, 2008 .ccuiiiisiireriseirsiere s visessissstmssssssssasssrasssssresseasssesrasssaseseans 1410t sbatisssseseasrerestssessssarssessesesnarssesesns $ 14,480
Increases in balances related to tax positions taken during current Year......ooocecevecinercennmesceese e 575
DeceinbBEr 31, 2008, it e e st e s e s s r s assa e et e it s e PR S et et e e e rR e te e e s an s e e ran e e e rnes 15,055
Increases in balances related to tax positions taken during current year......,........ ettt s et 541
December 31, 2000 ... it rres sass s s ras b e ran et s aa e et sbere sabe e b esare it earesras et e e reLe et ereanaa e rabarn 15,596
Increases in balances related to tax positions taken during CUrTent Year. ... eercerminarernenionenverernines 797
Decemiber 31, 2010 ..ot er et e et e rere e be e e eatesasen e st e ntene e n s e te st arb e aneteerse st e ansenennan $ 16393

Accrued interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits are classified as income tax
expense and was zero. As of December 31, 2010, unrecognized tax benefits of $16.4 million, if
recognized, would not affect our effective tax rate as the tax benefits would increase a deferred tax asset
which is currently fully offset with a full valuation allowance, We do not anticipate that the amount of
existing unrecognized tax benefits will significantly increase or decrease within the next 12 months. We
file income tax returns in the United States, California, various states, the United Kingdom and other
foreign jurisdictions. Tax years 2007 to 2010 remain subject to examination for federal purposes, and tax
years 2006 to 2010 remain subject to examination for California purposes. All net operating losses and
tax credits generated to date are subject to adjustment for U.S, federal and California purposes. Tax years

12, Information about Geographic Areas

We have determined that we operate in one reporting segment which is the design, development,
manufacturing and sales of electric vehicles and electric vehicle powertrain components,

The following tables set forth revenues and long-lived assets by geographic area (in thousands).
Revenue by geopraphy is based on the billing address of the customer,

Revenues
2010 2069 2008
MNorth ATETICE cuvvevrecee e e srnsrees 41,866 §% 90,833 § 14,742
Europe............ eeesiere e eeitev et e e : 70,342 21,110 C
AR i e et 4336

$ lle744 §_ 111943 § . 14740

North American revenues are comprised primarily of U.S. revenues,
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Long-lived Assets
December 31,

2010 2009
UNIBA STAIES..cevtviririsrererresnesees s esarires e s rsssessss s s es e ssrasssserssnassarstesesnesasesssensessrin $ 119,014 $ 22,667
| ERTE= gt 1A Le] 111 DTUR OSSR UT TSR R 3.585 868

Ol eeeseeeseeeseeeeceeesreressasesres st esss e et eeee s st et senreesereeneseeseserese e rarennn $ 122599  §_ 23,535

13. Strategic Partnerships
Daimler AG

In May 2009, we sold 19,901,290 shares of Series E convertible preferred stock to Blackstar
Investco LLC, an affiliate of Daimler, for aggregate proceeds of $50.0 million. As we have provided and
are providing development services for an affiliate of a significant stockholder, these transactions are
considered related party transactions.

Daimler Smart Foriwe Program

In May 2009, we and Daimler formalized a development arrangement related to Daimler’s Smart
fortwo electric vehicle program under which we were performing powertrain development activities since
2008, In May 2009, we entered into an agreement with Daimler related to the development of a battery
pack and charger for Daimler’s Smart fortwo electric drive. We began development efforts in the year
ended December 31, 2008 and began receiving payments to compensate us for the cost of our
developmient activities prior to entering into the formal agreement in May 2009. We received aggregate
payments in the amount of $10.2 million during 2008 for our services; however, we deferred recognition
for these payments received in advance of the execution of the final agreement because a number of
significant contractual terms wete not in place prior to that time. Upon entering into the final agreement
in May 2009, we had received and deferred an aggregate of $14.5 million under the agreement. Under
the terms of the final agreement, Daimler was to pay us an additional $8.7 million subject to successful
completion and acceptance of certain development milestones.

We recognized the $14.5 million paid in advance of the execution of the final agreement as
deferred development compensation on a straight-line basis. This amount was recognized over the
expected life of the agreement, beginning in May 2009 and continuing through November 2009,
Payments received npon the achievement of development milestones subsequent to the execution of the
final agreement in May 2009 were recognized upon achievement and acceptance of the respective
milestones. All amounts received under this agreement were recognized as an offset to research and
development expenses, as we were performing development activities on behalf of Daimler, were being
compensated for the cost of these activities and could not practicably separate the efforts or costs related
to these activities from our own research and development. During the year ended December 31, 2009,
we recognized $23.2 million in development compensation, as an offset to research and development
expenses. As of December 31, 2009, all development work related to the development agreement had
been completed, and we had recognized the full $23.2 million under the development agreement. During
the year ended December 31, 2009, we received total payments from Daimler in the amount of $11.1
million. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were amounts receivable of $0 and $2.9 mitlion from
Daimler related to this agreement.

Upon completion of the development activities, we began selling powertrain components to
Daimler for the Smart fortwo program. Powertrain component sales are recorded in automotive sales
revenue and during the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, we recognized revenue of $21.1
million and $0.4 million, respectively. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we received total
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payments from Daimler in the amount of $18.3 million. As of December 31, 2010 and 2009, there were
amounts receivable of $3.2 million and $0.4 million, respectively, from Daimlier related to the sales of
pawertrain components,

Daimler A-Class Program

- During the three months ended March 31, 2010, Daimler also engaged us to assist with the
development and production of a battery pack and charger for a pilot fleet of its A-Class electric vehicles
to be introduced in Europe during 2011. We began providing development services for this program
during the thrce months ended March 31, 2010 and had received an aggregate of $5.5 million in
payments; however, as we had not exccuted a final agreement related to this program as of March 31,
2010, we deferred the $5.5 million of payments that had been received from Daimler to that point. In
May 2010, we executed a final agreement under which Daimler would make additional payments to us
for the successful completton of certain development milestones and the delivery of prototype samples.
As of December 31, 2010, all development work related to the development agreement had been
comipleted, and we had recognized the full $14.4 million under the development agreement. During the
year ended December 31, 2010, we received total payments from Daimler in the amount of $14.4 million.
As of December 31, 2010, there were no amotunts receiv\ab]e from Daimler related to this agreement.

Costs of development services incurred prior to the finalization of the A-Class agreement were
recorded as research and development expenses. During the three months ended March 31, 2010, we
recorded $0.5 million of such costs in research and development.

Toyota Motor Corporation

In July 2010, concurrent with the ciosing of our TPO, we sold 2,941,176 shares of our common
stock to Toyota at a price per share equal to the IPO price, in a private placement transaction pursuant to
which we received proceeds of $50.0 million. As we are providing development services to Toyota, these
transactions ate considered related party transactions.

Toyota RAVS Program

In July 2010, we and Toyota entered into a Phase 0 agreement to initiate development of an
electric powertrain for the Toyota RAV4. Under this early phase development agreement, prototypes
would be made by us by combining the Toyota RAV4 model with a Tesla electric powertrain. We began
producing and delivering prototypes to Toyota during the three months ended September 30, 2010.
Pursuant to the agreement, Toyota will pay us up to $9 million for the anticipated development services to
be provided by us and during the year ended December 31, 2010, we recognized $1.0 millionin =
development services revenue. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we received total payments
from Toyota of $0.5 million. As of December 31, 2010, there were amounts receivable of $0.5 million
from Toyota related to this agreement,

Tn October 2010, we entered into a Phase 1 contract services agreement with Toyota for the
development of a validated powertrain system, including a battery, power electronics module, motor,
gearbox and associated software, which will be integrated into an electric vehicle version of the Toyota
RAV4. Pursuant to the agreement, Toyota will pay us up to $60.0 million for the successful completion
of certain development milestones and the delivery of prototype samples, including a $5.0 million upfront
payment that we received upon the execution of the agreement, During the year ended December 31,
2010, we completed the first milestone and along with the amortization of our upfront payment, we
recognized $3.3 million in development services revenue, As of December 31, 2010, we had deferred
$4.0 million of the upfront payment in deferred revenues. During the year ended December 31, 2010, we
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received total payments from Toyota of $5.0 million and as of Decernber 31, 2010, there were amounts
receivable of $2.3 million from Toyota related to this agreement.

Panasonic Corporation

In November 2010, we sold 1,418,573 shares of our common stock to Panasonic at a price of
$21.15 per share, which was the average of the trading highs and lows of our common stock from October
25 to October 29, 2010, As we are purchasing battery cells from Panasonic and its subsidiaries, these
transactions are considered related party transactions, During the year ended December 31, 2010, we
made total payments to Panasonic and its subsidiaries of $23.0 million and as of December 31, 2010,
there were amounts payable or accrued of $2.3 miilion to Panasonic.

14. Commiiments and Confingencies

Operating Leases

Our corporate headquarters and powertrain production operations are based in Palo Alto,
California where we have leased a facility consisting of 350,000 square feet. This lease expires in
January 2016. We also lease office space under non-cancelable operating leases with various expiration
dates through December 2022, Rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2010, 2009 and 2008,
was $6.3 million, $3.2 million, and $1.5 million, respectively.

Caprital Leases

We have entered into various agreements to lease equipment under capital leases over terms
between 36 and 60 months. The equipment under the leases are collateral for the lease obligations and
are included within property, plant and equipment, net, on the consolidated balance sheets under the
categories of computer equipment and software and office furniture and equipment.

Future minimum commitments for leases as of December 31, 2010 are as follows (in thousands):

Operating Capital
L.eases Leases
200 e e e bR e e et b e eh s 3 6,793 § 318
U3 e e e e e R st re e et ek 6,561 219
20T L b R e e e S 6,431 —
2015 a0d theT@ATIET ... e ieereer e retire ettt eere s bas ses e ber e s e e e seneseng s et e smsarines 27,021 L —
Total minimumy 18ase PAYITEIES 1o i eeee s s ae e s e e e nee e st st ame s es sreesassenns 5 53,431 823
Tess: Amounts representing interest not yet INCULTEd. .o isrvminsis v serrrvnresssaersvores 48
Present value of capital leage oblgations ..., S TS5
Liess: CUrrenit POTTION ..ovvciii s e s s e st e an e s s b e sa s rann s 279
Long-term portion of capital lease obligations .........oc i $ 436

Pursuant to a supply agreement with Lotus Cars Limited, we are required to putchase a minimum
of 2,400 partially assembled vehicles or gliders over the term of the agreement regardiess of whether we
are able to market and distribute the Tesla Roadster. Based on the foreign exchange rate for the British
Pound as of December 31, 2010 and the most recent price per vehicle, the estimated obligation for the
remaining purchase is approximately $15 million which will occur through January 2012,
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In May 2010, we entered into an agreement to purchase an existing automobile production
facility located in Fremont, California from NUMMI (see Note 4). NUMMI has previously identified
environmental conditions at the Fremont site which affect soil and groundwater, and is currently
undertaking efforts to address these conditions. Although we have been advised by NUMMI that it has
documented and managed the environmental issues, we have not yet performed an in-depih
environmental assessment on this facility, and we cannot determine the potential costs to remediate any
pre-gxisting contamination with any certainty at this time. Based on management’s best estimate, we -
estimated the fair value of the environmental liabilities that we assumed to be $5.3 million, The fair value
of these liabilities was determined based on an expected value analysis of the related potential costs to
investigate, remediate and manage various environmental conditions that were identified as part of
NUMMUI's facility decommissioning activities as well as owr own diligence efforts. As NUMMI
continues with its deconymissioning activities and we continue with our planned construction and
operating activities, it is reasonably possible that our estimate of environmental liabilities may change
materialtly.

We have reached an agreement with NUMMI under which, over a ten year period, we will pay
the first $15.0 million of any costs of any governmentally-required remediation activities for
contamination that existed prior to the completion of the facility and land purchase for any known or
unknown environmental conditions, and NUMMI has agreed to pay the next $15.0 million for such
remediation activities, Our agreement provides, in part, that NUMMI will pay up to the first
$15.0 million on our behalf if such expenses are incurred in the first four years of our agleement subject
to our reimbursement of such costs on the fourth anniversary date of the closing.

On the ten-year anniversary of the closing or whenever $30.0 million has been spent on the
remediation activities, whichever comes first, NUMMT’s liability to us with respect to remediation
activities ceases, and we are responsible for any and all environmental conditions at the Fremont site. At
that point in time, we have agreed to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless NUMMI from all liability and
we have released NUMMI for any known or unknown claims except for NUMMTY’s obligations for
representations and warranties under the agreement. As of December 31, 2010, we have accrued $5.3
million related to these environmental fiabilities (see Note 4).

15, Subsequent Events
DOE Loan Facility Draw-Down

In February 2011, we received additional Ioans under the DOE Loan Facility for $15.6 million at
interest rates ranging from 2.6% to 3.0%.
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16. Quarterly Results of Operations (Unaudited)

The following table includes selected quarterly results of operations data for the years ended
December 31, 2010 and 2009 (in thousands, except per share data):

Three monihs ended

) ""Mareh31L  Jone 30 Septemhber 30 December 31
2010
Total revenUues v cicccsniecsiieereeeene 3 20,812 § 28405 % 31241 3 36,286
Gross profit 3,852 6,201 9,296 11,321
NELLOSS 1re s severs e s e ersssres s (29.519) (38,517) (34,935) (51,358)
Net loss per share, basic and difuted............. (4.04) (5.04) (0.38) (0.54)
20609
Total fEVENUES occvvreverrsreceeverssirrreiieseereneees 5 20,886 § 26945 § 45527 % 18,585
Grogs profit (lo8s) e e iessecareannn (2,046) 2,101 7,699 1,781
NEL {085 ceererrreerrecimrrrearenis e vre s rrveesserrassnees (16,016) {10,867) (4,615) {24,242)
Net loss per share, basic and diluted............. (2.31) {1.56) (0.66) (3.43)
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CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes trade secrets and commercial or
Jinancial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt from disclosure
under the Freedom of Information det (5 US.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1(c)(ii)

Unaudited Consolidating Financial Statements for 2010
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CONFIDENTIAL - This document was developed at private expense and includes frade secrets and commercial or
Sinawncial information, or both, that Tesla Motors, Inc. considers privileged, confidential and exempt firom disclosure
under the Freedom of Information Act (5 US.C. § 552(b)).

Exhibit 8.1()(iv)

Audit Report from PwC




Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Tesla Motors, Inc.

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related consolidated statements of
operations, of convertible preferred sfock and stockholders® equity (deficit) and of cash flows present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of Testa Motors, Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2010 and
December 31, 2009, and the resulls of {heir operations and their cash flows for each of the three years in the period
ended December 31, 2010 in conformity with sccounting principles generally accepted in the Uniled States of
America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in
accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Tliose standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are
free of materia! misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the finaucial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, and evaluating the overal! financial statement presentation, We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

wafﬁ_v{»wm&/wvw S

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
San Joss, California
March 2, 2011
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March 2, 2011

PricewaterhouseCoopars LLP

Ten Almaden Boulevard

Suite 1800

San Jose, CA 95113 '

W are providing this letter in connection with your audits of the consolidated financial statements of
Tesla Motors, Inc. (the "Company"} as of December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2008 and for aach of the
thrae years In the perlod ended Decembar 31, 2010 for the purpose of expressing an opinlon as to
whelher such consolldated financlal statements present falily, in all materlal respects, the financlal
position, results of operatlons, and cash flows of Testa Motors, Ine. In confarmily with accounting
princlples generally accepled In the Uniled States of Amerlca, Wa confirm that we are responsible for the
falr presentation in the consolidated financial stateinents of fnanclal poelllon, resulis of opsrations, and of
cash flows in conformily wilh generally accepted accounting principles, including the appropriate selection
and application of accounting policies,

Certain rapresentations in thls Ietter are described as being limited to those matters that are material,
Hems are considered material, regardless of size, If they Involve an omisalen or misstatemsnt of
accolinling information that, n the ilght of surrounding elreumstances, makes it probabie that the
Judgment of a réasonable person telylng on the infonmalion would bave besn changed or Influenced by
the omission or misstatement. Materlalily used for putposes of this letter is $2,000,000,

We confirm, to tha best of our knowledge and hellef, as of Match 2, 2011, the datle of your raport, the
followIng representations made 1o you during your audlts:

1. The consolidated financial slatements referred to above are fairly presented in conformity with
aecounting principles generally accepted in the United States of Amerloa {GAAP), and Inglude ail
disclosures necessary for such falr presentation and disclosures otherwise required to be Inciuded
therein by the laws and regulations to which the Company s subject. We have prepared the
Company's consolidated financlal slatements on lhe besls that the Company is able to continue as a
-golng concern, ncluding to meet its obligations In the ordinary course of business, and we aje nat . .
awara of any significant inforrmation to the conlrary.,

2. Wa havo made avallable o yous
a. Al flnanclal records and related data,

bh.  Unconditional accéss to persons within the entlty from whom you have requested audit
evidence,

c. All minutes of the meeiings of stookholders, directors, and audit or other commitiees of
directors and summarles of actions of recent mestings for which minules have not yei
been prepared. The most racent meetings held were: Board of Directors December 1,
2010 and the Audit Cornmiites an February 23, 2014.

Tesla Motors 3500 Deer Creek Road, Palo Alto, CA 94304 Tel! 650-681-5000 Fax: 650-681-5203




3, We have approprialely reconclled our books and records {e.g., genetal ladger accounts)
underlying the consolldated financial statements to thelr related supporiing Informatton (e.g.,
subledger or third-party data). Al related raconciling ltems considered to be malerial were
Identified and included on the reconciliations and were appropriately adjusted In the consolidated

. Jinancial statements, as necessary, Thera were no-matertal unreconclied differences or materlal

S e .g@neral ledger.suspenss account tems that should-have been-adjusted-or- reclasslfied-to another--— v | -

account balance. There were no malerlal general ledger suspense account items written off to a
balanca shest account, which should have been wrilten off {o an income statemant account and
vica versa, Alj consolidating entries have been properly recorded, All intra-entlty accounts hava
been eliminated or appropriately measurad and considered for disclosure in the consolidated
financial statemants. '

4, There have beenh no communleations from raguiatory agencies concerning noncompllance with or
detflclencias In financlal reparling practices,

. There are no materlal iransactions, agresments or accounts that have not bean properly recorded in
the accounting records underlying the consolidated financiaj statements.

6. We are not aware of any signiffcant deflelencles In the deslgn or operation of internal control over
financial reporting.

7. Wa acknowiedge our responsibilily for the deslgn and iImplementation of programs and conlrols to
provide reasonable assurance that fraud Is prevented and detected,

8. Woe have no knowladge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the Company Involving:

a, Management,

&, Employeas who have signiflcant roles In Intornal control over financlal reparting, or

¢.  Others where the fraud could have a materlal effect on the consolidated financial
statemants.

8. We have no knowledge of any allegations of fratid or stspaected fraud affesting the Company
recelved in communications from employees, former employees, analysts, regulators, short sellers, or
others,
{As to items 7, 8 and 9, we understand the term “fraud® fo mean those matters desorlbed In Statement on
Auditing Standards No. 99.)
40. There have been no violatlons or possible violatlons of laws or regutations whose effects shauld he

__considared for disclosure In the cansolldated financial slalements or a8 a basig for recording a loss
contingenoy.

11. The Gompany has no plans or Intentlons that may materlally affect the carrying vaive or olagsificalion
of assets and llabliltles,

12, The followlng, If materlal, have been properly recorded or disclosed In the consollidated financial
statemnents:

a. Relationships and transaclions with related pariles, as describad in Accounting
Standards Codification (ASC) 860, Refaled Party Disclosuras, inoluding sales,
purchases, loans, transfers, leasing arrangsmants, and guarapteaes, and amounts
receivable from or payable to related parties.




b. Guarantess, whethar wiltten or oral, under which the Company Is contingently llable,

¢. Slgnificant estimates and material concantrations known o management that are
radulred to be disclosed In accordance wWith ASC 2756, Risks aid Uncerlalntles, 276-10-
. B, (Signiffoant estimates are astimates at the batance sheet dale that could change

- materlally within the nextyear:-Gonoentrallons refer-to-volumes of business, (GVENUIeS;. - - e - wfu.o).

avallable sourcas of supply, or markels or geographlc areas for which events could ocour
that would significantly disrupt normal finances within the next year.)

13, The Campany has satislactory title to all owned assets, and there are no llens or encumbrances on
such assets nor has any asset been pledged as collateral, except as dlsclosed In the consolidated
fnanctal stalements.

14, The Gempany has complied with all aspsots of contractual agreements that would have a materfal
offact on tho consolidated financlal statemants i the event of noncompliance,

16, We conflrmn that our assessment of the resldual valite aserlbed to the leaged Roadsters Is
representative of the minlmum amounts thal could be recovered from the sale of those ears at the
expiration of their lease tarms, We have based our assumptions on the second hand value of
comparable luxury sporis sars as we do not have a history of slling second hand Roadsters,

16. We cansistently appiled cur poligy regarding classifieation of cash and cash equivalents, which are _
short-tarm, highly liquld invesiments that are readlly convertible o known amounts of cash and are so
near thelr maturily that there ls Inslgnificant risk of changes In valus due to interest rate or other credit
tisk changes.

17, We have properly disclosed the carrying amount and classification of resiricted cash, Restricted cash
feprasents amounts reskricted in connsction with requirements under the DoE loan faciiity, securily
neld by a vendor as pant of the vendor's standard aradit pollcies, ssowlly doposits related to leass
agreemsnts and squipment financing, as well as cerlain refundable reservation payments sogregated
for ragulatory purposes. Based on cost foracasts, we belleve that the amount restiloted In connection
with the DoE loan will be olassified to operating cash within the next 12 months, During the year
ended Decemper 31, 2010, We transferrad an amount of $26.4 milllon to opsrating oash. We conflrm
{hat transfer was in accordance with terms of the loan agreement.

18, Racalvables recorded in the consolidated finanoial statements represent bona fide claims against

debtors for sales or olher.charges arlsing on-or before the balance shest dates and ara notsublectto .. ... . .oovnn §

discount exeept for normal cash discounts. Recelvablas classified as current do not include any
miaterkal armounts which are collectible after one year. All receivables have basn approptiately
_ reduced to lhelr estlmated netreallzable valua

19. inventories recorded In.the consalidated financlal statamenls ae staled at the Jower of 0081 or

market, cost balng determined on the basis of FIFO and due provision was made to reduce allslow- 7|7}

moving, obsolsts, or unusable Invsntorles to thelr eptimated useful ¢r sorap velues, invantory
quaniities at the balance sheet dates wera determinad from physleal counts or from perpeluai
Inventory records, which have been adjusted on the basis of physical Inventaries taken by competent
employees at December 17, 2010, Liabllites for amounts unpald ara recorded for all items Included
In Inventorles at balance sheet dalss and ali quantilies billed to customers at those dates are
excluded from the inventary balances,

20. Ali costs that have been deferred to future perlods in relation to the Toyola RAV4 prototype units o
be dellvered under the Phase 0 conlract with Toyota mest the definlion of an assel as defined in the
Statement of Financlal Accounting Concepts No, 8, Elements of Financlal Statements {(CON 6), and
are recoverable,
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‘ ',_',,,dlsclosed In. accordancs wﬂh that Toplc
22, |

23,

24,

20.

26,

27.

28.

29,

. All llabliittes of the Company of which we are aware are Included In the consolidated financlal

slataments at the balance shest dates, There are no other flabililles or gain or loss contingencles that
are required {o be accruad or disclosed by ASC 460, Conlingencles, and no unasserted claims or
assessments that our legal counsef has advised ys are probabta of asserlon and requlred to be

No provlslans a8 requlred for lcsses ! ba susla!ned asa result of purchase commllments for
Inventory at prices In excess of prevalling market pricas.

Reservation payments as of Decambar 34, 2010 and December 31, 2008 conslst of deposits
recelved for cars nol yet deliversd and are accounted for as a labllity, All amounts recelved as
deposits and not refunded or applied to the sala of a vehicle have been inclided in reservation
payments at the dates indlcated,

The Company has not violated any covanants relating to the loan from the Department of Energy
{"DoE"} durlng any of the periods presented, and we disclosed to you all covenants and information
refated to how we determined compllance wilh the covenants,

We are rasponsible for all significant estimates and Judgments affecting the consolidated financlal
statements. Slgnlfivant estimates and Judgments and thelr undsrlying assumptions, methods,
procedures and the source and reliabilily of supporiing data are reasonable and based on applicable
guldance, and are approprialely disclosed In the consolidated financlal statements. The procedures
and methods uthized In developing assumptions, estimates and Judgrents are appropriate and have
been conslatently applied In the perfods presenled,

Wa confirm that the inputs used to measure the fair value of the warrants as at December 31, 2010
lasued to the DoE undaer the loan agreement are reasonable, We conflrm that the risk free inlerest
rals of 3.67%, equity volatiiily of 56% and the oradit spread of 400 bps are representative of
condittons that epply to compantas of almilar slze, ndustiy positioning and financlal hisalth as Teosia,
where relevant, obtalned as at or near December 31, 2010, We also confirm that the discount rate
used In the valuation Is representallve of the cost of caplta] avallable o the Company.

We recorded a llabllity related to probable enviranmental remediation obligations that we assuimed as
part of the Framont facliity that was acquired in October 2010, Wa balfave that the ameunt recordsd
Is reprosentative of tha fair vaiue of such llabllity and is basad on available information to the bast of
our knowlsdge. We are not awars of any matters resulting from the decommissloning of thls facllity

by its predeusssarowners that would have a matorlal impaot on the falrvalus of the llability, Related - - -}

loss contingencles and the expected outcome of uncertalnties have been adequately disclosed in the
consolidatad financial stataments In acgordance with ASG 410, Assef Relirement and Environmental
Obl!g&tfons, 410-30,

Warranty provision and Hablilly are estimated. basad on historical aotivlly anqlu_clgment Thellabitiey. . .. .. ...

represents auy bast estitnate of fulure obligations ralatad {o revente recagnized In 1he parlods
presanted,

Assels and liablliles wera measured both on a resurring and nonrecurring basls at falr value In
avcordance with ASC 820, Falr Value Measurements and Disclosuras (ASG 820). The valualion was
datermined uslng an acceptable methodology applied on a conslstent basis and taking into account
reasonable assumptions, Including highest and bast use, nen-performance risk and oredit and
Heukdity risk adjustments, We classifled and disclosed financlal assels and flabilllles in the
consolidated financlal staternents as Lavel 1, Level 2 and Level 3 In accordance with ASGC 820,
including a descdption of iInpts and Information used to davelop valuatlon lechniques as well as facts
that required a change to such technlques,




30.

. .endsd December.31, 2010.and-Decamber-34,2009.-The unauditad interim-financlal-Information for: -« w-- - ]

31

32,

33.

34.

36.

The unaudited interim financlal Information has bean prepared and presented In conformity with
GAAP applicable to Interim financlal Information and with ltem 302(a) of Regulation S-K, The
unaudiled quarterly financlal Informatlon for the year anded December 31, 2010 also has besn
prepared on a basls consistent wilh the corresponding Interim perlads for the year ended December,

.31, 2008 and, to the degrao appropriate, with the consoildated financlal statements for the years
the three months encled December 31, 2010 and December 31, 2009 does not Include any materlal
amount of year-end adjustments that have nat been disclosed or any materlal amounts that should
have boen Included In earlier Interim perlods of the respective liscal years,

The Company does not have autslanding a past-due share of lts accounting support fees collectivle
by the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

Shipping and handling fees and costs are appropriately recorded In accordance with ASG 805,
Agcounting for Shipping and Handling Fees and Cosls, Wa have elected a consistent policy of
classifying these amounls as revenue and cost, .

We dld not enter into any sids lelters or agreements (written or oral) In connection with sales
agreeinents,

We provided you with complate cusiomer conleact files (Including ait purchase orders, coniracts, lelter
agreements, sales offers, shipping documents and other correspondsnoe) for atl customars for which
you requestéd such documeritation.

We recognlzs revenus in accordance with ASC 805-10, Revenue Recognition. We disclosed to you

_ al} sales terms (whether writtan or oral), inoluding all customear-accaplance provislons, riphts of return

or price adjustments and all warranty provisions, As part of evajuating the dellvery criterla for
revenue recognltion, we spacifically consldered the impact of any conlinuing Involvement. W,

Identifiad and accaunted for development arrangements entered In to during the year with (b) (4)
(b) t Involving mulliple deliverables In accordance with ASC 606, Raventie Recognition
(ASC 605). 605-26 Mulliple-Elament Arrangements, For these arrangsments, we have properly:

(b) (4)




(b) (4)

7.7 dellverables (unl(s of accounting) based.on thelr relalive.salling price,.When applying the-relalive. . .. o s b

37,

38,
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We allocated non-conlingent arrangement conslderation at the Inceptlon of the arrangement to all

selling price method:

i, The selling price for each deliverable was determined using venhdor-specific objective evidence
{VSOE) of selling price, :

fi. In determining whether VSOE of selling price existad, we consldored alf information that was
reasonably avallable without undue eost and efforl. We have provided you with all {he
informalion we used In determining VSOE of selling price,

il We determined the best estimale of sslling price In a manner consistent with the objective of
determining VSOE of selling price for the defiverable, Including consideration of market condllions
and enlfity-specifle factors. We bellove that the best estimate of selling price Is the price at which
the Company would transact If the deliverable was sold regularly on a stand-alone basls. We
have provided you with all Information we used in determining the hest estimate of selling price.

Woa assume responsibliity for the findings of speclalists. We did not glve or cause any Instructions to
be given to speclalists with respact to the values or amounts derlved In an attempl to blas thelr work,
and we are not awara of any matters that have had an Impact on the independence or objeclivily of
the speclalists, We adequately consldered qualifications of the speciallsts In detarmining the
amounts and disclosures used in the consolidated financlal statements and underlying accounting
records relatad to fair value assassments refating to land and bulldings acquired during the year,
environmental llabllities and stock warrants, )

Wa properly and consistently applied accounting policles for the provistons of ASC 718,
Compensalion-Stook Compensation {(ASG 718), including requislte sarvice perlod, attribution methad,
forfeiture rate assumptlon and lhe classiflcation of awards as equity or a liablilty, and presented
windfall tax bansfils in the cash flow statamant as financing Inflows.

The falr value of share-based awards was determined using an acceplable model and reasonable
assumptions In accordance with ASC 718 and SAB 107, Share-Basad Paymen, as amended by
Toplo 14.(SAB 107 and SAB 110), - - . o e e e e e e e e

In December 2009, we Issued 3,356,086 oplions to our Chlef Exsoutive Offfcer and In June 2010 and
September 2010 wa Issued 666,300 and 20,000 optlons respectively, to varlous members of the
senlor managemant of the Company. All thase oplions vest basad on the achievement of certaln
performance milestones. As al December 31, 2010, we determined that el four milasiones are

the completion of the milestons for the alpha protolype. Wae have recognized stock-hased
compensation expanse accordingly. . . oo L S

We have determined the grant date of stock-based compensallon awards to be the date when {1) we
have a mulugl understanding of the key terms and conditions of the award with the employee, (2) we
are obligated to Issue shares or transfer assets to employeas who fulfill thelr vesting requiremant, (3)
the employeo begins 1o be affected by the subsequent changes in the price of the stoclk, and {4) the
award has been approved by the hoard of directors of the Company in accordance with ASC 718,
Stock Compenselion, We have a mutual understanding of the key terms and candltions of the award
with the amployee on the date when the award has bsen approved by board of directors of the
Company and (1) the reciplent of the award no longer has the abliity to nogollate the key terms and
condltions of the award, and (2) the key terms and conditions of the award will be communioated to




the recipient in a relallvely short time perlod from the approval date In accordance with FASB Staff
Position ASC 718, Stock Compensation.

42, We established & deforrod fox asset valuatlon allowance in accardance with the provisions of ASC
740, Income Taxes (ASC 740). Bassd on the weight of the gvallable evidence, the valuation

L allowanss.ls.atlequate.jo.raduce the lotal defarred lax asset to.an.amount that will, more-ikely=thate.......... ... b &

not, he realizad,

43

Wa disclosed In the consolldated financlal statements and advised you of all significant tax positions
for which it is reasonably possible the amount of unrecognized tax benefit wil sither increase or
decrease In he next twelve monthe, We racognized ¢hanges in recognition and measurement of
uncertaln fax poslitions In the perlod to which they retate, including the Interim perlod, and disclosed In
the consolidated financlat statements all Individually significant changes Ih uncertain tax positions,
avan If the net amount of all such changes was insignificant, We recegnized and measured all
uncertain tax positons in accordance with ASG 740, We provided you actess to all Infermallon
related to significant uncertaln Income tax poshions that we have faken or expect to take, Including all
related opinlons and analyses,

44. We have not recognized deferred tax liabiiities for undistributed eamings of any of our forelgn
subsidiarles because such amounts have bean indefinitely reinvested. We provided you with support
for specific plans and other evidence that support the asseriion that we Intend to relnvest these
undlslributed sarnings Indefinitely

45, Wa provided you with all Information related o significant income tax uncertainties of which we are

aware, We also provided you with access to all opinlons and analyses that relate to positions we

have taken regarding slgnificant income tax malters, According to our records, the following Is a

compiste listing of positions ldenlified a